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Directors and Senior Management
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As at 30 March 2020, the date of this annual report, the
biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Company are as follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

CHEUNG YUK FUNG Chairman

Mr. Cheung, age 73, is the Chairman and an Executive Director of
the Company. He graduated from the Faculty of Radio Electronics at
Peking University in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") and
worked as a professor at Peking University thereafter. Prior to joining
the Group in 2001, Mr. Cheung was a chairman of a company
listed in the PRC, namely Founder Technology Group Corporation,
and a director of a company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), namely Founder Holdings
Limited, and has work experience in international trade, finance,
asset management and strategic planning. Mr. Cheung was
honoured with many awards, including being selected as the young
entrepreneur with outstanding contribution to China, and won the
first prize of national golden award for enterprise initiators in the 4th
National Technology Industrialist Award.

KUI MAN CHUN Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Kui, age 53, is the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive
Director of the Company. He graduated from Peking University
in the PRC with a master’s degree in international relations and
has over 28 years of experience in the information technology
industry and investment activities. Mr. Kui is also the chairman,
chief executive officer and a director of Hi Sun Limited (“HSL”), the
Company’s substantial shareholder. Prior to joining HSL in 2000,
Mr. Kui was the president of an enterprise in the PRC. He joined the
Group in 2000.

XU WENSHENG

Mr. Xu, age 51, is an Executive Director of the Company. He
graduated from the Dalian University of Technology with a
bachelor’s degree in computer science and engineering. Mr. Xu
is also a director of HSL. Prior to joining the Group in 2003,
Mr. Xu was the president of a system integration company and
has extensive experience in computer systems integration of the
financial industry.

LI WENJIN

Mr. Li, age 56, is an Executive Director of the Company. He
graduated from Peking University in the PRC with a master’s
degree in law. He has over 28 years of experience in investment
and administrative affairs. Mr. Li is also a director of HSL. Prior to
joining HSL in 1999, he had worked for several companies in the
PRC and Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 2000. Mr. Li has also
been appointed as an executive director of PAX Global Technology
Limited, an associated corporation of the Company and a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, since 24 February
2010.
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Directors and Senior Management

XU CHANGJUN

Mr. Xu, age 53, is an Executive Director of the Company. He
graduated from Peking University in the PRC with a master’s degree
in international economics. Prior to joining the Group in 2001, Mr.
Xu had worked for several companies in the PRC and Hong Kong.
He has over 28 years of experience in corporate management of
enterprises in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

TAM CHUN FAI

Mr. Tam, age 57, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company. He graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a bachelor of arts degree in accountancy. Mr. Tam
is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a member of Chartered Financial Analyst and has over 28
years’ experience in auditing, corporate advisory services as well as
financial management and compliance work. Mr. Tam is currently
an executive director of Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited (a
major red chip company) and an independent non-executive
director of KWG Property Holding Limited, both of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He joined the Group in
2004.

LEUNG WAI MAN, ROGER

Mr. Leung, age 63, is an Independent Non-Executive Director
of the Company. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in law and a
postgraduate certificate in laws from the University of Hong Kong.
He also obtained a Juris Doctor degree from the University of
Western Ontario, Canada. Mr. Leung has been a practicing solicitor
in Hong Kong since 1984 and is now a partner of the law firm,
Messrs Foo, Leung & Yeung. He was also admitted as a solicitor in
England and Wales and as a barrister, solicitor and notary public
in Ontario, Canada. Mr. Leung has extensive working experience
in law both in Hong Kong and in Canada. He served as a member
of the Inland Revenue Board of Review from 1997 to 2005 and
has been appointed as a China-appointed Attesting Officer since
January 2003. Mr. Leung is currently an independent non-executive
director of China Flavors and Fragrances Company Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange. He joined the Group in
2004.

CHANG KAI-TZUNG, RICHARD

Mr. Chang, age 65, is an Independent Non-Executive Director of
the Company. Mr. Chang graduated from the University of Texas
at Austin, United States of America with a bachelor’s degree in
Statistics and Operations Research. Mr. Chang possesses more than
24 years of experience in electronic payments industry in Southeast
Asia, Japan and the Great China. Mr. Chang was the Senior
Vice President, Global Clients APCEMEA of VISA Inc. (“VISA”)
in Singapore. He was previously VISA’s Greater China General
Manager, Japan General Manager, and senior country manager for
Singapore, Thailand, the Philippines and Indochina. He joined the
Group in 2009 as a Non- Executive Director and was re-designated
as an Independent Non-Executive Director on 26 February 2016.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Li Huimin, Mr. Liao Lizhi,
Mr. Liang Jing Jing, Mr. Zhao Yue Hui, Mr. Li Li and Ms. Hui Lok Yan
were the Company’s senior management.

LI HUIMIN

Mr. Li, age 40, is the president of BETTI S BR AR (“VBIll
OPCQ"). He graduated from Hubei University of Technology with
a bachelor’s degree in Electrical Technology. He joined the Group
in 2008. He has over 13 years of experience in third-party payment
industry management.

LIAO LIZHI

Mr. Liao, age 47, is the general manager of Hunan Hisun Mobile
Pay IT Ltd. He graduated from Renmin University of China with
a bachelor’s degree in Corporate Management and received a
master’s degree in Business Management from Sichuan University.
He joined the Group in 2005. He has over 13 years of experience
in the communication industry.

LIANG JING JING

Mr. Liang, age 38, is the president of Beijing Hi Sun Advanced
Business Solutions Information Technology Limited. He graduated
from Central South University with a bachelor’s degree in
Telecommunications Engineering and received a master’s degree
in Engineering Project Management from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University. He joined the Group in 2003. He has over 16 years of
experience in the information technology industry.

ZHAO YUE HUI

Mr. Zhao, age 55, is the chief executive officer of Hangzhou
PAX Electronic Technology Limited. He graduated from Zhejiang
University with a bachelor’s degree in engineering, and received a
master’s degree in engineering from Tongji University. He has over
18 years of experience in corporate management. He joined the
Group in 2000.

Ll

Mr. Li, age 44, is the president of Mega Hunt Microelectronics
Limited. He graduated from Tsinghua University with a bachelor’s
degree in engineering and a master’s degree in engineering. He also
received a degree of Executive Master of Business Administration
from China Europe International Business School. He joined the
Group in 2010. He has over 22 years of experience in the integrated
circuit design industry.

HUI LOK YAN

Ms. Hui, age 41, is the Group Financial Controller and Joint
Company Secretary of the Company. She graduated from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in
Business Administration. Ms. Hui is currently a certified public
accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Prior to joining the Group in 2007, she was a manager
of an international public accountancy firm.
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Dear Shareholders,

During Year 2019, consolidated revenue amounted to HK$5,576.0
million, as compared to HK$4,662.0 million in Year 2018. Such
increase was mainly contributed by the transaction volume growth
of the payment processing solutions segment as compared to last
year. Segmental operating profit totaled HK$661.0 million, 90% up
compared to Year 2018. Increase in operating profit of the Group
for Year 2019 was primarily due to (i) the absence of share option
expenses of approximately HK$195.3 million recorded in Year
2018 under the payment processing solutions segment that were
attributable to the share options granted by a subsidiary of the
Company in Year 2018; and (ii) the increase in segmental operating
profit contributed by the payment processing solutions segment
in Year 2019. The Group’s share of results from an associated
company, PAX Global in Year 2019, increased by 22% as compared
to Year 2018. Profit for the year totaled HK$683.0 million as
compared to HK$337.3 million in Year 2018. With regard to our
balance sheet, the total assets as at 31 December 2019 amounted
to HK$8,149.1 million, as compared to HK$6,632.5 million as
at 31 December 2018. Our total assets as at 31 December 2019
included short term bank deposits and cash and bank balances of
HK$4,384.2 million.

The segmental turnover for our payment processing solutions
segment amounted to HK$4,672.6 million, 25% up compared to
last year. Segmental operating profit amounted to HK$696.5 million
as compared to HK$397.0 million in Year 2018. During the vyear,
“Tianjing” (X #% ) risk control system based on expert rules was
officially put into use, and a comprehensive scan was conducted
for all merchants, which optimized the risk management structure
of merchants, through prioritizing quality and risks reduction. As
of the end of December 2019, the number of active domestic
merchants exceeded 3,500,000. On 12 November 2019, 14.01%
of the issued ordinary shares (“VBill Shares”) of VBIill Limited (“VBill
(Cayman)”) (on a fully diluted basis) were allotted to ELECTRUM
B.V. (the “Investor”) at a subscription price of RMB588,000,000.
The Directors are of the view that the subscription provides funding
to our payment processing solutions segment for further business
expansion, thereby reinforcing its comprehensive strength and
growth potential. Besides, we believe that the segment can leverage
on the experience and reputation of the Investor, whose ultimate
beneficial investor is a reputable private fund, to further develop its
business network and to create more business opportunities.
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The rest of our four segments were generating relatively stable
turnover to the Group during the year. The decline in segmental
operating profit from financial solutions segment was mainly due
to an increase in staff cost for increased headcount as compared
to the preceding year. The decline in segmental operating profit
from information security chips and solutions was attributable to
the share option expenses of approximately HK$30.3 million on
share options granted by a subsidiary of the Company in 2019. To
leverage on our strengths in the traditional market, we will continue
to invest in and target new opportunities for product innovation and
business development in the areas of e-commerce, payment and
internet finance.

EFFECT OF COVID-19

In view of the outbreak of the novel coronavirus disease 2019
(COVID-19) (the “epidemic”) in Mainland China since January
2020, the Group has adopted various prevention and control
measures in accordance with the relevant national and local
regulations on epidemic prevention and control to comply with
the national epidemic prevention policies. The Group is closely
monitoring the market situation and continuously evaluating the
impact of the epidemic on the Group’s operation and financial
performance. We observed a lower than usual transaction volume
being processed through its payment processing solutions segment
in January and February 2020, excluding the probable seasonal
fluctuations due to the Lunar New Year holidays, the decline
in transaction volume could have been caused by a decline in
consumer consumption of goods and services in the face of the
epidemic. Given the uncertainties as to the development and
duration of the current epidemic situation, it is difficult to predict
the extent to which the business of the Group may be affected. Up
to the date of this report, the assessment is still in progress. In the
light of the current situation, the local consumption market and
hence the payment processing industry, as well as the Group's
financial performance will inevitably be affected by the epidemic
in the first half of 2020. Nevertheless, we believe that the current
adversity will eventually be overcome with the joint efforts of our
staff.
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Combined with our strong financial position, management
will remain focused on financial and operation disciplines and
take hold of the various opportunities for the Group’s business
growth in Year 2020. On behalf of the Board, we would like
to take this opportunity to express our utmost gratitude to our
customers, bankers, suppliers, business associates and most valued
shareholders for their continuous trust and support to the Group.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Fung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020
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BUSINESS PERFORMANCE
OUTLOOK

AND BUSINESS

Review of business performance of the Group during the Reporting
Year and the Group’s business outlook are disclosed in the section
headed “Business Review” of the Report of the Directors in this
Annual Report.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group reported total assets of
HK$8,149.1 million (2018: HK$6,632.5 million), which were
financed by total liabilities of HK$2,870.6 million (2018:
HK$2,061.2 million) and total equity of HK$5,278.5 million (2018:
HK$4,571.3 million). The net asset value was HK$5,278.5 million
(2018: HK$4,571.3 million). Net assets per share amounted to
HK$1.901 as at 31 December 2019 as compared to HK$1.646 per
share as at 31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had cash and bank balances
of HK$4,384.1 million (2018: HK$2,681.5 million) and short-term
borrowing of HK$5.6 million (2018: HK$10.2 million). The net
cash position as at 31 December 2019 was HK$4,378.5 million
as compared to HK$2,671.3 million as at 31 December 2018. The
gearing ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total capital,
while total debt includes borrowing, lease liabilities and written put
option liability of the Group. The gearing ratio was 12.4% (2018:
0.2%). The gearing ratio is considered healthy and suitable for the
continuing growth of the Group’s business.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND DETAILS OF CHARGES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had bank borrowing of
HK$5.6 million (2018: HK$10.2 million) and banking facilities of
approximately HK$17.8 million (2018: HK$18.2 million). The bank
borrowing was charged at an interest rate of 4.57% per annum
(2018: 5.24%). As at 31 December 2019, the bank borrowing and
banking facilities were secured by the leasehold land and buildings
of a subsidiary of the Company, with a net carrying amount of
HK$2.7 million (2018: HK$2.9 million) and HK$6.4 million (2018:
HK$7.5 million), respectively.

Approximately HK$3,002.7 million, HK$265.6 million, HK$997.0
million, HK$116.2 million and HK$2.6 million of the Group’s cash
balances were denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong Dollar, US
Dollar, Japanese Yen and Macanese Pataca (“MOP”) respectively as
at 31 December 2019.

EBREREBRE

AEERREFERBRR 2 OBARAEEZ EFR
ERAFHREE GRS [EBOE] —HRE-

RBEERHBER

RZE—NF+_A=+—H AEEHEBEEL
1E8,149,100,0007% 7T ( == — J\ £ : 6,632,500,00075
JT) - ABfE B (& 48%8 52,870,600,000/8 7T ( —F— )\
£ :2,061,200,0007% 7T ) f & 2= 48 §H /35,278,500,000
BT (—Z— )\5F :4,571,300,0008 1) » & & FEE
/45,278,500,0007% 7T (== — /\F : 4,571,300,00078
L) M-E—NFE+-_A=1+—FH SREEFEA
1901 MR- N \F+=-_A=+—HEIAEK
1.646787T °

RZZE-NF+ZRA=+—0 FA&EBERE KIRIT
45 #r4,384,100,00078 7T ( —Z — J\4F : 2,681,500,000
7T ) M A2 A48 505,600,000 7T ( — & — )\ & ¢
10,200,000/%87C) s R=ZF—NF+_A=+—HZHE
& F¥4/54,378,500,0008 T MR ZZE—\F+_A
=+—HAIA2,671,300,0008 7L e BB (E L R EIE
BEEBRUARERTE MAGEEREAEE Y
BN HEAEREHRIEEE - EXAELE
—N\F:02%) BABELERERE

B12.4% (==
B WEAREEERTERRE-

BEXRRBREAFE

—hWF+ZA=+—8 TEBERITER
5,600,000/ 7T ( =& — J\4F : 10,200,000/ 7T ) & iR
1T R & #917,800,0007% 7T (=& — )\ : 18,200,000
PETT) c SRITE R TVIRFE M EA57% B (ZE—N
F:524%) RZE—NF+=ZA=+—H 17
EREIBITREURRR —HRB AR ZHE L
MEF (BREFED 5 A2,700,0008 7L (ZF— N
£ 12,900,000 7T ) £2.6,400,00078 7T ( =T — )\ %= :
7,500,000/ 7T) ) {EHE I

—NWEF+-A=Z+—H8 AEEZBRSEHYD
3,002,700,0005% 7T * 265,600,000 JT * 997,000,00075
JC * 116,200,000/ 7T &2,600,00078 7T J3 5 BIlA A R
s T T AEIROBPIHEE (DRPIEE])FIE -



=fEEH (FED BRAR “E-NEFFH

Management Discussion and Analysis

Approximately HK$1,909.6 million, HK$380.3 million, HK$195.8
million, HK$193.2 million and HK$2.6 million of the Group’s cash
balances were denominated in Renminbi, Hong Kong Dollar, US
Dollar, Japanese Yen and MOP respectively as at 31 December
2018.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group had no significant
investment held as at 31 December 2019.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have
any material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no specific plan
for material investments or capital assets as at 31 December 2019.

EXCHANGE RATES EXPOSURE

The Group derives its revenue, makes purchases and incurs
expenses denominated mainly in US Dollars, Renminbi and
Hong Kong Dollars. Currently, the Group has not entered into any
agreements or purchased any instruments to hedge the Group’s
exchange rate risks. Any material fluctuation in the exchange rates
of Hong Kong Dollars, Renminbi or Japanese Yen may have an
impact on the operating results of the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(A) Performance Guarantee Agreement with a customer

In 2015, the Company entered into a performance guarantee
agreement with a customer (the “Performance Guarantee
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Performance Guarantee
Agreement, the Company agreed to provide the customer with
a guarantee in relation to the due and punctual performance of
a service project by a subsidiary of the Group with a surety of
not more than HK$60,000,000 and to indemnify the customer
against any third-party claim of intellectual property right
infringement resulting from the acts of the said subsidiary.
The Performance Guarantee Agreement remained in full force
and effect during the year of 2019. As at 31 December 2019,
the Company did not recognise any liability in relation to the
Performance Guarantee Agreement as the Directors consider
the possibility of reimbursement is not probable.
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(B) Guarantee Agreement with subsidiaries of the Group

In 2018, the Company entered into a guarantee agreement
(“2018 Guarantee Agreement”) with two wholly-owned
subsidiaries (“Subsidiary A” and “Subsidiary B”) in respect
of Subsidiary A and/or Subsidiary B’s payment obligations
against a named manufacturer. Pursuant to the 2018 Guarantee
Agreement, the Company shall guarantee to repay the due and
unsettled debts of Subsidiary A and/or Subsidiary B individually
and/or collectively of up to US$10,000,000 incurred in relation
to such manufacturing orders placed by Subsidiary A and/or
Subsidiary B individually and/or collectively, should any of
them individually and/or collectively cease or fail to honour its
payment obligations.

In respect of the further expansion of organization structure,
credit limit of manufacturing orders was also placed by another
wholly-owned subsidiary (“Subsidiary C”) of the Company
against the aforesaid manufacturer. The Company entered into a
new guarantee agreement dated 5 July 2019 (“2019 Guarantee
Agreement”) with Subsidiary A, Subsidiary B and Subsidiary C.
Pursuant to the 2019 Guarantee Agreement, the Company shall
guarantee to repay the due and unsettled debts of Subsidiary
A, Subsidiary B and/or Subsidiary C individually and/or
collectively of up to US$10,000,000 incurred in relation to
such manufacturing orders placed by Subsidiary A, Subsidiary B
and/or Subsidiary C individually and/or collectively, should any
of them individually and/or collectively cease or fail to honour
its payment obligations.

The 2018 Guarantee Agreement was terminated on 5 July 2019
and the entirety of the Company’s obligations and liability
thereunder, if any, was effectively transferred to the 2019
Guarantee Agreement, subject to the terms and conditions of
the 2019 Guarantee Agreement. As at 31 December 2019, the
Company did not recognise any liability in relation to the 2019
Guarantee Agreement as the Directors consider the possibility
of reimbursement is not probable.
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Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material contingent
liability as at 31 December 2019.
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EMPLOYEES

The total number of employees of the Group as at 31 December
2019 was 2,857. The breakdown of employees by division is as
follows:
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REER-ZZE-NFT_A=+—BZEELHER
2,857 A BIZEPIA DT

Payment processing solutions XNRZPEBIRT R 1,057
Information security chips and solutions BERREER MR 92
Platform operation solutions FRELMRAR 795
Financial solutions TRBRTTER 657
Electronic power meters and solutions BRAEERRBARR 205
Others HAh 12
Corporate office 1D 39

2,857

The Group ensures that its employees’ remuneration packages are
comprehensive and competitive. Employees are remunerated with
fixed monthly income plus annual performance related bonuses.
The Group also operates certain share option schemes for the
purpose of attracting, retaining and motivating the employees,
details are set out in the Share Capital and Share Options section
of the Report of the Directors. The Group also sponsors selected
employees to attend external training courses that suit the needs of
the Group’s businesses.

Disclaimer:
Non-GAAP measures

Certain non-GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles)
measures, such as EBITDA, are used for assessing the Group's
performance. These non-GAAP measures are not expressly
permitted measures under GAAP in Hong Kong and may not
be comparable to similarly titled measures for other companies.
Accordingly, such non-GAAP measures should not be considered as
an alternative to operating income as an indicator of the operating
performance of the Group or as an alternative to cash flows from
operating activities as a measure of liquidity. The use of non-GAAP
measures is provided solely to enhance the overall understanding
of the Group's current financial performance. Additionally, as
the Group has historically reported certain non-GAAP results to
investors, the Group considers the inclusion of non-GAAP measures
provides consistency in our financial reporting.
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WGy

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Group are provision of payment
processing solutions, sales of information security chips and
solutions, provision of platform operation solutions, provision
of financial solutions and sales of electronic power meters and
solutions.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in note 6 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 101.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of dividend for the
year (2018: Nil).

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and in notes 31 and 40 to the consolidated
financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Share Option Scheme of the Company

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
for the purpose of attracting, retaining and motivating talented
employees for the future developments and expansion of the Group.
Eligible participants (the “Participants”) of the Scheme include any
full-time employees, executive and non-executive Directors of the
Company or any subsidiary or associated companies. The Scheme
became effective on 29 April 2011 and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from that date. Further details of the Scheme can be found in the
circular of the Company dated 28 March 2011.

The total number of shares of the Company (the “Shares”) which
may be issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under
the Scheme, and any other share option schemes of the Company
in issue, shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the relevant class
of securities of the Company in issue as at the date of approval of
the Scheme unless the Company obtains a fresh approval from its
Shareholders.

The maximum number of Shares issued and may be issued upon
exercise of all exercised and outstanding options granted to each
Participant shall not in aggregate exceed 1% of the relevant class
of securities of the Company in issue in any 12-month period. Any
further grant of options in excess of the aforesaid 1% limit shall be
subject to the approval of the Shareholders of the Company with
such Participant and his/her associates abstaining from voting.

As at the date of this report, 267,342,983 Shares were available for
issue under the Scheme, representing 9.63% of the total number of
Shares in issue.

The exercise period of the options granted is determinable by the
Directors, commencing on the date of the offer of the options (the
“Offer Date”) and expiring within 10 years therefrom.

There is no minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised and no performance target must be
achieved by the grantee before the option can be exercised.

A share option shall take effect when duly accepted by the grantee
and the Company receives from the grantee a remittance of
HK$1.00 as consideration for the grant.
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The exercise price of an option shall be determined at the discretion
of the Board and shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price
of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the Offer Date, which must be a day on which the Stock
Exchange is open for the business of dealing in securities (“Trading
Day”); (ii) a price being the average of the closing prices of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for
the five Trading Days immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (iii)
the nominal value of a Share.

As at 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 and up to the date of
this report, there was no outstanding share option of the Company
granted under the Scheme. No share option of the Company has
been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Scheme
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

Share Option Scheme of VBill OPCO

VBill OPCO adopted a share option scheme (“VBill OPCO Share
Option Scheme”), which complies with Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules, on 15 January 2018 which became effective on 5 February
2018. The purpose of the VBill OPCO Share Option Scheme
is to enable VBill OPCO to grant options of equity interest of
VBill OPCO (“VBill OPCO Options”) to selected participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential contribution
to VBill OPCO and its subsidiaries (“VBill OPCO Group”). Eligible
participants of the VBill OPCO Share Option Scheme include any
directors, supervisors, general managers and other employees of
any member of VBill OPCO Group. Unless otherwise amended or
terminated, the VBill OPCO Share Option Scheme will be effective
for a period of 5 years from 5 February 2018. Further details of the
VBill OPCO Share Option Scheme can be found in the circular of
the Company dated 19 January 2018.

The total registered capital of VBill OPCO (“VBill OPCO Registered
Capital”) which may be contributed by grantees upon the exercise
of all options to be granted under the VBill OPCO Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of VBill OPCO shall
not in aggregate exceed RMB19,990,000, being 10% of the VBill
OPCO Registered Capital as at the date of approval of the VBill
OPCO Share Option Scheme unless the Company obtains a fresh
approval from the Shareholders.

BhETEERMESENEETE  RETEERR
THz&EeE: (R TAHER (ARBAANKE
BEHBT ([X5R])) BRMERRMERMIIK
TE : ()EERT AR ER S AR ME R
WERMTIRDETEZ OB RGO FEE -

RZZE-N—A—B ZZ-AF+ZA=+—HM
MEEARRE RS MEAQRREZEIRHNR
TR - NBE - NF+-_A=+t—HILF
€ - BEEA R BB AEARIEZAT SR AT S8
BEE

BTNz BRESE
R-F—\F—A+IB BT RA—IRERER
& ([BETT BT E]) - A LmRRIE 175
YR —B—\F = R ARER - FET BT E
B ERERBET TN AT R E 2 B E R BB T I A 2 iB
Bt ([BETTRIEBAIE]) - (ERIREHBETT T REL AT
AR ([BEITRE]) FriF R R AT BEEh B R 2 22
Byl - BT B Bl 2 A B IR 2 ME B
TNEEEAKERRZEMES BF HLER
HEibEE -FRIFRITERT IR L BRIBETT I RBRE
AEZERHAR T \F_AAREHAF -5
BABETT I BAERT 8 2 £ — S F2MARRR
HR—FT-N\F-A+NAAZBEHR-

HEAR A EIRIREE T AR B BT T 2 A Bt
RERARERT B I 2 FrE MBI T M AT 8 A 2 B8
IR MR A (TRETH A EMAR A ) ) 58 & KSR
i AR 19,990,000t  BIFARET T BEE AR A 5T B4t
H EARE T MR AR 2 10% « R FEA A A I R ERS
BIHOAERIERRR ©



The maximum VBill OPCO Registered Capital contributed and to
be contributed upon exercise of the VBill OPCO Options granted
to each participant of the VBill OPCO Share Option Scheme
(including both exercised and outstanding VBill OPCO Options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the VBill OPCO
Registered Capital, unless otherwise approved by the Shareholders
with such participant and his close associates (or his associates if
such participant is a connected person) abstaining from voting. For
VBill OPCO Options granted or to be granted to any substantial
Shareholder, independent non-executive Director, or their respective
associates, the said limit shall be reduced to 0.1% of the VBill
OPCO Registered Capital. Any further grant of VBill OPCO Options
in excess of such limit is subject to Shareholders’ approval at
general meeting, with the relevant participant(s) concerned and all
core connected persons of the Company abstaining from voting.

The exercise period of the VBill OPCO Options granted is to be
determined by the board of directors of VBill OPCO, which shall not
be beyond 5 years from the date of grant.

There is no minimum period for which a VBill OPCO Option
must be held nor any performance targets must be achieved by
a grantee before a VBill OPCO Option can be exercised, subject
to VBill OPCO'’s board of directors’ discretion, on a case-by-case
basis or generally, to impose such conditions, such as minimum
performance targets and other terms as they consider appropriate.

Each grantee shall pay RMB1.00 to VBill OPCO upon acceptance of
the VBill OPCO Options granted.

The subscription price payable by any grantee shall be determined
by the board of directors of VBill OPCO in its absolute discretion
at the time of the grant of the VBill OPCO Option, with reference
to factors which may include the business performance, value of
VBill OPCO Group and the grantee’s individual performance, but in
any event, shall not be less than the net asset value of the relevant
equity interests of VBill OPCO subject to the VBill OPCO Option
calculated based on the latest audited accounts of VBill OPCO.
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The subscription price of VBill OPCO Options granted after the
Company would have resolved to seek a separate listing of VBill
OPCO on the Main Board or Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange or an overseas stock exchange and up to the listing
date of VBill OPCO must be not lower than the new issue price
(if any). In particular, any VBill OPCO Options that would have
been granted during the period commencing six months before the
lodgement of Form A1 (or its equivalent for listing on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange or the overseas stock
exchange) up to the listing date of VBill OPCO would be subject to
this requirement.

The following table sets out the movements of the VBill OPCO
Options during the year ended 31 December 2019:

RARRIZORT KEETT B 2 A £ IR GEMBE S
BHRZXGMATEMREERETN LT R PR
HBETTI B < RIBE T SERAEITE (F) -
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™ A MM AR 2 ERBEIT N B AE TR
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Amount of VBill OPCO Registered Capital subject to the VBill OPCO Options

RETABRERSROBTAERRFSR

Exercise
price
(for every
RMB1.00 in the Outstanding Lapsed/ Outstanding
VBill OPCO as at Granted Exercised cancelled as at
Registered 1 January during during during 31 December
Grantee Date of grant Capital) 2019 the year the year the year 2019
e
(BTEm R-ZE-AF R=B-hE
BATE -A-H ERrE#/ t=A=t-8
AEA REAH AR¥1.007T) RETE FARE FRETHE ¥ RETHE
RMB RMB RMB
AR ARE AR
Mr. Shen Zheng (“Mr. Shen”) 5 February 2018 12.51 13,629,500 - - - 13,629,500
BREEE (TBREE]) “Z-)\¥ZAT®A
Mr. Li Huimin (“Mr. Li") 5 February 2018 12.51 6,814,750 - - - 6,814,750
Regrs((BEE]) T /\F-AAA
Mr. Guo Yi (“Mr. Guo”) 5 February 2018 12.51 6,814,750 - - - 6,814,750
BrAkE ([BEE]D —T-\FZARA
Total: 27,259,000 - - - 27,259,000
A5t




Mr. Shen is a director and the chairman of the board of VBill OPCO
and a director of certain members of the VBill OPCO Group. Mr.
Li is the chief executive officer of VBill OPCO and the supervisor
of a member of the VBill OPCO Group. Mr. Guo is the senior vice
president of VBill OPCO.

The grantees may exercise their VBill OPCO Options within three
years from the date on which the VBill OPCO Share Option Scheme
took effect (i.e. 5 February 2018).

As at the date of this report, VBill OPCO Options in the amount
of RMB27,259,000 remain outstanding, representing 12% of the
enlarged VBill OPCO Registered Capital.

Share Option Scheme of Megahunt

Mega Hunt Microelectronics (Beijing) Limited (“Megahunt”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, adopted
a share option scheme (“Megahunt Share Option Scheme”),
which complies with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules, on 4 July
2018 which became effective on 10 August 2018. Certain terms
of the Megahunt Share Options Scheme were amended by the
Shareholders at general meeting held on 27 June 2019, details of
which are set out in the circular of the Company dated 6 June 2019.
The purpose of the Megahunt Share Option Scheme (as amended) is
to enable Megahunt to grant options of equity interest of Megahunt
(“Megahunt Options”) to selected participants as incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential contribution to Megahunt
and to provide the selected participants with the opportunity to
acquire proprietary interests in Megahunt and to encourage them to
work towards enhancing the value of equity interests in Megahunt
for the benefit of Megahunt and its shareholder(s) as a whole.
Eligible participants of the Megahunt Share Option Scheme include
the directors or senior management of the Company, Megahunt
or its subsidiaries. Unless otherwise amended or terminated, the
Megahunt Share Option Scheme will be effective for a period of 5
years from 10 August 2018.

The total registered capital of Megahunt (“Megahunt Registered
Capital”) which may be contributed by the grantees upon exercise
of all Megahunt Options to be granted under the Megahunt Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of Megahunt
shall not exceed HK$1,500,000, being 10% of the Megahunt
Registered Capital as at the date of approval of the Megahunt Share
Option Scheme, unless the Company obtains a fresh approval from
the Shareholders.
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The maximum Megahunt Registered Capital contributed and to
be contributed upon exercise of the Megahunt Options granted
to each participant of the Megahunt Share Option Scheme
(including both exercised and outstanding Megahunt Options)
in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the Megahunt
Registered Capital, unless otherwise approved by the Shareholders
with such participant and his close associates (or his associates
if such participant is a connected person) abstaining from voting.
For options granted or to be granted to a substantial Shareholder,
an independent non-executive Director, or any of their respective
associates, the said limit is reduced to 0.1% of the Megahunt
Registered Capital. Any further grant of options in excess of such
limit is subject to Shareholders” approval at general meeting, with
the participant concerned and all core connected persons of the
Company abstain from voting.

The exercise period of the Megahunt Options shall be determined
by the board of directors of Megahunt at the time of making the
offer of the Megahunt Options and in any event shall not be beyond
10 years from the relevant date of grant.

Although it is not a general requirement under the terms of
Megahunt Share Option Scheme for any minimum period for which
any Megahunt Option must be held or any performance targets
which must be achieved before any Megahunt Option granted can
be exercised, the board of directors of Megahunt has discretion on a
case-by-case basis or generally to impose such conditions, including
(i) minimum periods for which the Megahunt Option must be held;
and/or (ii) minimum performance targets that must be reached
before the Megahunt Options can be exercised in whole or in part;
and/or (iii) such other terms as may be imposed at the discretion of
the board of directors of Megahunt on the Megahunt Options where
appropriate.

Each grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to Megahunt upon acceptance of
the Megahunt Options granted.

The subscription price payable by any grantee shall be a price
to be determined by the board of directors of Megahunt in its
absolute discretion at the time of the grant of the relevant Megahunt
Options with reference to factors which may include the business
performance, value of Megahunt and performance of the individual
grantee.

AEE12ME A MR R RIEERR R &S 2RER
HEJERIEERBRE (BIEC /TR LA ARTTEIKAIE
EBRE) BITRERE I I AZ &SI IEZEZM
ARG HRIBIKERIEEE MR Z21%  ERR S A1
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RN S L REEREERAIEEE MR
20.1% ° (Rl — 23R B A IR R AV B AR R R A AR
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The subscription price of Megahunt Options granted after the
Company would have resolved to seek a separate listing of
Megahunt on the Main Board or Growth Enterprise Market of the
Stock Exchange or an overseas stock exchange and up to the listing
date of Megahunt must be not lower than the new issue price (if
any). In particular, any Megahunt Options that would have been
granted during the period commencing six months before the
lodgement of Form A1 (or its equivalent for listing on the Growth
Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange or the overseas stock
exchange) up to the listing date of Megahunt would be subject to
this requirement.

The following table sets out the movements of the Megahunt
Options during the year ended 31 December 2019:
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RARRZRT FICAIEZ NI P TR CEMEE
INEHZ B RIT EMEREENRAEE LT BRI
REKMEERRE s RBETNSERNETE
(IF) o LEE - PRIRAZATRAE (SR A FTGEMaL
BINEHFR B L2 BB BN EARGES
JKaEZ £ A IR AR 2 (AR ERIEE B e
TRE ST HUE °

TERFBE-Z—AF+=A=+— Bk
BB 28

Amount of Megahunt Registered Capital subject to the Megahunt Options

ZRNEEBRESROKAEEIMRELE

Exercise
price
(for every
HK$1.00
inthe  Outstanding Outstanding
Megahunt as at Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed asat
Registered 1 January during during during during 31 December
Grantee Date of grant Capital) 2019 the year the year the year the year 2019
TEE RZB-NE
(kiEE R-B-NF +=A
Bl -A-H =t+-8
AR REAH §1.00%7) RETR FARY  FRETHR FRER FRRK RETE
RMB HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
AR® AT oy BT BT BT AL
Mr. Li Li (“Mr. Li") 10 August 2018 1333 1,800,000 - - (1,800,000) - -
Furs ([FxL]) —“E-\FN\ATH
27 June 2019 11.46 - 1,800,000 (1,800,000) - - -
“E-NEAAZTER
Mr. Liu Zhan-li (“Mr. Liu") 10 August 2018 1333 525,000 - - (525,000) - -
EMEE ([81%E]) “E-\$/\RAtA
27 June 2019 11.46 - 525,000 (525,000) - - -
ZZ-NERAZTER
Mr. Yang Lei (“Mr. Yang") 10 August 2018 13.33 525,000 - - (525,000) - -
BEAE(HEE]) —ZE-\FN\ATH
27 June 2019 11.46 - 525,000 (525,000 - - -
“E-NERAZTER
Ms. Song Jie (“Ms. Song") 10 August 2018 1333 150,000 - - (150,000) - -
Rzt ([R&L)) —“Z-\FN\ATH
27 June 2019 11.46 - 75,000 (75,000) - - -
“E-NEAAZTER
Mr. Xu Changjun (“Mr. Xu CJ’) 27 June 2019 11.46 - 675,000 (675,000) - - -
HEERE([REERE]) “E-NEAAC-TER
Mr. Xu Wensheng (“Mr. Xu WS") 27 June 2019 11.46 - 750,000 (750,000) - - -
GRAERE ([HXEEE]) “E-NERAZTLR
Ms. Hui Lok Yan (“Ms. Hui") 27 June 2019 11.46 - 150,000 (150,000 - - -
faaat ([Fat)) —E-NEAAZTER
Total: 3,000,000 4,500,000 (4,500,000) (3,000,000 - -
At

21



22

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Report of the Directors

A

Mr. Li is a director, legal representative and general manager of
Megahunt. Mr. Liu is the technology director of Megahunt. Mr.
Xu CJ is an executive director of the Company. Mr. Xu WS is an
executive director of the Company. Mr. Yang is the deputy general
manager of Megahunt. Ms. Hui is the group financial controller and
joint company secretary of the Company, and director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Song is a director and financial
controller of Megahunt.

On 30 December 2019, the Shareholders approved certain
amendments to the terms of the Megahunt Options granted on
3 June 2019 under the Megahunt Share Options Scheme (as
amended), details of which are set out in the circular of the
Company dated 10 December 2019.

Such Megahunt Options, as amended, became no longer subject
to any vesting restriction and the Grantees could exercise all of the
Megahunt Options within the exercise period, which ends on (i) the
tenth anniversary from the date of grant; or (ii) the date on which
such Megahunt Options cease to be valid, whichever is earlier.

Please refer to note 30 to the consolidated financial statements for
the weighted average fair value of Megahunt Options granted during
the year ended 31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2019 and as at the date of this report, no
Megahunt Option remained outstanding.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders as calculated under the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended) had a deficit of HK$11,207,000
(2018: reserve of HK$27,188,000). The Company’s share
premium account, in the amount of HK$1,290,857,000 (2018:
HK$1,290,857,000) may be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company
to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 236.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold
or redeemed any Shares of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2019.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

CONDENSED SEGMENT RESULTS ANALYSIS
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WBERE
RRER S B A AT

A

Turnover EBITDA’
BXE EBITDA’
2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-NE —T-)N\& “E-hE —E-)\F
Note HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fizx Br FHL T T
Payment processing solutions XNRFREBANE 1 4,672,640 3,744,922 1,160,533 884,448
Information security chips and solutions BEER2OHRERTR 2 290,010 291,567 29,639 26,475
Platform operation solutions FRELERTR 3 196,302 209,636 (11,672) (24,148)
Financial solutions EREANE 4 302,223 311,549 (6,081) 12,054
Electronic power meters and solutions B iEEmREARR 5 116,277 105,347 (12,232) (23,920)
Others i - - (11,461) (12,262)
Segmental results ﬁiﬁ § e 5,577,452 4,663,021 1,148,726 862,647
Less: Inter-segment turnover e NEREEE (1,471) (1,067) - -
Total A& 5,575,981 4,661,954 1,148,726 862,647
Depreciation e (384,834) (297,496)
Amortisation B R (112) (434)
Write off of property, plant and equipment MENZ BERSE (94,701) -
Fair value gains/(losses) on financial asses RAYEF ARG SHEEL
at fair value through profit or loss ’&Wﬁuiﬁé (B#B) B 22,215 (16,273)
Employees’ incentive programmes of subsidiaries {82 ]2 & 8 12 EyzT & C (30,303) (201,447)
Segmental operating profit PRELER 660,991 346,997
Unallocated other income R EEMBPA 8,624 5,145
Unallocated corporate expenses RABRCERX (91,442) (93,641)
Operating profit 578,173 258,501
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT EBAZREWER
2019 2018
—B-NE “2-N\E
Note HK$'000 HKS'000
ik TEn TEL
Revenue A A 5,575,981 4,661,954
Cost of sales HEKA C (4,254,553) (3,404,203)
Gross profit EH 1,321,428 1,257,751
Other income EA B 116,842 43,894
Other gains/(losses), net Hinlvzs / (B518) 58 B 22,040 (16,922)
Selling expenses HEHY C (82,266) (96,829)
Administrative expenses THER . C (720,768) (687,992)
Employees’ incentive programmes of subsidiaries TB AR 288 RE C (30,303) (201,447)
Credit impairment loss EERESR C (48,800) (39,954)
Operating profit bl 578,173 258,501
Finance costs AR s (10,245) (89)
Share of results of investments accounted for using ElEABREA R RE % D
the equity method 208,695 171,753
Profit before income tax WP {GBAT R A 776,623 430,165
Income tax expense FEHAY (93,656) (92,875)
Profit for the year FERERN 682,967 337,290
Profit attributable to: R
— Owners of the Company —ARAERA 569,111 278,175
~ Non-controlling interests —¥iEhER 113,856 59,115
682,967 337,290
Earnings per share for profit attributable to L NNGIE PN A HKS per share HKS per share
the owners of the Company: BN zBRER: R FRET
Basic EAR 0.205 0.100
Diluted %% 0.190 0.095

#

Represents earnings/(losses) before interest expenses, taxes, depreciation and

amortisation, and excludes write off of property, plant and eﬂuipment, fair

value gains/(losses) on financial assets at fair value through pro

it or loss and

employees’ incentive programmes of subsidiaries.

fEARFIEXH A - TEREENEMN S (BE) kT
BRI W MR BATHER ARG 2 SREE

ZRTFEWE () kB QR B it E .
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET HRGAEERER
As at 31 December
Rt=A=+-
2019 2018
ZE-hE —EN\F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Birst TR FET
ASSETS BE
Investment properties and property, plant and equipment & 5%%&%% B RRE E 385,834 716,768
Leasehold land HELH - 30,490
Right-of-use assets Eﬁ HEE F 88,501 -
Intangible assets BIEE 2,065 1,884
Deferred income tax assets RIEFGHEAE 119 -
Investments accounted for using the equity method Py Sy INPEd - o G 2,106,737 1,931,188
Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income BAVEFAEMZARG SREE - 895
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BAVEARG EREE H 289,918 273,745
Inventories e [ 95,651 162,275
Trade and bills receivables [EUCRR R BN R E J 212,174 149,178
Other financial assets at amortised cost and other current assets REBENATECEMEREER J
AMRHEE 168,715 131,625
Loan receivables BRER K 385,128 536,295
Amounts due from investments accounted for using the equity method  JEMUA R )5 A BR 2 12 & 2 5B L 19,970 15,116
Current income tax recoverable Al BN ER AT 1S 2 10,007 -
Short-term bank deposits S IRIT I 147 1,583
Cash and bank balances ReRiETES M 4,384,102 2,681,475
Total assets BEAE 8,149,068 6,632,517
EQUITY i
Capital and reserves attributable to owners of the Company ADREBAREERR R
Share capital RA 6,942 6,942
Reserves [k 4,680,106 4,371,271
4,687,048 4378213
Non-controlling interests g 591,464 193,062
Total equity BEAH 5,278,512 4,571,275
LIABILITIES 8
Written put option liabilit ELRABEARE 0 683,908 -
Deferre(f income tax |1ab1{|ties BIEFMGEHAR 522 109
Trade and bills payables ENERRENS N 439,287 251,043
Payables for payment processing solutions business Eﬁ?&%?@ﬁ#ﬁ%ﬁx%i‘kz&ﬁ N 599,389 266,710
Other payabﬁes and accruals H{th A B [ ERT R N 1,029,432 1,376,874
Amounts due to investments accounted for using the equity method ﬁEﬁLM’éE/XJ\EEZ&ﬁZMIE L 21,226 114,190
Current income tax liabilities AEEHAaRE 31,905 42,069
Lease liabilities HEEE F 59,310 -
Borrowing B 5,577 10,247
Total liabilities BELAE 2,870,556 2,061,242
Total equity and liabilities EERABAE 8,149,068 6,632,517
HKS$ per share HK$ Ber share
& T FRAT
Net assets per share BREEFE 1.901 1.646

F'*EEIIV\QEE' "5 %%%

For the year ended 31 December

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

BET-A=1+-HLEE

2019 2018

—E-NF —Z-N\&

HK$'000 HK$'000

TRL FET

Net cash generated from operating activities REZDHERLTFE 1,254,462 698,954
Net cash used n investing acivites | ______ AR 005586 ____ ues9 _

Net cash generated from financing activities MERDRERERE 640,466 15,460

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RERBSEEYENTEE 1,089,342 244,423

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FNLRENRTFEY 2,681,475 2,541,482

Exchange loss on cash and cash equivalents ReRBEeSBYZIELER (58,250) (104,430)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year ERZAERASESEN 3,712,567 2,681,475




FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the year ended 31 December 2019 (“YEAR 2019”), the
consolidated turnover of Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) amounted
to HK$5,576.0 million, representing an increase of 20% when
compared with the year ended 31 December 2018 (“YEAR 2018").
Profit for the year totaled HK$683.0 million as compared to
HK$337.3 million in YEAR 2018.

With regard to the balance sheet, the total assets as at 31 December
2019 amounted to HK$8,149.1 million, when compared with
HK$6,632.5 million as at 31 December 2018. As at 31 December
2019, net current assets amounted to HK$3,120.1 million, when
compared with HK$1,606.1 million as at 31 December 2018.

SEGMENT PERFORMANCE REVIEW

(1) Payment processing solutions
Key performance indicators

HERE
EBITDA’
I - BB R Ak

Turnover*

EBITDA?

Write off of property,
plant and equipment

Employees’ incentive programme  —EIf{ & A F 2
of a subsidiary & B #ZEhat &
Operating profit &R

* Turnover from external customers

: Represents earnings before interest expenses, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation, excludes write off of property, plant and equipment and
employees’ incentive programme of a subsidiary

Segmental turnover amounted to HK$4,672.6 million, as
compared to HK$3,744.9 million in YEAR 2018. By end
of YEAR 2019, there were over 3,500,000 active domestic
merchant and the monthly transaction volume in December
2019 exceeded RMB120 billion. Segmental operating profit
amounted to HK$696.5 million, 75% up as compared to YEAR
2018. The increase in segmental operating profit is primarily
attributable to (i) the absence of share option expenses of
approximately HK$195.3 million under the payment processing
solutions segment attributable to the share options granted
in February 2018; and (ii) the volume growth of the payment
processing solutions segment in YEAR 2019.
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Bt #5El R

RBE_T-NFT_A=1T—BLFE (2T
FED mERE(PE)ARAR ([RAF]) RE
MEAR ([AREE]) 24rE 2 25/25,576,000,000
BT BEE-_ZT-N\FE+_A=+—HILFE
(ZE—NEE])EMN20% - FREFNALE
683,000,000/ 7T+ 1 — = — /\ & [Z Bl 4337,300,000
BT e

REEBBEAmME RN_T—hF+_A=+—8"
B EAEBS, 149,100,000 7T MR - — \F
+ = A=+—HEIA6,632,500,0008 L - R_ZE— N,
F+ZA=1T—H R"EEEFEA3,120,100,000
B - mRZE-NF+A=+—RHHE A
1,606,100,00078 7T °

DEREERE
(1) ENARBEEMRIR
T EXRBIETE
2019 2018 Change
= —E-N\F )
HK$’000 HK$'000 +/(-)
FET FHET
4,672,640 3,744,922 +25%
1,160,533 884,448 +31%
94,701 - N/A 1~ A
- 195,300 N/A i A
696,466 397,001 +75%

* REINDEPZERER

EARFTAE S BUR - T E LB AN TERIEH
S BB MR A K — M B R B 2 (B B 2EEhaT

El

DABE ¥ 5B 54,672,600,0008 T T —Z
— J\4EJE A3,744,900,0008 L A —ZE— N,
FEROERE NP S #3,500,000F
MR- NF+-_AZAEXRSEHEBAR
#1,20018 7T ° 7 8 48 & i F1| £696,500,000
B BT — \FEEGIN75% - p L
BRIEIMDEEFARNRZAR T —N\F
ZAREMEREEENSTNR S EEMER
FEREDFPEIET 2 BER#EREZ49195,300,000/%
RN ZE-NFEINRZPEREHE RS

7T
EnRHEEER-
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(2) Information security chips and solutions

Key performance indicators

Turnover* 3R
EBITDA? EBITDA?
Employees’ incentive programme  —fEff @A A 2

of a subsidiary 1B B 82 Eh=t 2
Operating (loss)/profit e (B8, 8 M

* Turnover from external customers

: Represents earnings before interest expenses, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation, and excludes employees’ incentive programme of a
subsidiary

During the year, segmental turnover amounted to HK$290.0
million as compared to HK$291.6 million in YEAR 2018.
Segmental operating loss amounted to HK$3.1 million, as
compared to segmental operating profit of HK$19.7 million in
YEAR 2018. Decline in segmental operating profit was mainly
due to share option expenses of approximately HK$30.3
million under the information security chips and solutions
segment attributable to the share options granted in 2019
(Please refer to the circulars of the Company dated 6 June 2019
and 10 December 2019 for further details.).

2 ERRETARMBRER

FEXHIEE
2019 2018 Change
—E-NE —T—-N\F b5y

HK$’000 HK$’000 +(-)

FET FET
290,010 291,567 1%
29,639 26,475 +12%
30,303 6,147 +393%
(3,098) 19,699 N/A i A

* KREINBEFZEXRE

AR E S BUR - FERMEA AN RTEE
—FEIM B AR 2 B 2Rt &)

FR - 558 % 5 5290,000,0008 7T M=
— J\4E & /5291,600,000/8 7T ° D M & & B 18 &
3,100,000 70 M—Z— \FEAAHBLE R
F119,700,000/ 7T » DAL LR FIR D I EZ BN
R-E-NFREBREEENEELDNA
MERR T R HRIE T 2 B IRER 2 £930,300,000
BT GE—THERL2MARRRAMAZZE 1
FARARNBRZE-NF+ZA+THM@EEK-) -



(3) Platform operation solutions

Key performance indicators

Turnover* R

EBITDA? EBITDA?

Fair value gains/(losses) on BAFEFABRZ
financial assets at fair value TREEZATE
through profit or loss Wz, (EE)

Operating profit/(loss) rEm s, (B1E)

* Turnover from external customers

: Represents earnings before interest expenses, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation, and excludes fair value gains/(losses) on financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss

In YEAR 2019, we continued to provide high-quality and
efficient supporting services, such as product development,
business operation and system maintenance, to China Mobile
Fintech, the IVR Base of China Mobile and the Animation
Base of China Mobile. During the year, segmental turnover
amounted to HK$194.8 million as compared to HK$208.6
million in YEAR 2018. Segmental operating profit amounted
to HK$5.1 million, as compared to segmental operating loss
HK$42.7 million in YEAR 2018. Segmental operating profit was
primarily attributable to the fair value gains on financial assets
through profit or loss amounted to HK$22.2 million during the
year as compared to fair value losses of HK$16.3 million in
YEAR 2018.
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FEBEEMRAR

FEXRHEIEE

2019 2018 Change
—E-hE —B-N\F 25
HK$’000 HK$’000 +/()

FE&T FET
194,831 208,569 7%
(11,672) (24,148) N/A T~ F
22,215 (16,273) N/A i A
5,130 (42,696) N/A i F

* REINDEPZEER

fOEARRMEXH BB MEREENBEN KTE
FRATEFARSZ SMEEZ AT EWE (B
)

REZZB—NEFE BMEBEATEESR - TEH
IVRELH &2 P2 BhEh 8 ALt iR B E = ey S5 AR
% MERMAE EBBEREREE TN D
$8 2 585194,800,0008 7T T —F— \FZ A
208,600,000/ 7T ° 0 FBAL & % F) 45,100,000/
7L M=E—\FERIAS L EEE42,700,000
BT DR E N EEZHRFRNTABRZ S
BB E 2 A EUW S A22,200,0008 7T T =
— N\FE AE15 A T{EEE16,300,000%8 7T ©
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(4) Financial solutions

(5)

Key performance indicators

Turnover* R
EBITDA EBITDA
Operating (loss)/profit e (BR) /s h

* Turnover from external customers

During the year, segmental turnover amounted to HK$302.2
million, as compared to HK$311.5 million in YEAR 2018.
Segmental operating loss amounted to HK$9.6 million, as
compared to segmental operating profit of HK$11.8 million in
YEAR 2018. Decrease in segmental operating profit was mainly
due to an increase in staff cost for increased headcounts during
the year.

Electronic power meters and solutions
Key performance indicators

Turnover* R
EBITDA EBITDA
Operating loss KEER

* Turnover from external customers

Segmental turnover amounted to HK$116.3 million, 10%
increase as compared to YEAR 2018. Increase in turnover was
mainly due to increase in shipment level as compared to YEAR
2018. Segmental operating loss amounted to HK$15.2 million,
as compared to HK$26.4 million in YEAR 2018. Various
measures were in place to streamline costs and improve
operating efficiency.

(@) EBBRT R

FEXRHIEE

2019 2018 Change
—E-hEF —E-N\F poE)
HK$’000 HK$'000 +/(-)

FET FAET
302,223 311,549 -3%
(6,081) 12,054 N/A i A
(9,606) 11,776 N/A i A

* REINDEPZERER

RARFE - 538 E %5 /£302,200,0008 7T+ i1 —
Z— \FEZ8IA311,500,0008 7T » 7 84L& &5 18
$©H8/49,600,000/8 T M—Z— \FEAAHHE
#4205 111,800,000/ 7T © 73 FE AL & AR A T

TEMNFRABUE NS E TRAIE TR

BRI BERRBASE

FEXHIEEZ

2019 2018 Change
—E-hEF —E-N\EF a)
HK$’000 HK$’000 +/(-)

FET FET
116,277 105,347 +10%
(12,232) (23,920) N/A i A
(15,201) (26,424) N/A i A

* REINDEPZEEER

PDAEETEA116,300,0008 0 BT — \FE
EIN0% - & HFBEMIEZERNEHEER=-F
— J\FEIEIMFTEL - 5 F8 4L & B 18 415,200,000
BT m=E— N\FEAI526,400,00078 7T ° B
B IE S e LARB A AR S IR = A R -



OVERALL FINANCIAL RESULTS AND POSITION

(A)

(B)

©

Revenue

The consolidated turnover amounted to HK$5,576.0 million,
representing an increase of 20% over YEAR 2018. Such
increase was mainly contributed by increase in segmental
turnover of our payment processing solutions segment. Please
also refer to Notes (1) to (5) above on segmental performance.

Other income and other gains/(losses), net

Increase in other income was due to increase in interest income
and subsidy income during the year. Increase in other gains/
(losses), net mainly resulted from an increase in fair values
gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in
YEAR 2019.

Cost of sales and operating expenses

Increase in cost of sales was primarily due to (i) write-off of
property, plant and equipment of HK$94.7 million and (ii)
increase in commission paid to merchant recruitment agents
under the payment processing solutions segment, which was in
line with the increase in segmental turnover.

Increase in administrative expenses during YEAR 2019 was
primarily due to the increase in wages and salaries. Share
option expenses of approximately HK$30.3 million in YEAR
2019 was attributable to the share options granted under the
information security chips and solutions segment while the
share option expenses of approximately HK$201.4 million in
YEAR 2018 was attributable to the share options granted under
the payment processing solutions segment and information
security chips and solutions segment.

Credit impairment loss was primarily due to provision for
impairment loss of receivables of HK$4.7 million under
the electronic power meters and solutions segment; and
impairment loss on loan receivables of HK$44.1 million under
the micro-lending business of the payment processing solutions
segment.

=fEEH (FED BRAR
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A) WA

4R A & EEE A5,576,000,0008 70 B — T — )\ F
FEIEIN20% - BRI EBHAR I MR FEER
RFRDIEZ DEBE R IMATR - B2 £
M EG) 2 D BRI -

(B) HtWAREMBKE  (BHE)FHE

Ho A YA IE 0 T B 70 A R ) B B BRI A
20 Efhikas, (BER) FREIEMEEAR —F
—NEFEEZEAFEAANBR . EREEZ DT
(El G pIIE

© HERFREEME

SHE AL INE E RPN OMIETE BB K&
94,700,000/8 7T + LA R (i) S5 22 B R B AR IR T
ROENBERPREXIMNOMSEM 1y
mEEEEm—%

ZE-NFE TRERAENDEZHRIER
FEEN-RZE-NFENERERZOA
30,300,000 7T - WEENE B L BN RER
FESBETHRONERE M-S \FE
B B8 A% B <2 A1 49 £201,400,00078 7T TH57 IR
YRR EEBAF RS IEREELENA RE
SRS FEIA T AR A0 B AR -

CEREBENEEMNERTEER MRS
RNTRIE T 2 PRI R E B 1R 4,700,000
T RENRZERFERFRSEE /) EE
SRETS 2 FEYE FOR(E E51844,100,00078 7T ©
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(D)

(E)

(F)

(G)

Share of results of investments accounted for using the
equity method

The Group shares the results of PAX Global Technology Limited
(“PAX Global”), an associated company of the Company, the
shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

As an ordinary shareholder of Cloopen Group Holding Limited
(“Cloopen”), an associated company of the Group, the Group’s
share of loss exceeded its interest in the ordinary shares of
Cloopen, and there was no overall financial impact on the
consolidated income statement from the investment for the
year.

Investment properties and property, plant and
equipment

Balance mainly represented fixed assets of payment processing
solutions and electronic power meter and solutions segments.

Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

From 1 January 2019, upon the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases,
leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding
liabilities at the date at which the leased asset is available for
use by the Group. Comparatives for YEAR 2018 has not been
restated, as permitted under the specific transition provisions in
the standard.

Investments accounted for using the equity method
Balance mainly represented the Group’s interests in PAX
Global. As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of the Group’s
approximately 33.1% effective interest in PAX Global was
approximately HK$1,328.6 million and the fair value of the
investment was lower than its carrying value. An impairment
test was performed to determine the recoverable amount of
the investment. The recoverable amount, which was assessed
by an independent valuer on a value-in-use basis using the
discounted cash flow model, exceeds the carrying value as at
31 December 2019.

(D)

(B)

(F)

(G)

B BEEARZREZEE

REE AL T2 A AT E SRR
RAT (TEEER - ERORBS L) 2 %

==
o

{E%Cloopen Group Holding Limited ( [ Cloopen |)
(RAKEZIERR]) 2 EBAARR AL E
{hESTERBBE 7 Cloopen I ik« #a - Mz BI%
BRAFEHGEEWRRTERBU BT E -

RENERNE BERSRE

EHREZEINRGEBBATRUALBRE
EmMBRTRDBZEEEE -

EREEERHEEAR

BT NF—A—BERKBEVIERELER
FreSEHEZ R HEAHEEE A HAKEE
Rz AR AEREEE MRS - REAIF
RS TE BRI RT  WEES| —F— \FE
H LB o

DEREARZERE
ERIBEAEEREBEREIZER R_F
—NF+_A=+—HB AEEREBERXY
33.1%E R Em 2 A F1EEL 51,328,600,00074
T i E A FERNEREE GETTRERR
EfEEEREZAKEEE RZE—NF+=
R=+—8" ;A hEMZFEREERENE
WHAMIBRSREEAFE 2 RESHEE
BRMEE-
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The Group's effective interest in the ordinary shares of Cloopen,
calculated based on all issued and outstanding ordinary shares
of Cloopen which are held by the Group, was 50.5%. As at
31 December 2019, the Group’s share of loss of Cloopen
exceeded its interest in the ordinary shares of Cloopen, and
there was no overall financial impact on the consolidated
income statement from the investment for the year. As at 31
December 2019, the carrying amount of the Group’s interest
in the ordinary shares of Cloopen was zero and the fair value
of the Group’s interest in the ordinary shares of Cloopen was
approximately HK$507.3 million.

The Group is optimistic about the future prospects of PAX
Global and Cloopen and will continue to demonstrate
prudence and resilience in assessing its investment strategy
towards the enhancement of shareholders’ value. Details of the
performance of these investments are set out in Note 23 to the
consolidated financial information.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The balance represented (i) the fair value of the Group’s interest
in the Convertible Series C Preferred Shares of Cloopen of
HK$119.6 million; (ii) the fair value of the Group’s interest
in the Convertible Series D Preferred Shares of Cloopen of
HK$46.5 million; (iii) the fair value of trading securities listed in
Hong Kong of HK$1.7 million; and (iv) the fair value of interest
in a venture capital fund of HK$122.1 million.

Inventories

The amount mainly represented inventories of electronic power
meters and solutions segment and information security chips
and solutions segment. During the year, HK$5.5 million was
recorded for provision on inventories with respect to slow-
moving and obsolete stocks.

(H

U]

~
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R N E B FTRFCloopen® #BE 31T R B TEINE
FAEETE - REER Cloopen? BB E B A
50.5% c R_ZE—NF+_A=+—H FEEE
{5 Cloopen/&5 1842 1B H 72 Cloopen & 38 A% 7 # 4 -
2B A AN [E B4R 6 W < I B A8 A 75
FE-RN_T-NF+_A=Z+—8 AEER
Cloopen& ik 7 #mRHEAS  MAEER
Cloopenz & if % 2 ez A F{E 4 £507,300,000
HITo

REE Y E Z R Cloopen#) AR R AT R FFLEE
RS WHEESRER BTG ERERE
VAMRTHBCRB(E - A S RERBENFHBRR
A MIEERMIE23 -

BAFEFABEZEZEREE
HEEATE (A S B R Cloopen CRFIAJIAARE AR
Z REEE A F{E119,600,00078 7T ¢ (i) A 5 B 7
Cloopen DZEFI|AJ# AR B E IR 2 #m i 2 FE
46,500,0007% 7T ; (iR BB LMEEZHFHAT
{E1,700,000/8 7T : M(WR B E S 2 A F
E122,100,0007 7T °

RrE

ST ERERETEER MRS ROEURE
BLEGHRBRAFRDENGEE -FR- 515
5,500,000/ 7L AVEF 8 R B HIE T 2 7 E#HE -
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(J) Trade and bills receivables, other financial assets at

amortised cost and other current assets

() BURRAREWRE BZBERASNTEZ
HtteRMEERHMURBEE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Trade receivables (Note (i)(a)) FEWBRFR (B3 (@) 210,103 148,173
Bills receivables (Note (i)(b)) FEW =R (HaEi)b)) 16,922 11,468
Less: provision for impairment of A R IR B B
receivables (14,851) (10,463)
212,174 149,178
Other receivables, prepayments and H o e U IE AR A iR @
deposits (Note (ii)) (Bt et i) 168,715 131,625
Total CEl 380,889 280,803
Note (i): Hata) -

(@) The Group's credit terms to trade debtors normally range from 0 to 180
days. The ageing analysis of the trade receivables primarily based on
the relevant invoice dates is as follows:

@ A% l*ié‘?féf%%?%/\ZF%Hﬁ EEOI180EI 0
% o TRBEARER A Y RAPRFERE ML T :

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FE T FET

Current to 90 days BIEAZ90H 166,857 109,685
91 to 180 days 91&180H 11,831 2,919
181 to 365 days 181%2365H 4,910 8,335
Over 365 days 3658 LA E 26,505 27,234
210,103 148,173

Increase in balances aged from current to 90 days was mainly due to
increase in account receivable balances under information security
chips and solutions segment.

(b) Bills receivables belonged to the information security chips and
solutions segment and electronic power meters and solutions segment.

Note (ii):
The increase in balance was mainly due to an increase in other receivables

from the exercise of share options under information security chips and
solutions segment.

FRECT FENHE00R 2 B MME R HIMERR R
R ERRTT R DRI T 2 REUYBR R ASERIE AP ER -

b BREERBRESLZ2CRRBRTESBURE

BeRtREMRBAT 7%/ =l

Bt Gi) -

REERIBIMEZARRBITEEE L 2T RERT RN R
BB R 2 LA R MK R IR DA B



(K) Loan receivables

(L)

Loan receivables are amounts due from customers under the
payment processing solutions segment in the ordinary course of
business, unsecured and primarily denominated in RMB.

The ageing analysis of loan receivables based on the payment
due date is as follows:

=fEEH (FED BRAR “E-NEFFH
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K) FEWERR
R E TR A BEEBIEPRIBEIN R HRIE
R RO BIA T RWEPHFIR  BRFUER
BEAREEAARKE-.

RBZEIN A 2 BRE KRR O T -

2019 2018

—E-NF —T-N\F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FET

Current B HA 369,971 553,676
1 to 3 months past due BEH—Z=1EA 24,659 9,365
Over 3 months past due BEA={EA LA L 33,738 6,061
Loan receivables, gross R E Fh 4B 5a 428,368 569,102

Less: provision for impairment of W W E SR 2 R AR

loan receivables (43,240) (32,807)

Loan receivables, net JEWE RFEE 385,128 536,295
Non current JEBNHA - 479
Current B EA 385,128 535,816
385,128 536,295

Amounts due from/to investments accounted for using
the equity method

The amounts due from/to investments accounted for using the
equity method mainly represent receivables from/payables
to PAX Global and Cloopen and its subsidiaries as at 31
December 2019. Amounts due from/to investments accounted
for using the equity method are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

L BY BEUEREARZREZRE

FEUL,FEFT LA E A BR 2 I E 2 RIBE BIER
—T-NFHZA=T—AER ENEEEK
A K Cloopen I E Ml BB /A &) 2 5/ 78 « FEURFEF LA
B EANRZREZFIERERT 2B RIRE
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(M) Cash and bank balances M) BRERBITEE

34

As at 31 December 2019, total cash and bank balances of the
Group represent cash at bank and on hand of HK$2,958.3
million, bank deposits of HK$754.3 million and a restricted
bank balance of HK$671.5 million.

In accordance with the notice issued by the Payment and
Settlement Department of the People’s Bank of China (the
“PBOC"), effective from 14 January 2019, all customer reserve
accounts held by the third-party payment institutions were to be
cancelled and the customer reserves were to be deposited in a
dedicated deposit account maintained centrally by a designated
agency. The customer reserve account is non-interest bearing.
As of 31 December 2019, funds deposited in the customer
reserve account was amounting to HK$671.5 million. Transfers
of funds under this bank account are governed under certain
measures implemented by the PBOC and hence these customer
reserves are restricted in nature.

Increase in cash and bank balances was mainly due to net cash
generated from operating activities and proceeds from deemed
disposal of shares of subsidiaries.

R-E—NF+_A=+—8 rEEBELRIR
1THEE R B RRIERTT I F 88 3R £2,958,300,0007%
7T ~ $R1T1F57754,300,00078 7T N F PR HISR 1745 4
671,500,000 7T

BEPEARRBIT((FRARBIT IHEE
FEMEARM B S -AF-A+EAR $
A SRERENAAREEN SRS SR
- ARPHENSESERTFHRNIETEENER
GFREPH -BEENESERETHAE HEZ
T-NE+_A=+—0 EREEFENEE
FHE % 5671,500,000/8 7T ° :ZR1TERF R E
SHESPEAARRITERNS THEEES &
IZERFHENSAE FZRE)-

Re MRTTEMRIEB N EZHRELERBER
EFRRAREHENE QTR MERE-



(N) Trade and bills payables, payables for payment
processing solutions business and other payables and

accruals
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EARREEMRE XAXZEEBRE
REB 2 BAREUR L MENRERE

IE

~

2019 2018
—E-hE —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$’000
TR FHET
Trade payables (Note (i)(a)) &R R (BTt (i)@)) 438,993 247,878
Bills payables (Note (i)(b)) e (Bt b)) 294 3,165
Payables for payment processing XNRGEBBRFTREBZ
solutions business (Note (ii) FESTFRIB (M) 599,389 266,710
Other payables and accruals (Note (iii) oAb FETFRIE & e+ /1A
(Bt i) 1,029,432 1,376,874
Total CEll 2,068,108 1,894,627
Note (i): Aata :

(@)  The credit period granted by the suppliers ranges from 0 to 180 days.

The ageing analysis of the trade payables primarily based on invoice

date was as follows:

@ BHERRTZEEHROEIS0E TS - TEREH
FEHH EABRFEREDTIT :

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT FHET

Current to 90 days ENEAZ90H 402,025 205,694
91 to 180 days 91%2180H 1,859 2,663
181 to 365 days 181%2365H 24,544 17,774
Over 365 days 3658 A E 10,565 21,747
438,993 247,878

Increase in trade payables aged between current to 90 days was
mainly due to increase in outstanding balances on commission
payable under the payment processing solutions segment.

Changes in trade payables aged between 181 to 365 days and
over 365 days were mainly due to the outstanding balances
under the electronic power meters and solutions segment.

(b)  Bills payables belonged to the electronic power meters and solutions

segment.

- BRENTEHEIR 2 EBARFEMEZHR
XNRZRGEIBRRDES PR TENAERE
BERIB AT

—  BREANT181HE365H K365H A L2 FERERER
BHEFEANERTEERMMBEATRSIEE
TARIEEEBATE

b ENEERBEREEFEERRBRIESE-

35



HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Report of the Directors

A

Note (ii): ez (i) -
This balance represents payables to merchants for the payment processing BRBHRIER XN R P RIERATT REBENEP 2508
solutions business. The amounts are generally due for settlement with these RSB - RI0RNIBREZERPETHEE

customers within 30 days.

Note (iii): Bt et Gii) -

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTHAT THET

Accrued staff costs and pension obligations* fEt B TRA RIS B IE* 287,402 273,934

Deposits Re 62,250 84,556

Receipt in advance from customers** TR R P 2 FRIR** 73,389 186,467

Advance from merchant recruitment agents** REREEERIEBRR 370,337 519,935

Others*** b e 236,054 311,982

1,029,432 1,376,874

*  Balance represented accrued staff costs, pension obligations and year- * EHMEREET B TR RIS BAEARFRIEAL
end bonus.

**  The decrease in receipt in advance from customers and advance from o FEEWEE P 2 U KR B R P RIR B FURD
merchant recruitment agents was mainly due to decrease in advances TERARBXNRZEREFBRTRA BB THEL K
and guarantees received from merchants and agents under the payment RIZWERZ BRI ARTE 2R P E -
processing solutions segment.

** The decrease was mainly due to decrease in other payables on fixed oo SR ATYE R N EE B S 2 B RN IR RS
assets acquisition and other accrued handling fees payable under the R BRIBFRT RO PATRNEMBEA FEERD

payment processing solution segment. ES



(O) Written put option liability

On 24 September 2019, the Company, Mr. Shen Zheng
(“Shen”), Mr. Li Huimin (“Li”), Mr. Xue Guangyu (“Xue”)
and Ms. Ge Xiaoxia (“Ge”) (collectively the “Management
Shareholders”), ELECTRUM B.V. (the “VBill Investor”), VBill
Limited (“VBill (Cayman)”) and VBill Payment Co., Ltd (“VBill
OPCO”) (collectively the “VBill Contractual Parties”) entered
into a second amendment and restatement agreement to amend
and restate the Original Subscription Agreement (capitalised
terms as defined in the Company’s announcement dated 24
September 2019, the Original Subscription Agreement as
amended and restated is referred to as the “2nd Amended
Subscription Agreement”). Pursuant to the 2nd Amended
Subscription Agreement, the VBill Investor has agreed to
subscribe for new shares of VBill (Cayman) (“VBill Shares”) at
the subscription price of RMB588,000,000. Immediately before
completion of the 2nd Amended Subscription Agreement, VBill
(Cayman) was wholly-owned by the Company. Completion
of the 2nd Amended Subscription Agreement took place on
12 November 2019 and immediately after completion and
as at the date of this report, VBill (Cayman) is owned as to
approximately 85.99% by the Company and approximately
14.01% by the VBill Investor.

Pursuant to the shareholders’ agreement entered into among
the VBill Contractual Parties, VBill (Cayman) granted a put
option (“Put Option”), whereby the VBill Investor can request
VBill (Cayman) to repurchase, redeem and/or cancel all the
VBill Shares of the VBill Investor at its discretion under certain
conditions at an exercise price of RMB588,000,000 plus 8.0%
interest per annum. As a result of this transaction, a put option
liability of HK$683,908,000 is recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet based on the present value of the exercise price
of RMB588,000,000 plus 8.0% interest per annum, and on the
assumption that the Put Option will be redeemable after 3 years
from the completion date. Further details are set out in Note 35
to the consolidated financial information.

=fEEH (FED BRAR “E-NEFFH

Report of the Directors

e AR

EHRHHEES
RZZE—NFNAAZ+MB  NAF] - HEE
A (TEREAED)  Bagutd ([BE4E]) &
HFEERE([BEEDEREREZLT ([BX
T]) (WA TEEREMRR]) - ELECTRUM
B.V. ([VBill#& &% ]) - VBill Limited ([VBill
(Cayman) 1) FMBEfT IS BR AR ([BETT
1) (BBATVBIIAH T RIS E ZxE
IR ENBHRAMET R ENRRE R (R
ARRHBAZZT—NFNLA-+THEAHA
MHRTARE  SEFTRELANRAE HES
BIEZRKETRERE]) BEBEFZR
RIEETRE WS VBB ERSIRRERE
A E#5588,000,0007T R #E VBIll (Cayman)#
A& (TVBIllR D ] ) o BEEE — RIS ET R
#h s 2R AT » VBIll (Cayman) I AR R 2 &
BH FBZREEIRBHBEN_E—NF
+—A+ZAENK RERETEMKE KRR
4 B H3 - VBIll (Cayman)Jy A2 7] R VBIlli%
B ED BIHEA 485.99% K #114.01% °

R EVBIllE 8975 5] (LRI IR R 155 - VBIll
(Cayman)E2 & E1BE#E ([RIBERE]) - IRUL -
VBIilli& & & 7] Z3kVBill (Cayman)fE & T18
SUT LATTE {8 A R 588,000,000 08.0%
BFEMERISER BB &k HEVBIll
WEFENFTAVBIRRD - AR R 5 1T
(B /935 {8 A R #588,000,0007T I18.0%H]
FRERGEEEAGBERERCEEAR
683,908,000/ 7T * I 2 5% B B #E i A SE K H
HAEEr = F /AP ED - — T BHRGE
YIS BRI FE35 ©
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KEY INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES FTERERBETE

18 % H & VBill (Cayman) & VBill (Cayman)#% i [E
R

A) A

Deemed disposal of VBill (Cayman) and grant of put option
by VBill (Cayman)
(A) Subscription agreement

38

On 24 September 2019, the Company, the Management
Shareholders, the VBill Investor, VBill (Cayman) and VBill
OPCO entered into the “2nd Amended Subscription
Agreement”, pursuant to which the VBill Investor has agreed
to subscribe for new VBill Shares (“Deemed Disposal”) at the
subscription price of RMB588,000,000.

Immediately before completion of the 2nd Amended
Subscription Agreement, VBill (Cayman) was wholly-owned by
the Company. Completion of the 2nd Amended Subscription
Agreement took place on 12 November 2019 and immediately
report after completion and as at the date of this report,
VBill (Cayman) is owned as to approximately 85.99% by the
Company and approximately 14.01% by the VBill Investor.

(B) Shareholders” agreement and put option

On 24 September 2019, the Management Shareholders, Delia
and Grace Technology Limited (a company wholly-owned by
Shen, “Shen Holdco”), Kapok Technology Limited (a company
wholly-owned by Li, “Li Holdco”), Yuteng Technology Limited
(@ company wholly-owned by Xue, “Xue Holdco”) and Just Pay
Technology Limited (a company wholly-owned by Ge, “Ge
Holdco”) (together, the “Management Shareholders Holdcos”),
the Company, the VBill Investor, VBill (Cayman), Beijing
Microcode Data Technology Company Limited, Chongging JIM
Mobile Business Company Limited and VBill OPCO entered
into an amendment and restatement agreement to amend and
restate the Original Shareholders’” Agreement (as defined in
the Company’s announcement dated 24 September 2019, the
Original Shareholders’ Agreement as amended and restated is
referred to as the “Amended Shareholders’ Agreement”). The
Amended Shareholders” Agreement regulates and governs the
rights and obligations of the owners of the securities interests
in VBill (Cayman) (including the grant of the Put Option to
the VBill Investor, and the management and operation of VBill
(Cayman), together with its subsidiaries).

(B)

RZZE—NFNAZ+TMNAE ARG BHRER
R VBIlliZ & &  VBIll (Cayman)MBETTET S [£8
ZREEET RIB ] B VBIREERE
ZREEE A K #588,000,0007T 32 85 #TVBIlli% 19
(MERLESE]) -

BB E RS R W = AT VBl
(Cayman)Jy AR R 2 EHA ° 5 ZIREIEET
REHBER-_T—NF+—A+-B=EK &
KRE A & R A E B B VBIll (Cayman)Th
AR & RVBillik & & 5 5% A £985.99% &% £
14.01% °

R I X (o] fE 1
RZZE-NAFNAAZTHA BEEEKR  Dela
and Grace Technology Limited (—fEIFRER LA E &
AR F [BREFTFA]) - Kapok Technology
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(C) Listing Rules implications

The Deemed Disposal constitutes a discloseable transaction of
the Company and is therefore subject to the notification and
announcement requirements under Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules. As each of the Management Shareholders, together with
their respective Management Shareholders Holdcos, each an
associate of Shen, Li, Xue and Ge, is a connected person of the
Company at subsidiary level, the 2nd Amended Subscription
Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
(including the Amended Shareholders” Agreement) constitute
connected transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules and are subject to the reporting and
announcement requirements but are exempt from the circular,
independent financial advice and shareholders’ approval
requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.101 of the Listing Rules.

The grant and exercise of the Put Option (the exercise of
which is not at the discretion of the Company) constitutes
a discloseable transaction of the Company and is therefore
subject to the notification and announcement requirements
under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 24
September 2019 for further details.
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INFORMATION ON THE CONTRACTUAL
ARRANGEMENTS

The Group has been operating certain businesses which adopted
contract based arrangements and/or structures (“Contractual
Arrangements”) for the purpose of enabling the Group, as a foreign
investor, to control and benefit from the PRC operating companies
(“OPCQ") in the foreign restricted businesses in the PRC.

Set out below are the details of the Contractual Arrangements which
are material to the Group.

1. Contractual Arrangement in respect of Chongqing JIM

and its subsidiary VBill OPCO

1.1 Particulars of OPCO and its registered owners
Chongging JIM is a limited liability company established in
the PRC on 4 June 2002.
From 28 May 2010 to 24 October 2019, contractual
agreements (“Existing JIM Control Documents”) were
entered into between Chongqging JIM, its registered
shareholders, namely Mr. Zhou Jianhong (60%) and Mr. Na
Wei (40%), (“Chongging JIM Shareholders”) and #1715 &
Ay (_£)8) BBRAF (“Shanghai JIM”), pursuant to which
Shanghai JIM was allowed to exercise control of and enjoy
economic benefits generated from Chongging JIM.

Shanghai JIM is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company.

On 24 October 2019, (i) Chongging JIM, (ii) Chongging
JIM Shareholders and (iii) New WFOE, a wholly-foreign
owned enterprise incorporated under the laws of the
PRC and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of VBill
(Cayman), entered into a new set of contractual agreements
which allows New WFOE to exercise control of and enjoy
economic benefits generated from Chongging JIM (“New
JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap)”). The Existing JIM
Control Documents were terminated on the same date.
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1.2 Description of OPCO’s business

Chongging JIM and its subsidiaries (collectively “JIM
Group”) are principally engaged in the value-added
telecommunication business (32 {EE {5 %% ) with major
focus on payment related solutions and services, the
provision of payment processing solution in the PRC.

1.3 Summary of the major terms of the underlying contracts of

the Contractual Arrangements

JIM Master Exclusive Service Agreement (Pre-Swap)

New WFOE and Chongging JIM entered into the JIM
Master Exclusive Service Agreement (Pre-Swap), pursuant
to which (i) Chongqing JIM has appointed and designated
New WFOE as its exclusive service provider to provide
the technical and business support services and (i) New
WFOE has agreed to provide financial support in the
form of interest-free loan, as permitted by PRC laws, to
Chongging JIM by separate agreements to be executed
and performed by the parties. The service fee payable for
the said services shall be equal to 100% of the audited
consolidated net profits of Chongging JIM; notwithstanding
the foregoing New WFOE may adjust the service fee at its
sole discretion and in accordance with the requirements
of relevant governmental authorities, with reference to the
working capital requirements of Chongging JIM.

JIM Business Cooperation Agreement (Pre-Swap)

New WFOE, Chongqging JIM, and the Chongqing JIM
Shareholders entered into the JIM Business Cooperation
Agreement (Pre-Swap), pursuant to which each of the
Chongging JIM Shareholders and Chongging JIM have
jointly and severally agreed and covenanted that, without
obtaining New WFOE's prior written consent, neither
Chongging JIM nor the Chongging JIM Shareholders shall
cause Chongqing JIM to, engage in any transaction which
may materially affect Chongging JIM’s asset, obligations,
rights or operation.
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JIM Exclusive Option Agreement (Pre-Swap)

New WFOE, Chongging JIM and the Chongging JIM
Shareholders entered into the JIM Exclusive Option
Agreement (Pre-Swap), pursuant to which (i) New WFOE
shall have the exclusive right to require Chonggqing
JIM Shareholders to transfer any and all of their equity
interests of Chongging JIM (the “JIM Equity Interests”) to
New WFOE and/or its designated third party, subject to
New WFOE's specific requirements; and (i) New WFOE
shall have the exclusive right to require Chongging JIM
to transfer any and all of the assets owned by Chonggqing
JIM (the “JIM Assets”) to New WFOE and/or its designee,
subject to New WFOE's specific requirements. The total
transfer price for the JIM Equity Interests and/or the
JIM Assets shall be the lowest price allowed under the
applicable PRC laws and administrative regulations at the
time of transfer. Where there is no lowest price prescribed
under the applicable PRC laws and administrative
regulations, the transfer price shall be determined by New
WFOE.

JIM Proxy Agreement and Power of Attorney (Pre-Swap)
New WFOE, Chongging JIM, and the Chongging JIM
Shareholders entered into the JIM Proxy Agreement and
Power of Attorney (Pre-Swap), pursuant to which (i)
each of the Chongging JIM Shareholders has nominated
and appointed New WFOE (as well as its successors,
including a liquidator, if any) as his attorney-in-fact to
exercise such rights as a shareholder of Chongging JIM on
his behalf, and any right conferred by relevant laws and
regulations and the articles of association of Chongging
JIM; and (ii) each of the Chongging JIM Shareholders has
covenanted with and undertaken to New WFOE that, if he
receives any dividends, interest, any other forms of capital
distributions, residual assets upon liquidation, or proceeds
or consideration from the transfer as a result of, or in
connection with, his JIM Equity Interests, he shall, to the
extent permitted by applicable laws, remit all such monies
or assets to New WFOE or its designated entity without
any compensation, and shall bear all taxes and fees with
respect thereto.
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JIM Equity Interest Pledge Agreement (Pre-Swap)

New WFOE, Chongqing JIM and the Chongqing
JIM Shareholders entered into the JIM Equity Interest
Pledge Agreement (Pre-Swap), pursuant to which each
of the Chongqing JIM Shareholders has agreed to,
unconditionally and irrevocably, pledge all of their JIM
Equity Interests, including any interest or dividend paid for
such equity interests, to New WFOE as a security for the
performance of any and all obligations of Chongging JIM
Shareholders and Chongging JIM under the contractual
documents (other than JIM Equity Interest Pledge
Agreement (Pre-Swap)) at the amount of RMB50,000,000
which is estimated value of the obligations of Chonggqing
JIM Shareholders and Chongging JIM under the contractual
documents for initial registration purpose.

JIM Confirmation and Guarantee Letter (Pre-Swap)

Each of Chongging JIM Shareholders has signed the JIM
Confirmation and Guarantee Letter (Pre-Swap), pursuant
to which each of the Chongging JIM Shareholders has
confirmed and guaranteed that, among other things:

1. his successor, guardian, creditor, spouse or any other
person that may be entitled to assume rights and
interests in the equity interests of Chongging JIM held
by him upon his death, incapacity, bankruptcy, divorce
or any circumstances that may affect his ability to
exercise his shareholder’s rights in Chongqing JIM,
will not carry out any act that may affect or hinder
the fulfillment of his obligations under each of the
contractual documents;

2. he will unwind the contractual documents and transfer
all of the equity interests of Chongging JIM held by
him to New WFOE or any party designated by New
WEFOE as soon as the applicable PRC laws allow New
WHFOE to operate the business operated by Chonggqing
JIM by way of directly holding equity interests, and
that subject to applicable PRC laws, he must donate
immediately without compensation to New WFOE or
its designated entity any consideration he has received
from New WFOE during its acquisition of JIM Equity
Interests; and
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3. he will not directly or indirectly engage in, own or
acquire any business that competes or might compete
with the business of Chongging JIM or its affiliated
companies or to have any interest in such business;
and none of his actions or omissions will give rise to
conflict of interest between himself and New WFOE
(including but not limited to the shareholders of New
WEFOE); in the event of any such conflict, he will take
any action as instructed by New WFOE to eliminate
such conflict provided such action is compliant with
PRC laws.

JIM Spousal Consent (Pre-Swap)

Ms. Liu Dan (“Ms. Liu”), the spouse of Mr. Na Wei has
covenanted, among other things, not to take any action
with the intent to interfere with the arrangements under
and performance of the contractual documents, including
making any claim that such equity interests in Chongging
JIM constitute property or community property between
herself and Mr. Na Wei and waives all her rights or
entitlements to such equity interests that may be granted to
her according to any applicable laws.

Disputes resolutions

The contractual documents all contain a disputes
resolution clause which stipulates that any dispute or
claim shall be resolved by the parties in good faith through
negotiations. If no resolution can be reached, the dispute
shall be submitted to the Beijing Arbitration Commission
for arbitration in Beijing in accordance with its rules of
arbitration in effect at the time of application. The arbitral
tribunal or the arbitrators shall have the authority to
award any remedy or relief in accordance with the terms
of the contractual documents and applicable PRC laws,
including provisional and permanent injunctive relief (such
as injunctive relief with respect to the conduct of business
or to compel the transfer of assets), specific performance
of any obligation created thereunder, remedies over the
equity interests or land assets of Chongqging JIM and
winding up orders against Chongging JIM. The arbitral
award shall be final and binding upon all parties. In
addition, to the extent permitted under applicable PRC
laws, each party shall have the right to seek interim
injunctive relief or other interim relief from a court of
competent jurisdiction in support of the arbitration when
formation of the arbitral tribunal is pending or under
appropriate circumstances. The parties agreed that, subject
to applicable laws, the courts of Hong Kong, the Cayman
Islands, Bermuda, PRC and the places where the principal
assets of Chongging JIM are located, shall all be deemed to
have jurisdiction.
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1.4 Revenue and assets subject to the Contractual
Arrangements
The consolidated total revenue of the JIM Group for the
year ended 31 December 2019 was HK$4,711.0 million.
The consolidated total assets and net assets of the JIM
Group as at 31 December 2019 amounted to HK$3,617.0
million and HK$1,465.4 million respectively.

Contractual Arrangements in respect of ;#5 Z &l

S BB B2 E (“Hunan Yunrong”, unofficial

English translation being Hunan Yunrong Information

Technology Co., Ltd.)

2.1 Farticulars of Hunan Yunrong and its registered owners
Hunan Yunrong is a limited liability company established
in the PRC on 15 August 2014. Hunan Yunrong was
wholly-owned by Chongging JIM before 21 May 2019.
Hunan Yunrong and Chongging JIM were accounted for as
wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company contractually
controlled by the Group through the Existing JIM Control
Documents.

On 21 May 2019, the Group implemented a restructuring
involving the Hunan Yunrong and its subsidiaries
(“Yurong Group”) (“Yunrong Restructuring”) as detailed
in the announcement of the Company dated 21 May
2019. Upon completion of the Yunrong Restructuring,
the registered shareholders of Hunan Yunrong (“Hunan
Yurong Shareholders”) have become Mr. Zhang Yonggang
(“Mr. Zhang”, holding 70% equity interests) and Mr. Wei
Mingliang (“Mr. Wei”, holding 30% equity interests).
Control documents (“Yunrong Control Documents”) have
been entered into between Hunan Yunrong, Mr. Zhang,
Mr. Wei and 3t = (5 2 BEE S RMT AR 2 A (“Beijing
Hi Sunsray”, unofficial English translation being Beijing Hi
Sunsray Information Technology Limited) to allow Beijing
Hi Sunsray to contractually control 100% equity interests
and the management of Hunan Yunrong.

2.2 Description of OPCO’s business
Yunrong Group is principally engaged in platform
operation solutions business in the PRC.
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the Contractual Arrangements

Yunrong Master Exclusive Service Agreement

Beijing Hi Sunsray and Hunan Yunrong entered into the
Yunrong Master Exclusive Service Agreement, pursuant to
which (i) Hunan Yunrong has appointed and designated
the Beijing Hi Sunsray as its exclusive service provider
to provide the technical and business support services
and (ii) Beijing Hi Sunsray has agreed to (to the extent
permissible under PRC law) provide financial support
in the form of interest-free loan, as permitted by PRC
laws, to Hunan Yunrong by separate agreements to be
executed and performed by the parties. The service
fee payable for the said services shall be equal to
100% of the audited consolidated net profits of Hunan
Yunrong; notwithstanding the foregoing the Beijing Hi
Sunsray may adjust the service fee at its sole discretion
and in accordance with the requirements of relevant
governmental authorities, with reference to the working
capital requirements of Hunan Yunrong.

Yunrong Business Cooperation Agreement

Beijing Hi Sunsray, Hunan Yunrong and the Hunan
Yunrong Shareholders entered into the Yunrong Business
Cooperation Agreement, pursuant to which each of
the Hunan Yunrong Shareholders and Hunan Yunrong
have jointly and severally agreed and covenanted that,
without obtaining the Beijing Hi Sunsray’s prior written
consent, neither Hunan Yunrong nor the Hunan Yunrong
Shareholders shall cause Hunan Yunrong to, engage in any
transaction which may materially affect Hunan Yunrong's
asset, obligations, rights or operation.
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Yunrong Exclusive Option Agreement

Beijing Hi Sunsray, Hunan Yunrong and the Hunan
Yunrong Shareholders entered into the Yunrong Exclusive
Option Agreement, pursuant to which (i) Beijing Hi
Sunsray shall have the exclusive right to require Hunan
Yunrong Shareholders to transfer any and all of their
equity interests of Hunan Yunrong (the “Yunrong Equity
Interests”) to Beijing Hi Sunsray and/or its designated
third party designated, subject to Beijing Hi Sunsray’s
specific requirements; and (ii) Beijing Hi Sunsray shall
have the exclusive right to require Hunan Yunrong to
transfer any and all of the assets owned by Hunan Yunrong
(the “Yunrong Assets”) to the Beijing Hi Sunsray and/
or its designee, subject to Beijing Hi Sunsray’s specific
requirements. The total transfer price for the Yunrong Equity
Interests and/or the Yunrong Assets shall be the lowest price
allowed under the applicable PRC laws and administrative
regulations at the time of transfer. Where there is no
lowest price prescribed under the applicable PRC laws
and administrative regulations, the transfer price shall be
determined by the Beijing Hi Sunsray.

Yunrong Proxy Agreement and Power of Attorney

Beijing Hi Sunsray, Hunan Yunrong and the Hunan Yunrong
Shareholders entered into the Yunrong Proxy Agreement
and Power of Attorney, pursuant to which (i) each of
the Hunan Yunrong Shareholders has nominated and
appointed Beijing Hi Sunsray (as well as its successors,
including a liquidator, if any) as his attorney-in-fact to
exercise such rights as a shareholder of Hunan Yunrong
on his behalf, and any right conferred by relevant laws
and regulations and the articles of association of Hunan
Yunrong; and (ii) each of the Hunan Yunrong Shareholders
has covenanted with and undertaken to Beijing Hi
Sunsray that, if he receives any dividends, interest, any
other forms of capital distributions, residual assets upon
liquidation, or proceeds or consideration from the transfer
of equity interests as a result of, or in connection with, his
equity interests in Hunan Yunrong, he shall, to the extent
permitted by applicable laws, remit all such monies or
assets to Beijing Hi Sunsray or its designated entity without
any compensation, and shall bear all taxes and fees with
respect thereto.
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Yunrong Equity Interest Pledge Agreement

Beijing Hi Sunsray, Hunan Yunrong and the Hunan Yunrong
Shareholders entered into the Yunrong Equity Interest
Pledge Agreement, pursuant to which each of the Hunan
Yunrong Shareholders has agreed to, unconditionally and
irrevocably, pledge all of their Yunrong Equity Interests,
including any interest or dividend paid for such equity
interests, to Beijing Hi Sunsray as a security for the
performance of any and all obligations of Hunan Yunrong
Shareholders and Hunan Yunrong under the contractual
documents (other than Yunrong Equity Interest Pledge
Agreement) at the amount of RMB10,000,000 which
is estimated value of the obligations of Hunan Yunrong
Shareholders and Hunan Yunrong under the contractual
documents for initial registration purpose.

Yunrong Confirmation and Guarantee Letter

Each of Hunan Yunrong Shareholders signed the Yunrong
Confirmation and Guarantee Letter, pursuant to which each
of the Hunan Yunrong Shareholders has confirmed and
guaranteed that, among other things:

1. his successor, guardian, creditor, spouse or any other
person that may be entitled to assume rights and
interests in the equity interests of Hunan Yunrong held
by him upon his death, incapacity, bankruptcy, divorce
or any circumstances that may affect his ability to
exercise his shareholder’s rights in Hunan Yunrong,
will not carry out any act that may affect or hinder
the fulfillment of his obligations under each of the
contractual documents;
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2. he will unwind the contractual documents and transfer
all of the equity interests of Hunan Yunrong held by
him to Beijing Hi Sunsray or any party designated
by Beijing Hi Sunsray as soon as the applicable PRC
laws allow Beijing Hi Sunsray to operate the business
operated by Hunan Yunrong by way of directly
holding equity interests, and that subject to applicable
PRC laws, he must donate immediately without
compensation to Beijing Hi Sunsray or the entity
designated by Beijing Hi Sunsray any consideration
he has received from Beijing Hi Sunsray during its
acquisition of the equity interests of Hunan Yunrong;
and

3. he will not directly or indirectly engage in, own or
acquire any business that competes or might compete
with the business of Hunan Yunrong or its affiliated
companies or to have any interest in such business;
and none of his actions or omissions will give rise to
conflict of interest between himself and Beijing Hi
Sunsray (including but not limited to the shareholders
of Beijing Hi Sunsray); in the event of any such
conflict, he will take any action as instructed by
Beijing Hi Sunsray to eliminate such conflict provided
such action is compliant with PRC laws.

Yunrong Spousal Consent

Ms. Li Qi (“Ms. Li"), the spouse of Mr. Zhang has
covenanted, among other things, not to take any action
with the intent to interfere with the arrangements under
and performance of the contractual documents, including
making any claim that such equity interests in Hunan
Yunrong constitute property or community property
between herself and Mr. Zhang and waives all their rights
or entitlements to such equity interests that her be granted
to her according to any applicable laws.
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2.4

Disputes resolutions

The contractual documents all contain a disputes
resolution clause which stipulates that any dispute or
claim shall be resolved by the parties in good faith through
negotiations. If no resolution can be reached, the dispute
shall be submitted to the Beijing Arbitration Commission
for arbitration in Beijing in accordance with its rules of
arbitration in effect at the time of application. The arbitral
tribunal or the arbitrators shall have the authority to
award any remedy or relief in accordance with the terms
of the contractual documents and applicable PRC laws,
including provisional and permanent injunctive relief (such
as injunctive relief with respect to the conduct of business
or to compel the transfer of assets), specific performance
of any obligation created thereunder, remedies over the
equity interests or land assets of Hunan Yunrong and
winding up orders against Hunan Yunrong. The arbitral
award shall be final and binding upon all parties. In
addition, to the extent permitted under applicable PRC
laws, each party shall have the right to seek interim
injunctive relief or other interim relief from a court of
competent jurisdiction in support of the arbitration when
formation of the arbitral tribunal is pending or under
appropriate circumstances. The parties agreed that, subject
to applicable laws, the courts of Hong Kong, the Cayman
Islands, Bermuda, PRC and the places where the principal
assets of Hunan Yunrong are located, shall all be deemed
to have jurisdiction.

Revenue and assets subject to the Contractual
Arrangements

The consolidated total revenue of the Yunrong Group for
the year ended 31 December 2019 was HK$158.0 million.
The consolidated total assets and net assets of the Yunrong
Group as at 31 December 2019 amounted to HK$161.5
million and HK$2.4 million respectively.
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Laws and regulations relating to the provision of value-
added telecommunications services in the PRC and
reasons for adopting the Contractual Arrangements
Under the Telecommunications Regulations of the
People’s Republic of China (HF#E AR H£AE T E & H]) ,
telecommunications service providers are required to obtain
operating licenses prior to their commencement of operations.

Under the Administrative Measures on Internet Information
Services ( G Bt 48{=5 SRS EEIE) (“Measures”), profitable
internet information service providers must obtain the ICP
License from the relevant authorities before engaging in the
profitable internet information service business in the PRC.

According to the Regulations on the Administration of Foreign-
invested Telecommunication Enterprises (2016 Amended) ( %)
AR EBEEEEERT (2016F155]) ) (“FITE Regulations”),
(i) the ratio of investment by a foreign investor in a company
providing value-added telecommunications services shall not
exceed 50%, and (ii) a foreign investor who invests in a value-
added telecommunications services company shall have a
good track record and operational experience in providing
value-added telecommunications business (the “Qualification
Requirement”) in the PRC.

The purpose for the Group to adopt the contractual
arrangements is to enable the Group to engage in the value-
added telecommunications business indirectly through
Chongging JIM and Hunan Yunrong which hold the ICP License
in the PRC. Each of Chongging JIM and Hunan Yunrong is
engaged in value-added telecommunications business and
holds the ICP License. Due to the foreign ownership restrictions
under the PRC laws as outlined above and based on the
consultation with the officer of the relevant governmental
authority, since the Group has not previously engaged in
telecommunications business outside the PRC nor has it
previously acquired any equity interest in a PRC enterprise
engaged in telecommunications business, the Group would
not be considered to possess the Qualification Requirement.
As such, the Group would not be able to engage in the value-
added telecommunications business in the PRC directly,
regardless of the percentage shareholding interest (being less
than 50% or otherwise) it holds in the operating entity, without
first adopting a VIE structure.

3.
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4. Risks relating to the Contractual Arrangements
The Group is exposed to certain risks under the Contractual
Arrangements, which are summarised below.

e There is no assurance that the New JIM Control Documents
(Pre-Swap) or the Yunrong Control Documents could
comply with future changes in the regulatory requirements
in the PRC and the PRC government may determine that
the New JIM Control Documents or the Yunrong Control
Documents do not comply with applicable regulations.

e Substantial uncertainties exist with respect to the
enactment timetable, interpretation and implementation
of the Draft Foreign Investment Law ( (JNEIE & EE
Z2) ) and how it may impact the viability of the current
corporate structure, corporate governance and business
operations under the Contractual Arrangements.

e the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap) or the Yunrong
Control Documents may not be as effective as direct
ownership in providing control over Hunan Yunrong or
Chongging JIM.

e The registered shareholders of Chongging JIM or Hunan
Yunrong may potentially have a conflict of interests with
the Group.

e The Contractual Arrangements may be subject to scrutiny
of the PRC tax authorities and transfer pricing adjustments
and additional tax may be imposed.

e Certain terms of the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-
Swap) or the Yunrong Control Documents may not
be enforceable under PRC laws, such as the disputes
resolution clauses stipulated above.

e A substantial amount of costs and time may be involved in
transferring the ownership of OPCOs to the Group under
the JIM Exclusive Option Agreement (Pre-Swap) or the
Yunrong Exclusive Option Agreement.

e The Group may bear economic risk which may arise from
difficulties in the operation of OPCOs.

e The Company does not have any insurance which covers
the risks relating to the New JIM Control Documents
(Pre-Swap) or the Yunrong Control Documents and the
transactions contemplated thereunder.

HEENTHABER
AEEEEHEHORYATHETRER
To

o BIERENGITESMERZ (HHAHE
BMEGIE RS T EE B R ER AR
BE) - i BT A REEERE - FTAETTIE G
e S ERE I R L BB T B AR

o GMEKREZEER) HBEMRER BE
KB ARENFAZESNLZHTRER
IR RRIERREBEEW AT A
FEEANTHEEME-

o ETEETTIEGIME MR (PR HART) SRR S 1
BB SRk EE AT TRV I
FEARE T INE B EA X

o EEATHVRERNELRRAEENE
BEFEBENEER-

o ARLHFREXIPENBHRENSEER
X E|ERERFEMRIR - WAl sz
M

o ETEETTIEBIME R (FRHART) SRERMES 1
B RE TR A e A RIBP BUARIIT
(1A _E XX PR TE ) S ARG o

o REZTEARBERHZ (EH5)NER
BREERGASTELERRNMEES
BT AREE AR A E KA R

o AKEFEAERTEEEARKLRR
REEE MBI -

o RRABILEALADRE EFAETTIRBME T
(4= HA AT ) = 22 0 422 51 1 top s Ko ELIA T
TN 5B R R R o



e There is a lack of clear guidance or interpretation on
the qualification requirement under the Internet Content
Provider License, which may cast uncertainty to the Group
when the foreign ownership restriction in value-added
telecommunications is relaxed.

Internal control measures implemented by the Group
The New JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap) or the Yunrong
Control Documents contain certain provisions to exercise
effective control over and to safeguard the assets of OPCOs. In
addition to such provisions, the Company has adopted certain
measures which may include but not limited to management
control, financial control and legal review as follows:

e the Group has delegated representatives (“Representatives”)
to OPCOs, mainly responsible for exercising management
control of OPCOs; the Representatives will conduct
reviews on the operations of OPCOs;

e the Board and the Representatives shall identify major
issues arising from the implementation of and compliance
with the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap) or the
Yunrong Control Documents;

e any regulatory enquiries from government authorities will
be submitted to the Board, if necessary, for review and
discussion on an occurrence basis;

e the Representatives or other delegates of the Board shall
meet with the registered shareholders or directors of the
OPCOs to investigate and report any suspicious matters to
the Board;

e the Board shall collect the management accounts and
major operational data of OPCOs regularly for review
which will be no less frequent than on a quarterly basis;
the financial team of the Company will seek explanations
from the senior management of the OPCOs on any
material fluctuations;

e the Board will consult the Company’s PRC legal
advisers from time to time to check if there are any legal
developments in the PRC affecting the arrangement
contemplated under the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-
Swap) or the Yunrong Control Documents (such as the
development of the draft Foreign Investment Law), and the
Board will determine if any modification or amendment
are required to be made;
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® major issues arising from implementation and performance
of the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap) or the
Yunrong Control Documents, if any, will be reviewed by
the Board on a regular basis; the Board will determine, as
part of its periodic review process, whether legal advisers
and/or other professionals will need to be retained to assist
the Group to deal with specific issues arising from the New
JIM Control Documents (Pre-Swap) or the Yunrong Control
Documents;

e the Board will disclose the overall performance and
compliance with the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-
Swap) or the Yunrong Control Documents in its annual
report to update the Shareholders and potential investors;
and

e the Company shall comply with the conditions prescribed
under the waiver granted by the Stock Exchange in
connection with the continuing connected transactions
contemplated under the Yunrong Control Documents and
the New JIM Control Documents.

6. Material change
Save as disclosed above, there is no material change of the
Contractual Arrangements during the year ended 31 December
2019.

7. Unwinding of Contractual Arrangements
As at the date of this report, there is no unwinding of any
of the Contractual Arrangements or failure to unwind when
the restrictions that led to the adoption of the Contractual
Arrangements are removed.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Effect of COVID-19

All of the Group’s business segments are substantially based in
Mainland China. In view of the outbreak of the novel coronavirus
disease 2019 (COVID-19) (the “epidemic”) in Mainland China
since January 2020, the Group has adopted various prevention
and control measures in accordance with the relevant national
and local regulations on epidemic prevention and control in
compliance with the national epidemic prevention policies. In the
light of the current situation, the local consumption market and
hence the payment processing industry, as well as the Group's
financial performance will inevitably be affected by the epidemic
in the first half of 2020. The Group has observed a lower than usual
transaction volume being processed through its payment processing
solutions segment in January and February 2020, excluding the
probable seasonal fluctuations due to the Lunar New Year holidays,
the decline in transaction volume could have been caused by a
decline in consumer consumption of goods and services in the face
of the epidemic. Given the uncertainties as to the development and
duration of the current epidemic situation, it is difficult to predict
the extent to which the business of the Group may be affected. The
Group will pay close attention to the development of the epidemic
and evaluate its impact on the operation and financial position and
results of the Group.

Payment processing solutions

In 2019, the overall transaction volume of payment business
continued to maintain a steady and solid increase. VBill OPCO
has 3.5 million accumulated active domestic merchants with
the cumulative transaction volume exceeded RMB1,760 billion
for the year and handled 0.9 billion transactions. The number
of transactions increased by 129% as compared with last year,
contributed mainly by the rapid growth of mobile QR code
payment transactions. The payment processing solutions achieved
significant results domestically and we shall explore the wider
international market in the future. During the year, we have
obtained the Money Services Operators (“MSQ”) license that laid
the foundation for cross-border payment business. Moreover, we
have successfully brought in the strategic investment from EQT. EQT
has distinct achievements in the aspects of finance and payment,
and we considered that the addition of EQT will speed up VBill
OPCQO'’s overseas strategy. In 2020, we and the management of
VBill OPCO will start to develop cross-border payment business
through a subsidiary owned by VBill (Cayman). Along with the
progressively increasing supervision by the regulatory authorities of
China, VBill OPCO will increase its effort in the establishment of
various compliance systems, including anti-money laundering, and
strengthen operational control and risk prevention. We believe that
the Company will be able to offer less costly, more efficient and
diversified payment and fintech services to a wider user base in the
future.

Information security chips and solutions

In 2019, the development of payment market in China was
stable, while market competition in the information security chips
business became more intense and QR code payment products
were replacing traditional supporting products much more quickly.
We expect the market to continue to develop steadily in 2020.
Nonetheless, the growth may be affected by changes in the central
bank policies targeting the payment market. Other research and
development projects are progressing smoothly and cost reduction
initiatives of various products continue to roll out in an orderly
manner.
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Platform operation solutions

In 2019, we continued the provision of operational supporting
services to China Mobile Financial Technology Co., Ltd.
(“China Mobile Fintech”), the IVR Base of China Mobile and
the Migu Animation and Comics Base of China Mobile. Since
the establishment of China Mobile Fintech, with its vigorous
development in integrated payment, featured e-commerce and
fintech business, we are currently their biggest operational
supporting partner. Our excellent operational supporting work
has received affirmation and recognition from China Mobile and
laid a solid foundation for the steady development of the current
supporting business and the expansion of further supporting
projects in the future. Looking ahead, we will continue to expand
our business of domestic mobile operators’ companies in other
provinces and professional companies, expand overseas mobile
payment technology service projects and develop community-
based e-commerce related businesses. We will strive to expand the
proportion of revenue outside the existing businesses to ensure the
continued stable and healthy development of our business.

Financial solutions

In 2019, we continued to provide quality services and maintain
a steady development in the traditional customer markets. Also,
we completed the development of the core business system for
Macao Development Bank, as well as putting into production the
core business system for two virtual banks in Hong Kong, namely
the ZA Bank and Airstar Bank during the period. At the same time,
in response to the increasingly fierce competition in the mainland
domestic market, we endeavored to enhance competitiveness
through aggressive investment in the research and development
of new products: aggressively developing a new generation of
decentralised core business system, and won the bid for the
special project of constructing a new generation decentralised
core business system for the Bank of Guizhou during the period.
Moreover, we achieved business breakthrough in Southeast
Asia market this year, and won the bids for special projects of
constructing core business systems for one big state-owned bank in
Laos and one newly-established bank in Malaysia in the second half
of the year.

Electronic power meters and solutions

In 2020, the total tender volume of electronic power meters
and data collection devices of the State Grid are expected to
approximate to that of 2019. We managed to, once again, win the
bid in the State Grid’s second unified tender last year, and we are
confident that we will continue to win further bids in 2020. On
technical aspects, the State Grid Power Research Institute is actively
advancing the research and construction of GB standards for IR46
electronic power meter, we are also actively pursuing the relevant
works.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

In view of the outbreak of the novel coronavirus disease 2019
(COVID-19) (the “epidemic”) in Mainland China since January
2020, the Group has adopted various prevention and control
measures in accordance with the relevant national and local
regulations on epidemic prevention and control to comply with
the national epidemic prevention policies. The Group is closely
monitoring the market situation and continuously evaluating the
impact of the epidemic on the Group’s operation and financial
performance. In the light of the current situation, the local
consumption market and hence the payment processing industry, as
well as the Group's financial performance may be materially and
adversely affected by the epidemic.

A considerable portion of the Group’s revenue was derived from
a small number of customers in China. Failure to maintain good
relationships with these customers could materially and adversely
affect our financial results.

Our business operates in an industry that is subject to changes
in market conditions, technological advancements, developing
industry standards and changing customers’ needs and preferences
for our new products and/or services. If we are unable to respond
to these changes promptly or unable to continually enhance our
existing products and launch new products to the market in a timely
manner, our business performance may be adversely affected. Also,
any unauthorised use of our intellectual property by third parties
could harm our business and competitive position.

The industries in which we operate in the PRC are subject to
extensive industry standards and government regulations, failing
compliance of which may adversely affect our operation and sales.
Regarding our payment processing solutions business in the PRC,
we are currently operating under three main payment licenses,
namely national bank card acceptance, online payment and mobile
payment licenses, which will expire in June 2022. Any failure to
renew these licenses could disrupt our business operations and our
sales may be materially and adversely affected.

The Group has been operating certain lines of businesses which
adopted contract-based arrangements and/or structures for the
purpose of enabling the Group, as foreign investor, to control and
benefit from the PRC operating companies (“OPCO”) in the foreign
restricted businesses in the PRC. However, such arrangements
may not be as effective in providing operational control as direct
ownership. In addition, there can be no assurance that the PRC
government authority would continue to regard these Contractual
Arrangements as being in compliance with the applicable PRC
laws and regulations, or that the legal requirements or policies
that may be adopted in the future would not affect the Contractual
Arrangements and the relevant business operations. Details of
the Contractual Arrangements are set out in section headed
“Information on the Contractual Arrangements” in the Report of the
Directors on page 40.
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Also, volatility in the securities market may affect the Company’s
shares investments. The Company is also subject to market risks,
such as currency fluctuations, volatility of interest rates, credit risks,
and liquidity risks in the normal course of the Group’s business.
Particulars of financial risk management of the Company are set out
in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES AND SERVICES AND
ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its
businesses and the communities with which it engages. We pursue
this business approach by managing our business prudently and
executing management decisions with due care and attention.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

There has been no violation, breach of or incompliance with
applicable laws and regulations such as the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance (Cap. 622), the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and other applicable
local laws and regulations in various jurisdictions in which the
Group operates that had a significant impact on the Company.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

Remuneration packages are generally structured with reference
to prevailing market terms and individual qualifications. Salaries
and wages are normally reviewed on an annual basis based on
performance appraisals and other relevant factors.

Apart from salary payments, there are other staff benefits including
mandatory provident fund, medical insurance and performance
related discretionary bonus. Share options may also be granted to
eligible employees of the Group as incentives or rewards.

Relationship is the fundamental of business. The Group fully
understands this principle and thus maintains close relationship
with customers to fulfil their immediate and long-term needs. Due
to the nature of business, the Group did not have any major supplier
that has significant influence on its operations.

However, the Group strives to maintain fair and co-operative
relationship with the suppliers.
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DIVIDEND

The Board considers sustainable returns to shareholders whilst
retaining adequate reserves for the Group’s future development to
be an objective. Under the Company’s dividend policy, dividends
may be declared from time to time and be paid to shareholders
provided that the Group is profitable, without affecting the normal
operations of the Group. In summary, the declaration of dividends
and the dividend amount shall be determined at the sole and
absolute discretion of the Board taking into account the following
factors:

e the Group's financial performance;

e the liquidity position and capital requirements of the Group;
and

J any other factors that the Board may consider appropriate.
DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2019 and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:
CHEUNG Yuk Fung
KUI Man Chun

XU Wensheng

LI Wenjin

XU Changjun

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
TAM Chun Fai

LEUNG Wai Man, Roger

CHANG Kai-Tzung, Richard

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, not less than one-third
of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the annual general meeting, and every Director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years.

Mr. Xu Changjun and Mr. Xu Wensheng, Executive Directors, and
Mr. Tam Chun Fai, Independent Non-Executive Director, will retire
from office by rotation at the Annual General Meeting and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election in accordance with the
Company’s Bye-laws.
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As Mr. Tam Chun Fai, has been appointed as an Independent non-
Executive Director and served the Company for more than 9 years,
his further appointment shall be subject to separate resolution to be
approved by Shareholders in accordance with the CG Code.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Group
which is not determinable by the Group within 1 year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed, no transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding company or the
Group was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director (with meetings as ascribed to it under the Listing
Rules) had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, were
entered into or subsisted during or at the end of the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management are set out on pages 4 to 6.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors and
officers of the Group is currently and was in force throughout the
financial year.

Throughout the year, the Company has maintained appropriate
directors and officers liability insurance cover providing indemnity
against liabilities, including liability in respect of legal actions
against the Directors and officers of the Group, thereby sustained or
incurred arising from or incidental to execution of duties of his/her
offices, subject to terms and conditions of the policy.
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DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of each
Director and Chief Executive in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within
the meaning of part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Cap. 571) (“SFQ”")), as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (“Model Code”) were as follows:

Ordinary Shares of HK$0.0025 each in the Company
ALRERER0ET 2 SRR
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Number of shares held Interests in associated corporation
igivit MRBEE 2 BE
Approximate
percentage of
Approximate shareholding
percentage of in the registered
shareholding capital of the
Personal Corporate in the Shares Personal Corporate associated
interest interest Total of the Company interest interest Total corporation
RELF REBEER
Rtz sk
Director gs BARR ARER 8y BOEAM AR AREE #y BOEAM
Kui Man Chun REE 28,650,000 (L* 617,083,636 (L]* 645,733,636 23.25% - - - -
(note (i)
(W)
Xu Wensheng BXE 4,566,000 (L]* - 4,566,000 0.16%** 750,000 - 750,000 3.85%**
(note (i)
(Witi)
Li Wenjin X 6,400,000 (L)* - 6,400,000 0.23%* - - - -
Xu Changjun GEE 16,563,000 (L)* - 16,563,000 0.60%** 675,000 - 675,000 3.46%*
(note (iif))
(in)
Note: i

() These shares are held by Mr. Kui Man Chun through Hi Sun Limited, a
company which Kui Man Chun holds a 99.16% interest, and Rich Global
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hi Sun Limited.

(i)  These interests represented the interests in the registered capital of Mega
Hunt Microelectronics (Beijing) Limited (“Megahunt”, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) in respect of full exercise of the share options
granted to Mr. Xu Wensheng.

(iii) These interests represented the interests in the registered capital of Megahunt
in respect of full exercise of the share options granted to Mr. Xu Changjun.

*  The Letter “L” denotes a long position in shares.
**  The percentage is calculated based on the total number of issued shares of
the Company as at 31 December 2019, which was 2,776,833,835 ordinary

shares.

***  The percentage is calculated based on the registered capital of Megahunt as
at 31 December 2019, which was HK$19,500,000.

() ZEBMEREHFLEEBH Sun Limited CREFRA
99.16%E 252 A &) &Hi Sun Limited” 2 & K B A Rich
Global Limited$F % ©
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of
substantial shareholders (other than a Director, or the Chief
Executive) in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of part XV of the
SFO and as recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Ordinary share of HK$0.0025 each in the Company

Personal
interest
Name of shareholder
RREE/ M2 BA#ER
Rich Global Limited (“RGL")*** -
Hi Sun Limited (“HSL")*** (Note 1) (#f7#1) -
Mr. Kui Man Chun (Note 2)
REELE (Fri2) 28,650,000(L)*

Ever Union Capital Limited (“Ever Union”) -
Mr. Che Fung (Note 3)
BIESE (H3) _

Notes:

1 Representing HSL's interests in the Company’s share capital by virtue of its
control of 100% shareholding in RGL.

2 Representing Mr. Kui Man Chun’s (i) deemed interests in the Company’s
share capital by virtue of his control of 99.16% shareholding of HSL; and
(i) personal interests in the Company’s share capital as disclosed in the
preceding section.

3 Representing Mr. Che Fung's interests in the Company’s share capital by
virtue of his control of 100% shareholding in Ever Union, which holds
beneficial interests in 334,314,000 ordinary shares of the Company.
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Approximate
Corporate Number of percentage of
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REZBH
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617,083,636 (L)* 617,083,636 (L)* 22.22%
617,083,636 (L)* 617,083,636 (L)* 22.22%
617,083,636 (L)* 645,733,636 (L)* 23.25%
334,314,000 (L)* 334,314,000 (L)* 12.04%
334,314,000 (L)* 334,314,000 (L)* 12.04%
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*  The Letter “L” denotes a long position in Shares.

**  The percentage is calculated based on the total number of issued shares of
the Company as at 31 December 2019, which was 2,776,833,835 ordinary
shares.

** - Mr. Kui Man Chun and Mr. Li Wenjin were directors of RGL and Mr. Kui
Man Chun, Mr. Li Wenjin and Mr. Xu Wensheng were directors of HSL
which were deemed or taken to have interests or short positions in the
Shares or underlying shares of the Company which are required to be
disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions entered into between the Group and connected persons
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the year ended 31
December 2019 are as follows:

Deemed Disposal of VBill (Cayman)

On 24 September 2019, the Company, the Management
Shareholders, VBill (Cayman), VBill OPCO and the VBill Investor,
entered into the 2nd Amended Subscription Agreement to amend
and restate the Original Subscription Agreement and the amended
and restated agreement entered into on 12 February 2019 and 21
May 2019 respectively. Pursuant to the 2nd Amended Subscription
Agreement, among other things, the Investor agreed to subscribe
for new shares of VBill (Cayman) at the subscription price of
RMB588,000,000. The resulting reduction in the Company’s equity
interest in VBill (Cayman) constituted a deemed disposal (“Deemed
Disposal”) under Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Shen is a director of VBill (Cayman) and the WFOE, a director
and the chairman of the board of directors of VBill OPCO and a
director of certain subsidiaries of VBill OPCO. Mr. Li is the chief
executive officer of VBill OPCO and the supervisor of a subsidiary
of VBill OPCO. Mr. Xue is a director of VBill OPCO and a director
of certain subsidiaries of VBill OPCO. Ms. Ge is a director of VBill
OPCO and a supervisor of certain subsidiaries of VBill OPCO. Each
of Mr. Shen, Mr. Li, Mr. Xue and Ms. Ge held 9.96%, 4.80%, 3.20%
and 2.00% equity interests in VBill OPCO respectively as at the date
of the 2nd Amended Subscription Agreement.

Both VBill (Cayman) and VBill OPCO are indirect subsidiaries of the
Company. VBill (Cayman) is an exempted company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and is an investment
holding company. VBill OPCO is a company incorporated under
the laws of the PRC with limited liability and is principally engaged
in the provision of face-to-face payment processing solutions
for consumers and small sized merchants in the PRC. VBill
(Cayman) indirectly exerts management control over and enjoys all
economic benefits generated from VBill OPCO through contractual
arrangements (as disclosed in the section above titled “Information
on the Contractual Arrangement” in this Report of the Directors).
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The Investor is a besloten vennootschap incorporated in the
Netherlands and its principal business is investment holding.

Immediately before completion of the 2nd Amended Subscription
Agreement, VBill (Cayman) was an indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and VBill OPCO is accounted for as an
80.04% owned indirect subsidiary of the Company. Completion
of the 2nd Amended Subscription Agreement took place on 12
November 2019, immediately thereafter and as at the date of this
report, (i) VBIill (Cayman) is owned as to approximately 85.99%
by the Company and approximately 14.01% by the Investor,
(i) the Company’s indirect interest in VBill OPCO is diluted to
approximately 68.83%, and (iii) each of Mr. Shen, Mr. Li, Mr. Xue
and Ms. Ge's equity interest in VBill OPCO remained at 9.96%,
4.80%, 3.20% and 2.00% respectively.

Each of the Management Shareholders is a connected person of
the Company at subsidiary level, hence, the Deemed Disposal
constituted a connected transaction of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and is subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements but is exempt from the circular,
independent financial advice and shareholders’” approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, as (i) the
Board of the Company has approved the Deemed Disposal and
(ii) the independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that
the terms of the Deemed Disposal were fair and reasonable, the
Deemed Disposal was on normal commercial terms or better and
in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole
pursuant to Rule 14A.101 of the Listing Rules.

Please also refer to details set out in the section above titled “Key
Investing and Financing Activities” and the announcements of the
Company dated 24 September 2019, 24 October 2019 and 12
November 2019.

KREERREHEMKINERAR EXEEBR
BB

BE TN E IR ETRE WA AT - VBIll (Cayman) &
AR —EEEZENBRAR BREIT1EARAT]
80.04% M B2 EWEB A RIALR « TERNSE X EHE
FRERBENR - —NF+ A+ AL BHEHE
1& R AN S B HAG) VBIll (Cayman) B A AR RIEE &
2 BB 4985.99%814.01% : (i) R BIREEIT A
R B M S M 2 4968.83% + M (i) FR 2 A4 BRSE4E
BAERBEZTREETNARES 8159.96%
4.80% ~ 3.20%52.00% ©

BERERREORMBAREEAARNBEAL

FEtt - RAEHEBK LR AIE +ONAZIE T ARE
MEER S - AZRET EMRRIE4AE T Z BB R A
RE - R BT R K BB R R R LA
BE - BT BRRIE LR AISE14A10116 - VAR A
EEECHAERIEHERRRVBEIFNITERCHE
BREHERBRZGFBATAE R RIEE
EREGRET ANAARFRER Z BR8N

MELMEX EBRERMEES] — &S
EARRBA—T—NFNLAZTEHE —ZZT—AN
FHAZFTHAR-T—NF+—A+_HNAMH-



VIE Restructuring

Yunrong Restructuring

On 21 May 2019, the Group implemented the restructuring
concerning the group of companies comprising Hunan Yunrong and
its subsidiaries (the “Yunrong Group”) (the “Yunrong Restructuring”),
where: (i) Mr. Zhang, Mr. Wei, Chongging JIM and Hunan Yunrong
entered into an equity transfer agreement (the “Yunrong Equity
Transfer Agreement”) pursuant to which, Chongging JIM has
transferred 70% equity interest in Hunan Yunrong to Mr. Zhang
at the cash consideration of RMB7 million and the remaining
30% equity interest in Hunan Yunrong to Mr. Wei at the cash
consideration of RMB3 million; (i) Mr. Zhang, Mr. Wei and Beijing
Hi Sunsray entered into a loan agreement (the “Yunrong Loan
Agreement”) pursuant to which Beijing Hi Sunsray has lent to Mr.
Zhang and Mr. Wei amounts of RMB7 million and RMB3 million for
settlement of the consideration respectively payable by Mr. Zhang
and Mr. Wei to Chongging JIM under the Yunrong Equity Transfer
Agreement; and (iii) Beijing Hi Sunsray, Hunan Yunrong, Mr. Zhang
and Mr. Wei entered into the Yunrong Control Documents.

Each of Mr. Zhang and Mr. Wei is a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company and hence each of Mr. Zhang and Mr. Wei is a
connected person of the Company at subsidiary level. Therefore,
the transactions contemplated under the Yunrong Restructuring
constitute connected transactions and/or continuing connected
transactions at subsidiary level under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules and are subject to the reporting and announcement
requirements but are exempt from the circular, independent
financial advice and Shareholders” approval requirements pursuant
to Rule T4A.101 of the Listing Rules.

Please also refer to details set out in the section above titled
“Information on the contractual arrangements” and the
announcement of the Company dated 21 May 2019.
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Chonggqing JIM VIE Restructuring

On 21 May 2019 and 24 October 2019, the Group implemented
the restructuring concerning Chongging JIM, the VBill Group and
VBill (Cayman) (“Chongging JIM VIE Restructuring”), where:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

On 21 May 2019, Chongging JIM, VBill OPCO, Mr. Zhou,
Mr. Na and each of the Management Shareholders entered
into a share swap agreement (the “Share Swap Agreement”)
pursuant to which each of the Management Shareholders has
agreed to transfer all the equity interests they respectively hold
in VBill OPCO, representing an aggregate of 19.96% equity
interest in VBill OPCO, to Chongging JIM upon completion
of certain conditions. As consideration for the transfer of
VBill OPCO equity interests, Chongging JIM will increase its
registered capital in the amount of RMB526,300 (representing
an aggregate of approximately 5.00% of its enlarged registered
capital after the capital increase), which shall be registered
under the names of the Management Shareholders. As at the
date of this report, the Share Swap Agreement has not yet
completed.

On 21 May 2019, New WFOE, Chongging JIM, Mr. Zhou, Mr.
Na and each of the Management Shareholders entered into
a set of agreements (the “New JIM Control Documents”) for
the purpose of allowing New WFOE to exert 100% control
and enjoy all economic benefits from Chongging JIM after
completion of the Share Swap Agreement. The New JIM Control
will only become effective upon completion of the Share Swap
Agreement. The terms of the New JIM Control Documents are
substantially the same with the New JIM Control Documents
(Pre-Swap).

On 21 May 2019, the Company acquired 80.04% of VBill
(Cayman) from the Management Shareholders Holdcos at
nominal consideration.

On 24 October 2019, New WFOE, Chongging JIM, Mr. Zhou
and Mr. Na executed the New JIM Control Documents (Pre-
Swap) (to take effect upon signing and cease to be effective on
the completion of the Share Swap Agreement).

Management Shareholders Holdcos surrendered all the issued
shares in VBill (Cayman) held by them to VBill (Cayman) at nil
consideration.
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Each of the Management Shareholders (registered shareholders of
VBill OPCO) and each of the Management Shareholders Holdcos
is a connected person of the Company at subsidiary level. Each of
Mr. Zhou and Mr. Na (registered shareholders of Chongging JIM)
is a director of certain insignificant subsidiaries of the Company.
When the exception of Rule 14A.09 does not apply, each of Mr.
Zhou and Mr. Na will become a connected person of the Company
at subsidiary level. Therefore, the transactions contemplated under
the Chongging JIM VIE Restructuring (except step (iv)) constitute
connected transactions and/or continuing connected transactions
at subsidiary level under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and
are subject to the reporting and announcement requirements but
are exempt from the circular, independent financial advice and
Shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.101 of
the Listing Rules.

Please also refer to details set out in the section above titled
“Information on the contractual arrangements” and the
announcements of the Company dated 21 May 2019 and 24
October 2019.

Grant of waiver

The Company has applied for, and the Stock Exchange has granted a
waiver pursuant to Rule 14A.102 of the Listing Rules from (i) fixing
the term of the Yunrong Control Documents and New JIM Control
Documents for a period of not exceeding three years pursuant
to Rule 14A.52 of the Listing Rules, and (ii) setting a maximum
aggregate annual cap pursuant to Rule 14A.53 of the Listing Rules
for (x) the services fees payable by Hunan Yunrong to Beijing Hi
Sunsray and the amount of loans to be made available by Beijing
Hi Sunsray to Hunan Yunrong (as contemplated under the Yunrong
Control Documents), and (y) the services fees payable by Chongging
JIM to the New WFOE and the amount of loans to be made
available by the new WFOE to Chongging JIM (as contemplated
under the New JIM Control Documents). The waiver is subject to the
conditions as set out more particularly in the announcement of the
Company dated 21 May 2019.

Views of directors

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
Yunrong Control Documents and New JIM Control Documents and
confirmed that the transactions carried out during the year ended
31 December 2019 have been entered into (i) in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group; and (ii) on normal
commercial terms or better; and (iii) according to the Yunrong
Control Documents and New JIM Control Documents on terms that
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.

=fEEH (FED BRAR “E-NEFFH

Report of the Directors

e AR

EEBERR (RETNNELRR) REERER
RERFAHUAARFNMEATEEMEEAL-
BEERBEE (EEATTELRR) DHIA/RRF]
ETIHEAMBRR]ZES I EIRA14A.0915H
BISMERT - ARERBEER D RIKRARRRH
BRREENREAL At EEETVIEEA (5
(V)RR B T HETTERZ S E TR RIE14AE
ETHBAREENEERS NS EEER S
/A <F Eh AR B 14A 1016 BR 3 2 N 5 4R 5E
MR RE TR BYVHE R MERALERTE

IEL X [EMA MR S | — SR
BRAAFAMA-E-NEEA-T-BR=-F
—NE+A=Hm AR

A%

AARBRE EHRAE14A102ERB L FrERzE - B
B AP B FA R SR (MR IR LR RIS 14A 52105 &
TE R IV el M 3T R B AE T T I M p e O HABR T
BB = R(MBIE TR A 14A 5365 T 518
RERSFELRAE: iEERAIERSHER
BRSO RGSE R a5 E B ERAEER A 2
HNERSHE (NEREH M RRIE N ETTE) - &
(y)E BB A5 1T R FTWFOEFE 2+ ) AR 75 B KR 3TWFOEIA]
BEATURENERSE (MFEELITIER R
METHETE) HRERAXARRARAZT I
FRAZT—BRNABREFERERT|ZGEHHRR -

EFEA

B IFITE RO BRI M E R AT
2Ht i THERRNEE T -NF+-A=+—
HILSFEETNRZSOINAEEN—R KB EES
MBRZRETAL ¢ (i) J5 IR IE B P SR AR AR ARRT AL
R (i ARIEE B b 17k S s S B AE T THR I M Wt -
HIFFBAFARELN AR RAOBEN -

67



68

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Report of the Directors

A

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31 December
2019 in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagement Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The Board confirms that the auditor has issued an unqualified
letter confirming the matters in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing rules in respect of the Group’s continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2019 as being in
order. A copy of this letter has been provided to the Stock Exchange.

The Company has complied with the applicable requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions as disclosed in note 39 to
the consolidated financial statements do not fall under the definition
of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected transaction”
(as the case may be) in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2019.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, total purchase of electronic funds transfer point-of-
sale terminals from PAX Global Technology Limited (“PAX Global”)
amounted to approximately HK$47.5 million, and was regarded
as capital in nature. As at 31 December 2019, the Company held
approximately 33.1% interest in PAX Global and Mr. Li Wenjin,
currently also serving as an Executive Director of both the Company
and PAX Global, was interested in 13,890,000 shares of PAX Global
representing approximately 1.26% of the issued share capital of
PAX Global.

The aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the 5 largest
suppliers of items which are not of capital nature was less than 30%
of the total purchases of the Group for the year.
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The percentages of sales for the year attributable to the Group’s
major customers are as follows:

Sales
— the largest customer 4%
— five largest customers combined 9%

Save as disclosed, none of the Directors, their close associates or
any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors own more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had interests in the major
customers or suppliers noted above.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

1. As a result of the outbreak of novel coronavirus disease 2019
(COVID-19) (the “epidemic”), a series of precautionary and
control measures have been and continued to be implemented
across the PRC since early 2020. In the light of the current
situation, the local consumption market and hence the
payment processing industry, as well as the Group’s financial
performance will inevitably be affected by the epidemic in
the first half of 2020. The extent of the impact depends on the
duration of the epidemic and the implementation of regulatory
policies and relevant protective measures. The Group will
pay close attention to the development of the epidemic and
evaluate its impact on the operation and financial position
and results of the Group. Up to the date of this report, the
assessment is still in progress.

2. Reference is made to the announcements of the Company
dated 4 December 2019 and 30 March 2020 in relation to an
investment agreement entered into by Megahunt, Mega Hunt
Microelectronics Limited, the Company, certain management
team members of the Group and three investors pursuant to
which the said investors have agreed to invest an aggregate of
RMB80 million in Megahunt (“Investment”). Completion of the
Investment took place on 30 March 2020 and immediately after
which Megahunt is owned as to approximately 65.73% by the
Group.

3. Subsequent to the reporting period, the Company entered into
a guarantee agreement with a subsidiary and an independent
manufacturer (“OEM”), in respect of the said subsidiary’s
payment obligations against the OEM. Pursuant to the 2020
OEM Guarantee Agreement, the Company shall guarantee to
repay the said subsidiary’s due and unsettled debts of up to
US$10,000,000 owed to the OEM and incurred in relation to
such manufacturing orders the said subsidiary placed against
the OEM since 15 January 2020 should it cease or fail to
honour its payment obligations.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other important event
affecting the Company that has occurred since the end of the YEAR
2019.
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PENSION SCHEME

The subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong are required to participate,
and participate as required, in a defined contribution retirement
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) set up in accordance with the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Cap. 485)
under which employer and employees are each required to make
regular mandatory contributions calculated at 5% of the employee’s
relevant income (“Mandatory Contributions”) to the MPF Scheme,
subject to the minimum and maximum relevant income levels
as prescribed by law. Employees may also make voluntary
contributions additional to the Mandatory Contributions.

Any Mandatory Contributions paid for and in respect of an
employee are fully and immediately vested in the employee once
paid to the trustee of the MPF Scheme and any investment return
derived from the investment of the Mandatory Contributions is
also fully and immediately vested in the employee. The employees
are entitled to 100% of the accrued benefits derived from the
employer’s Mandatory Contributions upon retirement at the age of
65 years old, death or total incapacity, subject to other applicable
provisions of law.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”), the Group is required to contribute
to certain retirement benefit schemes in favour of the employees
in the PRC an amount equal to approximately 7% to 20% of
their respective yearly wages. The local municipal government
undertakes to assume the retirement benefits obligations of those
workers of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors is interested in any business, apart from the
Group's business, which competed or was likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly with the Group's business.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirmed
that the Company has maintained at all times the sufficient public
float as required under the Listing Rules during the year.
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AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who has remained as the Company’s auditor for each of the preceding
three years and will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

This Report of the Directors shall comprise all such cross-references
herein contained to other parts of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board

Cheung Yuk Fung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020

=fEEH (FED BRAR “E-NEFFH

Report of the Directors

A

A

REFUOKGE ST R ES D B R HRA - M
KERFEEBINBE=FREF —ERERFX
2ibm - WEIKAEmER  EFEERBEBERNARA]
FEEB A F NSRBI E(E-

b1l

D>y

T
‘REE

HE ZE-TF=A=+H

71



72

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Corporate Governance Report

%*"g{niﬁ’z*

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report
for the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of its Board
in ensuring effective leadership and control of the Company,
transparency and accountability of all operations and that its
business is conducted in accordance with applicable laws, rules
and regulations.

The Company also recognises the importance of good corporate
governance to the Group’s healthy growth and has devoted
considerable efforts to identifying and formulating corporate
governance practices appropriate to the Group’s needs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles (the “Principles”) and code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

In formulating and implementing its corporate governance practices
and standards, the Company has applied the Principles and
complied with all applicable Code Provisions for the year ended 31
December 2019.

The Board periodically reviews and monitors the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance or compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements and employees” compliance
manual to ensure that the Group’s operations are conducted in
accordance with the standards of the CG Code and applicable
disclosure requirements. Directors and senior management are
provided with appropriate ongoing training, continuing professional
development for regular updates of the legal and regulatory
requirements relevant to their duties.

DIRECTORS” SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group has adopted a written code regulating directors” and
senior management’s securities transactions, on terms no less
exacting than the required standard as set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry had been made to all directors of the Company
and the directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard as set out in Model Code and the Group's code
through the year and up to the date of this Report.
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The key corporate governance principles and practices of the
Company are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in
the Board, which assumes responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
All Directors make decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company.

The Board reserves power for decisions concerning all major
matters which include, inter alia, the approval and monitoring of all
policy matters, overall strategies and budgeting, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions (in particular those
which may involve conflict of interests of Director(s) or substantial
shareholder(s), appointment of Directors and other significant
financial and operational matters.

All Directors are provided with full and timely access to Board
papers and relevant information, as well as the advice and services
of the Company Secretary, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are
followed.

To assist the Directors in performing their duties, each Director may
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
to assist in the performance of directors duties at the Company’s
expense, upon making a timely request to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior management. Clear directions
as to the senior management’s powers, the scope of delegations
and relevant arrangements are periodically reviewed to ensure they
remain appropriate to the Company’s needs. Reporting to and prior
approval of the Board are necessary before the senior management
enters into any material transactions and assuming significant
commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Board has the full support of the senior management to
discharge its responsibilities.

Composition
The Board have a balance of skills and experience appropriate to
the requirements of the business of the Company.

The Board currently comprises 8 members, consisting of 5 Executive
Directors and 3 Independent Non-Executive Directors. The
balanced composition of executive and independent non-executive
members upholds the effective exercise of independent judgement.
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The Board comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

Cheung Yuk Fung (Chairman)

Kui Man Chun (Chief Executive Officer)
Xu Wensheng

Li Wenjin

Xu Changjun

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Tam Chun Fai

Leung Wai Man, Roger

Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time and an updated list of all directors
identifying their role and function is maintained on the Company’s
and the Stock Exchange’s websites.

The biographical information of the Directors and their relationship
among the members of the Board, if any, are provided in the
“Directors and Senior Management” section of this annual report.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
The Company has established formal and transparent procedures for
the appointment and succession planning of Directors.

All Directors are appointed for specific tenures subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and subject to re-election
at annual general meeting and the key terms and conditions are set
out in formal letters of appointment.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term not exceeding 3 years, unless
otherwise terminated in accordance with the terms of the respective
service contracts.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has been
appointed for a fixed contract term of one year, subject to renewal
on a yearly basis and re-election in accordance with the Company’s
Bye-laws and the CG code, and such term shall be terminated in
accordance with the terms of the respective appointment letter.
Further appointment of any Independent Non-Executive Director
having served for more than 9 years should be subject to a separate
resolution to be approved by the shareholders.
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Training for Directors

Newly appointed Directors receive induction on the occasion of
his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she has an appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and
is fully aware of his/her responsibilities under applicable laws, rules
and regulations, and the Group’s governance and internal control
policies. The Company also arranges and funds suitable training,
placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions and duties
of a listed company director.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company has arranged and funded in-house trainings
for the Directors in the form of seminar and provision of training
materials. A summary of training received by the Directors during
the reporting period according to the records provided by the
Directors is as follows:
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Training on corporate
governance, regulatory
development and
other relevant topics

TEER BEERER

Name of Directors EEns HibHE R ERE A
Executive Directors: BITES:

Cheung Yuk Fung REE U
Kui Man Chun REF v
Xu Wensheng R A& U
Li Wenjin FXE v
Xu Changjun REE U
Independent Non-Executive Directors: BYFHTES:

Tam Chun Fai BRI v
Leung Wai Man, Roger RER v
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard SRIEE V

During the reporting period, each of the joint company secretaries
have attended no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHR BEEARWEDRIE ETARAIE3.29
{EHRE 2N DR 5B NS AR R 5 F)
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”), under which the Company seeks to achieve board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors in the
Board members’ selection process, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board members’ appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

During the reporting period, the Company has a solid slate
of Directors with diverse perspectives and varied educational
background and expertise made-up, from extensive knowledge
of the information technology industry and electronic payment
industry, experience in international trade, finance and corporate
management, to professional qualifications in the legal and
accounting fields. Each Director has accumulated experience in his
respective field of expertise for at least 20 years, all of whom share
and acquire the talent and competence to drive the industry so as to
bring sustainable growth to the Company.

Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Four regular Board meetings were held during the year for, among
others, reviewing and approving the financial and operating
performance and respectively the final results for the year ended
31 December 2018, quarterly results for the three months ended
31 March 2019, interim results for the six months ended 30 June
2019 and quarterly results for the nine months ended 30 September
2019, and considering and approving the overall strategies and
policies of the Company.
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The attendance of individual Director at the four regular quarterly
Board meetings (not including other ad hoc meetings of the Board
held from time to time and any other meeting(s) of members of
the Board in compliance with the CG Code), committee meetings
and general meetings of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2019 is set out below:

=fEEH (FED BRAR “E-NEFFH

Corporate Governance Report
e SRk ey

EREERBE_T-NE+_A=+t—BLFEH
FARRNRERFEEESSE (TRIEEM IR
BOZ T EREFE SR LRBERE AT ZEM
HhBEFEXEBER) ZEeERMBRAGZA
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Attendance/Number of meetings*

R B Sive
Risk
Audit Nomination ~ Remuneration ~ Management Regular Annual Special
Committee Committee Committee Committee Board General General
Meetings Meeting Meeting Meetings* Meetings Meeting Meetings
ENEEE REERE FHZEED RBEE ERES® BRER BRR
Name of Directors BEEfE E = &% ZEgEW i BERE KEAE
Cheung Yuk Fung REE N/A N/A N/A N/A 4/4 mn 0/3
TER TEA TEA TEA
Kui Man Chun RES N/A N/A N/A N/A 4/4 171 13
TER TER TER TER
Xu Wensheng BXHE N/A N/A N/A 212 4/4 n 13
TER TiER TER
Li Wenjin ZXE N/A il il 212 4/4 il 2/3
TiER
Xu Changjun %®EE N/A N/A N/A 212 4/4 il 3/3
TiER TiER TiER
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard R F 22 N/A N/A N/A 4/4 17 3/3
TER TEA TEA
Tam Chun Fai EiRIE 22 7 7 N/A 4/4 n 33
TEA
Leung Wai Man, Roger R2ER 22 11 11 N/A 4/4 11 33
TER
Note: Mt
* Meetings may be attended in person or by electronic means including ~ * HRFLREH  IAAR R Z AR A NEEL
telephone or video conferencing as allowed under the Company’s Bye- BRERETAHEEE-
laws.
* Ms. Hui Lok Yan, the Group Financial Controller, Joint Company  * BT RARE 2 SEMBHEE B A RMWENE

Secretary and member of Risk Management Committee of the Company
attended all meetings of the Risk Management Committee during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Practices and Conduct of Meetings
Annual meeting schedules and agendas are made available to the
Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all Directors at
least 14 days in advance, and agendas together with accompanying
board papers are disseminated to the Directors within reasonable
time before meetings. Reasonable notice is, as permitted by the
Company’s Bye-laws under relevant circumstances or otherwise
agreed, given for other Board and committee meetings.
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The Company Secretary, as delegated by the Chairman, has been
responsible for preparing the agenda of board meetings, taking
into account any matters the Directors may propose to include,
ensuring that all Directors are given opportunity to include matters
in the agenda and approving the agenda. In order to enable the
Directors to make informed decision, agenda and accompanying
board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least 3 days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors
appraised of the latest developments and/or financial position of the
Company. The Board and the individual Directors also have separate
and independent access to the senior management to make further
enquires or when they require further information in addition to
those volunteered by the senior management.

The Company Secretary and senior management attend all regular
Board meetings and when necessary, other Board and committee
meetings to advise on, among others, business developments,
financial and accounting matters, statutory compliance, corporate
governance and other major aspects of the Company.

The Company Secretary is responsible for preparing and keeping the
minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings. The minutes
records sufficient details of matters considered, decisions reached,
concerns raised and any, dissenting views expressed. Draft and final
versions of minutes are circulated to the Directors for comment and
record within a reasonable time after each meeting and the final
version is open for the Directors’ inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves conflicting interests of a substantial shareholder or
Director are dealt with at a duly convened physical Board meeting,
at which independent non-executive Directors having no material
interest in the transaction should be present. Any Directors or any
of their close associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) having
material interests in the transactions shall abstain from voting and
not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for approving such
transactions.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and responsibilities of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer are clearly defined. The clear division of management of the
Board and day-to-day management of business ensures a balanced
power and authority such that no concentration of power shall
vest in any one individual. During the year, Mr. Cheung Yuk Fung
acted as the Chairman, and Mr. Kui Man Chun acted as the Chief
Executive Officer.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the
effective functioning of the Board in accordance with good
corporate governance practice and established corporate
governance procedures. With the support of the Company Secretary
and the senior management, the Chairman is also responsible for
ensuring that the Directors receive, in a timely manner, adequate
information, which must be accurate, clear, complete and reliable
and appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings, and
that all key and appropriate issues are discussed by the Board in a
timely manner.

The Chairman also encourages the Directors to fully and actively
participate in the Board's affairs, taking the lead to act in the best
interests of the Company. The Chairman also promotes a culture
to facilitate effective contributions and encourage the Directors
to express dissenting views and concerns and allow sufficient
discussion of issues before decisions are made.

The Chief Executive Officer focuses on implementing objectives,
policies and strategies approved and delegated by the Board. He is
in charge of the Company’s day-to-day management and operations
and is is also responsible for developing strategic plans and
formulating the organisational structure, monitoring control systems
and internal control procedures and processes for the Board’s
approval.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Independent Non-Executive Directors possess a wide range
of business and financial expertise, experiences and, through
participation in board meetings, offer independent judgment on
issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standard of conducts. Through taking the lead
where potential conflicts on interests arise, serving on the Board
committees, examining the Company’s performance in achieving
corporate goals and objectives and monitoring performance
reporting, the Independent Non-Executive Directors have become
an integral part of the healthy growth of the Company.
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During the year, the Independent Non-Executive Directors also
attended all general meetings of the Company, details of which
are set out in page 77, enabling them to develop a balanced
understanding of the views of the shareholders.

During the year, the Board at all times met the requirements of Rule
3.10(1), Rule 3.10(2) and Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules relating
to the appointment of at least three Independent Non-Executive
Directors, representing more than one-third of the Board and
with at least one Independent Non-Executive Director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

Confirmation of independence

The Company has received from each of the three Independent
Non-Executive Directors a written annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to the requirements of Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and the Company considers all the Independent Non-
Executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
guidelines for assessing independence set out thereunder.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 4 committees, namely, the Nomination
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and
Risk Management Committee, for overseeing particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. All Board committees are established
with defined written terms of reference, setting out its authority
and duties, and requiring the Board committees to report back
to the Board on their decisions or recommendations (unless
otherwise restricted by legal or regulatory requirements). To provide
transparency, the terms of reference of the Board committees
are made available on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange’s
websites and hard copies of which are available to Shareholders
upon request.

All Board committees, save as the Risk Management Committee,
consist of a majority of Independent Non-Executive Directors.
Chairman and members of each Board committee as at the date of
this report are set out below:

Audit Committee

Tam Chun Fai (Chairman)*
Leung Wai Man, Roger*
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard*
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Nomination Committee

Leung Wai Man, Roger (Chairman)*
Tam Chun Fai*

Li Wenjin®

Remuneration Committee
Tam Chun Fai (Chairman)*
Leung Wai Man, Roger*

Li Wenjin®

Risk Management Committee
Xu Changjun (Chairman)*

Xu Wensheng”

Li Wenjin®

Hui Lok Yan*

*  Independent Non-Executive Director

“ Executive Director

*  Ms. Hui Lok Yan, the Group Financial Controller and Joint Company
Secretary of the Company.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
perform their duties and, upon reasonable and timely request,
are able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent Non-Executive
Directors (including one Independent Non-Executive Director who
possesses the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise). None of the members of
the Audit Committee is a former partner of the Company’s existing
external auditor.

During the Reporting Year, the main duties of the Audit Committee
include the followings:

(@) to review the financial statements, reports, accounting policies
and practices and consider any significant or unusual items
raised by the company’s staff, compliance officers, qualified
accountant or external auditor before submission to the Board;

(b) to review the Company’s relationship with the external auditor
by reference to the work they performed, their fees and terms
of engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor;
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(c) to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, audit process, the Group's financial
control, internal control system, risk management system and
associated procedures; and

(d) to cooperate with Risk Management Committee to ensure Risk
Management Committee has adequate resources and access to
information necessary to fulfil their duties and responsibilities
with respect to risk assessment and risk management.

The written terms of reference which describing the authority and
duties of the Audit Committee was prepared and adopted with
reference to the CG Code, “Principles of Auditor Independence
and the Role of Corporate Governance in Monitoring an Auditor’s
Independence” issued by the Technical Committee of the
International Organization of Securities Commissions and “A Guide
for The Formation of An Audit Committee” published by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 December 2019 to review the half-yearly and annual financial
results and reports, financial reporting and compliance procedures,
internal control and risk management systems, effectiveness of
internal audit function of the Group, the auditor’s independence
and objectivity. The Audit Committee has also met with the
Company’s auditor twice during the year and recommended the re-
appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s auditor
and approved their remuneration and terms of engagement. The
Board confirms that it has taken no different view from the Audit
Committee in relation to its recommendations.

As at the end of 2019 and the date of this report, there are no
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December
2019 has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Nomination Committee

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee, as provided
under the terms of reference adopted in compliance with the
requirements under the CG Code, include reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board, developing and formulating
relevant procedures for nomination and appointment of Directors,
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and succession planning of Directors and assessment of the
independence of the Independent Non-Executive Directors.
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The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships by making reference to
the balance of expertise, skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals,
business requirements of the Group and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations. External recruitment agency may also
be engaged to carry out the recruitment and selection process when
necessary. The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

The Nomination Committee has also adopted a nomination policy
(the “Nomination Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and
procedure of nominating, appointing and re-appointing a Director.
The selection criteria used in assessing the suitability of a candidate
include, inter alia, his/her academic background and professional
qualifications, relevant industry experience, character and integrity
and whether he/she can contribute to the diversity of the Board as
detailed in the Board Diversity Policy, which is regularly reviewed
by the Nomination Committee with a view to achieve a diversified
spectrum of Directors to facilitate a balanced development of the
Company. The procedure of appointing and re-appointing a Director
is based on objective criteria and summarised as follows:-

1. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board may nominate
or invite a candidate for appointment as a Director for
consideration;

2. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall evaluate the
personal profile of each of the candidates based on the criteria
as set out under the above section;

3. The Nomination Committee and/or the Board shall undertake
adequate due diligence in respect of each candidate and make
recommendation for the Board’s consideration and approval;

4. (for a Candidate whom may be nominated as an independent
non-executive Director) the Board should assess the
candidate’s independence under Code Provisions A.3.3 (Best
Recommended Practice) and A.4.3 of the CG Code, and Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules;
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5. (for a candidate whom may be elected as an independent non-
executive Director at a general meeting) the Board should
consider the following pursuant to Code Provision A.5.5 of the
CG Code;

6. (in the context of re-appointment of retiring Directors) the
Board shall review the candidate’s overall contribution and
performance, including attendance of committees, board and
general meetings, and level of participation and performance
on the Board, and make recommendations to the Board for
consideration and to the Shareholders for re-election at general
meetings; and

7. the Board will convene a meeting for discussion of
appointment or re-appointment of the candidate as a Director.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Xu Changjun
and Mr. Xu Wensheng, Executive Directors and Mr. Tam Chun
Fai, Independent Non-Executive Director, will also retire at the
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election.

As Mr. Tam Chun Fai, appointed as an Independent non-Executive
Director, has served the Company for more than 9 vyears, his
further appointment shall be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by Shareholders in accordance with Code Provision A.4.3
of the CG Code.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year and
has recommended the re-appointment of the said Directors standing
for re-election to the Board, following which the Board, after due
consideration, has recommended their re-appointment for the
Shareholders” approval at the forthcoming Annual General meeting.

The Company’s circular dated 22 April 2020 contains detailed
information of the Directors standing for re-election.
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Remuneration Committee

The primary objectives and duties of the Remuneration Committee
are set out in its terms of reference adopted in compliance with
the requirements under the CG Code, which include making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure and remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for establishing transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any
of his associates will participate in deciding his own remuneration,
whose remuneration will be determined with reference to the
performance of the individual and the Company as well as market
practice and conditions.

The Remuneration Committee normally meets to review the
remuneration policy and structure and make recommendation
to the Board on the remuneration packages of the Directors
and the senior management and other related matters. The
Human Resources Department is responsible for collection
and administration of the human resources data and making
recommendations on remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages to the Remuneration Committee for
consideration. The Remuneration Committee shall consult the
Chairman and/or the Board about these recommendations. The
Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 December 2019 to review and recommend the remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior management, to establish
a formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration
policy and to assess performance of the Executive Directors and
approve the terms of their respective service contracts.

The remuneration, including employee incentive programmes of
subsidiaries, payable to the senior management by band for the year
ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:

Remuneration band FrEN 48 Bl
HK$0 — HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000
HK$4,000,001 — HK$5,000,000
HK$15,000,001 — HK$16,000,000

Further particulars regarding Directors’ emoluments and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant to
Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 9 and note 41
to the consolidated financial statements.

07 7T E1,000,0007 7T
1,000,001/%8 75 £2,000,000/8 7T
2,000,001 7T £3,000,000/8 7T
4,000,0018 7T %£5,000,00078 7T
15,000,00178 7T £ 16,000,000 7T
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Risk Management Committee

The Risk Management Committee comprises a four members, three
being Executive Directors. Main duties of the Risk Management
Committee include the followings:

(@) to review the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems (including financial, operational and compliance
controls) and internal audit function, to ensure that effective
and adequate risk management and internal control systems are
established and maintained and that sufficient resources are in
place for the Group’s internal audit function;

(b) to consider the effectiveness of the Group’s decision making
processes in crisis and emergency situations and to maintain
the Group's risk management standards; and

(c) on an annual basis report to the Board on the effectiveness
of the risk management systems and internal control systems
(including financial, operational and compliance controls)
for the Group and adequacy of resources of its internal audit
functions.

The Risk Managements Committee held two meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties of the Company, including (i) to develop and review the
Group's policies and practices on corporate governance; (ii) to
review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management; (iii)
to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (iv) to develop,
review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to employee and Directors and (v) to review
the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
this Corporate Governance Report and other relevant disclosure
obligations.

RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board and the Directors

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and complying with other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.
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The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2019.

Auditor’s Statement

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 91 to 100.

Senior Management

The senior management have provided the Board with sufficient
explanation and necessary information enabling the Board to make
an informed assessment of financial and other information put
before the Board for approval.

Monthly updates have also been provided by the senior
management to all members of the Board to enable proper
discharge of duties by the Board a whole or each member
individually by giving them balanced and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance, position and prospectus
in sufficient details.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has developed the Group’s internal control, risk
assessment and management systems and acknowledges its
overall responsibility for reviewing and maintaining an adequate
and effective risk management and internal control systems on
an ongoing basis to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders
and the assets of the Group. It evaluates the effectiveness of the
systems at least annually to ensure the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions.

Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems
are designed to manage and mitigate risks, rather than eliminate
risks, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss. We have adopted a bottom-up
approach for identification, assessment and mitigation of risk at all
business unit levels and across functional areas.
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Main Features of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The key elements of the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems include the establishment of a risk register to keep
track of and record identified risks, the assessment and evaluation
of risks, the development and continuous updating of responsive
procedures, and the ongoing testing of internal control procedures
to ensure their effectiveness.

An ongoing risk management approach is adopted by the Company
for identifying and assessing the key inherent risks that affect the
achievements of its objectives. A risk matrix is adopted to determine
high risk) after
evaluation of the risk by likelihood of occurrence and the impact of
the risk event. The risk ratings determine the level of managements’
attention and risk treatment effort required.

risk rating (L = low risk, M = medium risk, H =

Process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks

During the process of risk assessment, each risk owner of
departments and major subsidiaries is required to capture and
identify the key inherent risks that affect the achievement of its
objectives. Each inherent risk is evaluated according to the risk
matrix. After taking into consideration the risk response, such as
control measures in place to mitigate the risk, the residual risk of
each inherent risk is evaluated again. The risk register with the risk
responses and residual risks is reported to the Risk Management
Committee. The Risk Management Committee, evaluates the
effectiveness of the systems and report to the Board. The highest
category of residual risks is subject to the Board’s oversight.

Process used to review the effectiveness of the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems and to resolve
material internal control defects

The Internal Control Department of the Company (the “Internal
Control Department”) has performed an ongoing review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems throughout the year (during which an external independent
consulting firm was engaged to offer assistance) covering the
Group’s material controls in financial, operational and compliance
aspects agreed and approved by the Risk Management Committee
and in compliance with the requirements under Code Provision C.2
of the CG Code.
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The Internal Control Department reported to the Risk Management
Committee and the Risk Management Committee was satisfied
that there had been no major deficiency noted in the areas of the
Group's risk management and internal controls systems, following
the implementation of recommendations against the internal
control defects revealed. The Audit Committee cooperates with
the Risk Management Committee to ensure the Risk Management
Committee has access to information necessary to fulfil their
duties and responsibilities with respect to risk assessment and risk
management. Accordingly, the Audit Committee and the Board
considered the risk management and internal control systems to
be effective and have been implemented with adequate resources
during the year.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Board has already established a policy for the handling
and dissemination of inside information. The policy stipulates
the obligations of the Group, in respect of the restriction on
disseminating non-public information, handling of rumours,
unintentional selective disclosure, exemption and wavier to the
disclosure of inside information, and also compliance and reporting
procedures. Senior management must take all reasonable measures
to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent any breach of
disclosure requirement from time to time. Employees are required
to promptly bring any possible leakage or divulgence of inside
information to the attention of the Chief Financial Officer, or his
delegates, who will notify the Board timely and accordingly for
taking the appropriate action promptly. For any material violation of
this policy, the Board will decide, or designate appropriate persons
to decide the course of actions for rectifying the problem and
avoiding recurrence.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditor of the Company
in respect of audit and non-audit services for the year ended 31
December 2019 amounted to approximately HK$10,834,000.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS
(a) Procedures for requisitioning a special general meeting

(b)

(o)

Shareholder(s)" holding, as at the date of deposit of the
requisition for a special general meeting, not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right
to vote at general meetings of the Company may, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary(ies) signed
and deposited in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws
and the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, require the Directors
to call a special general meeting for the transaction of business
specified in the requisition.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company or not less than 100 Shareholders
may, at their expense, provide a written request to the
attention of the Company Secretary(ies) signed and deposited
in accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 to put
forward proposals at general meeting.

Communication with shareholders and investors

General Meetings

General meetings of the Company provide a direct forum of
communication between Shareholders and the Board. The
Company held 4 general meetings during the year. Notices
of the general meetings were sent in accordance with the
requirements under the Listing Rules, the Company’s Bye-
laws and other applicable laws. At the general meetings,
directors were made available to answer questions, adequate
measures were taken to provide effective communication
with shareholders, separate issues were proposed as separate
resolutions for the shareholders’ approval, shareholders were
familiarised with the detailed procedures for voting by poll
and given sufficient chances to raise questions. The Company’s
external auditor also attended the Company’s annual general
meeting held on 2 May 2019 to answer any questions about the
conduct of audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s
report, the accounting policies applied and their independence.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There has been no change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the year.
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To The Shareholders of Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Hi Sun Technology (China)
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out
on pages 101 to 235, which comprise:

e the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2019;

e the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended;
and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:
e Impairment of loan receivables

e Fair values of the unlisted financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss
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Key Audit Matter
HEEITER
Impairment of loan receivables

JE W & OB (B

Refer to Note 3.1(b)(ii) (financial risk factors), Note 4(a)
(critical accounting estimates and judgements) and Note 21
(loan receivables) to the consolidated financial statements
for the related disclosures.

EHAREEENEE F20RGRA M IBHRERME.10)6) (775
B E )  MizT4@ (FEERGEHhEr RAE) M2 (EKE

) e

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s gross loan
receivables amounted to HK$428.4 million, and a
provision for impairment of loan receivables of HK$43.2
million was recognised in the Group’s consolidated
balance sheet. The credit impairment losses on loan
receivables in the Group’s consolidated income statement
for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to
HK$44.1 million.

RZE-NE+ZA=+—H EB5ENEREREER
428,400,000 7T £ EEERAEEBBERERNEKER
B 343,200,0008 T 1 BEREEE-T-AF+Z
A=t RLFENGSRERTHRKEREEREEERS
44,100,000/ 7T °

The balance of provision for impairment of loan receivables
represents the management’s best estimates at the balance
sheet date of expected credit losses under Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standard 9: Financial Instruments
expected credit losses models.
[EWEFURER B SRERRE IR ERA (BT B RELER
Fo%: eRMTA) REEEEERL EAERNEREEES
B e SR
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ENAEERARENSEE

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
assessment on provision for impairment losses of loan
receivables included:
BMEEREREFHRREFREERREZETIZEFE
T

— understood and tested the key control procedures

performed by management, including its procedures
on periodic review on overdue receivables and the
assessment of expected credit losses allowance on the
loan receivables;

— BERMAREEERTHRREEIEF SRAHRHE
W TTE RS R RN E R E BB R T
BEEE

— understood and evaluated the modelling

methodologies for expected credit losses
measurement, assessed the reasonableness of the
model selection and key measurement parameters
determination;

— ERMTETRHREEBRIENE AR HEILEEN
BRS8N E EIE T

— for the historical information, discussed with

management to understand the management’s
identification of significant increase in credit risk,
defaults and credit-impaired loans, corroborated
management’s explanation with supporting evidence;

— HRBEAR HERENWILTHEEBNERERRE
HMEEREEFEEZMNES - B2 ENRRN LR
RS ETR
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Key Audit Matter
HEEITER
Impairment of loan receivables (Continued)

FEW & SORME (%)

Management assesses whether the credit risk of loan
receivables have increased significantly since their initial
recognition, and apply a three-stage impairment model to
calculate their expected credit losses. The measurement
models of expected credit losses involves significant
management judgments and assumptions, primarily
including the following:

ERETERNER 2 EERR B TR RS AEEM-
WERA=FHERNAEHEREERE - EREEFRFE
BAMEENEREREHBNRREERIETIIFE:

—  Selection of appropriate model and determination
of relevant key measurement parameters, including
probability of default, loss given default and exposure
at default;

— EBRRENFERL THRTHEHEBENER2E R
EHEE  ENIBRE RO R AE:

—  Criteria for determining whether or not there was a
significant increase in credit risk or a default; and
— EERBRETBELMNIENNHEFLE: K&

—  Economic indicator for forward-looking measurement,
and the application of economic scenarios and
weightings.

— ARATEMFENEERER QEBRREESNRA-

We focus on this area due to the magnitude of the loan
receivables and the significant estimates and judgement
involved in determining the expected credit impairment
losses allowance on the loan receivables.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ESNAEERARENEE

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
assessment on provision for impairment losses of loan
receivables included: (Continued)

BMEEREREF HRREFREERREZETIEFE
& (&)

- for forward-looking measurement, we assessed the
reasonableness of economic indicator selection,
economic scenarios and weightings application,
assessed the reasonableness of the estimation by
comparing with industry data; and

— HRABEUEE RAFESERERER KEBERK
REHNRA  BRITERBLBEHAGFNEENL: &

- checked major data inputs used in the expected credit
losses models on sample basis to the Group’s record.

— MEREEREEERREMERNEREES E%E
CERE

Based on the above, we found that the estimates and
judgement made by management in respect of the
expected credit losses allowance and the collectability
of the loan receivables were supportable by the available
evidence.
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Key Audit Matter

BARENEE

Fair values of the unlisted financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss
BATEFABR I LmERIARTE

Refer to Note 3.3 (fair value estimation), Note 4(b) (critical
accounting estimates and judgements) and Note 20
(financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) to the
consolidated financial statements for related disclosure.
EHRABESEMEE B2HRE MBRERME3I(AFER
F1) ~ BisE4b) (B EHEFT R AET) K200 2 A EFA
BamseREE) -

As at 31 December 2019, the Group held interest in (i)
an unlisted investment fund of HK$122.1 million and (ii)
certain unlisted convertible preference shares of HK$166.1
million; which have been classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss.
RZZE-NF+TZA=+—0 EXKEFAOFLTREE
122,100,000/ 7T K2 (i) T 3F_E i1 Al & 551 66,100,000/8
TU AR AT ERABR C SRUEE

These unlisted financial instruments are stated at their
fair values, classified under level three in the fair value
hierarchy.

FZEHE LT T ERE
TZE =

RNHESR BN BANFESZRIA

The fair value of the unlisted investment fund was
determined by applying a portfolio discount to the audited
net asset value of the unlisted investment fund as at 31
December 2019, which had already taken into account
the fair values of the fund’s underlying investments. The
discount rate was determined based upon the relative
shareholding and rights of the Group and the marketability
of the investment.

BRI EMRERS Z AFENEE B FETREESR
E-NFH A=+ -AZKEFEEFERGAREAR
Y EE EPEEZEINESTHEBAREZA 1@ Preg=Ty
7 BEEEEEBREMENA R EN A ZEE I METE
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ENAEERARENSEE

Our procedures in relation to management’s determination
of the fair value of these financial instruments included:

BHMEEREErZS eI A2 A FEMMTNEFRIE:

For the unlisted investment fund:

IFLTIREESME -

- We tested the accuracy of the net asset value of the
unlisted investment fund by checking to its audited
financial statements; and

— B ELETHB®RE
TEHEZ RN R

AHEEMIREESEE

- We also involved our internal valuation expert in our
discussion with the management to understand the
rationale for applying the portfolio discount, reviewed
relevant agreements or documents to understand the
key terms of the subject interest and assessed the
appropriateness of portfolio discount by referencing
to relevant research studies and market practices on
various discounts commonly considered in valuations.

— BAREREMANABFHERRERRERA TR ZIE
B EEIEEETN W FRRENHAEIUIATEE
R M R IR 2 E IR BB T R 1T E
—REZRNZETRITENOTHEN  HERERET

EEEERRE-

For the unlisted convertible preference shares:

FRIE LT AT AR B SE AR =

— We assessed the competency, capability and
objectivity of the independent external valuer by
considering its qualifications, relevant experience and
relationship with the Group;

— BfEREIMNEELMEM 2 ER HEgRLE BE
EEFR TEHREEAER BRNNEEGTE:

— We also involved our internal valuation expert in
our discussion with the external valuer to understand
the rationale, and assess the appropriateness and the
consistency, of the methodologies used and the key
assumptions and estimates applied;

— BAITREREMN A EEREERR T & ArEA
RS RAR AN AT ERONIE R ERDEI TR 7R - BE TR Lt =R
HEAMNEE UHAERRIRE METEREMA:
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Key Audit Matter

HEEITER

Fair values of the unlisted financial instruments at fair value
through profit or loss (Continued)
BRAFEFABRZFLITERTARATE (B)

The Group engaged an independent external valuer in
determining the fair value of the unlisted convertible
preference shares by using discounted cash flow method.
The key assumptions used in the valuation include pre-tax
discount rate, compound annual growth rate and terminal
growth rate.

EEECD RN MERN FRFTRRSREEETIHEL
AR R SRR A T E - (R EM A Z T2 RRBEH T &
R EEFHRERGBEREK

We focused on this area because the carrying amounts
of these financial instruments are significant to the
consolidated financial statements and selection of valuation
methodologies and determination of key valuation
assumptions requires the use of significant judgement and
estimates.

BRI EBERENZELR T AZREEYRS MEHRER
MEBEX MEEDENEERTRAHERKNETHAE
REARHE ST -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BN ESNAEERARENEE

Our procedures in relation to management’s determination
of the fair value of these financial instruments included:
(Continued)
HPEEREEE TSRS T
(&)

B2 RFEFRITHIEF 81

For the unlisted convertible preference shares: (Continued)
FhIE T ATRAREERTE - (&)

- We also assessed the reasonableness of the input data
used by evaluating:

- HFTFEETIIEERABEREAE

e the pre-tax discount rate by considering the
weighted average cost of capital and the risk
profile of the investee; and

. %Fﬁbﬂ’fngi”]%{ﬂiﬁﬂi&ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁZ@ﬁﬁHﬁR'
RATREESRE:

+EE

e the appropriateness of the compound annual
growth rate and the terminal growth rate based on
market research, historical performance and the
business plan of the investee.

o IREMISHIE BIRET ZBERBRNEBE Y
EEAFRERNGRIERERZTRE

- We also compared the fair value of the unlisted
convertible preference shares with recent transaction

price.
- WF?)T/\%;‘FLmT}ﬁ‘Hxﬁ?ﬁﬁnﬂiﬁ TR HEELL

Based on the procedures described, we found the
methodologies used and key assumptions applied in the
valuations to be reasonable and supportable by available
evidence.

RIEPTAR - BB REEMA T ER . AREBRES
B B AAISMEES R



OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The audit committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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Hifz 8
BERAREFAHHMEERE -HMESBREFEA
MFBER  ETRREAMERE LR FIH0ZEED

W&

HAERAVBRRNER L TREEMER - i
MTEZEEMERERETAEANER LW -

HEERMEZREMBERENET RANEEIHE
HpE8 HieRd EEEMESEERREAN
BRI MEFTRET A THOERAFEEAR
BB UFFEEAS RERARIF I -

ERHEMERTHILE IREMRBASEMEEFE
EAFRRA BHAIREREZEE - AE7TH -
I AL AR & o

EENBERREENGRS UBRRAERE
MEE

BERAREFARARBEELGTMASHEME (B
IEMELL) REE CRRIEH) HERTERE
BEEMPHNEAMERE UHER//EEEY
IR RENFE RN R M E B E AL
RPN ERIEGI B A -

EREGAMBHRAR BB E5EERKE
REmRE N YHEERBR TREESECEAHN
EHR ULERBELE RS ER RIFEFEAR
1 BEREEFENELERE LFIELHERNER
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

BB ET RS M BHRRAENEE

BB R EHRAVMBERRBBES NMFEAR
MEFRERRME BB A RBAIG SR RE I
HABEHMERORBERS - RIER BT (fF
RER)RRARENN\—F (RFDE) F0HH
5 BRI ZINARRE FIEEAL B B o BT S FATR
SHATAEMEMBALE ESEEEMEE- G2
RERBKTRE ETEREBLR (FEETE
A) EITHER AR - BRERB TR A%
3 - SRRRPRAM AT LA R ERFF SR EH AR 5[ 12 - IR AT TAH
EFEBRERERA T Bl e W RREREK
FEAR B MH AR AT R VAR IERTE - B RRAVEE SRR
AATRARAEER

FRIE (EBETERD) ETEABES  HfNE
AT EERAEG - R T ERIBREE - BTN

o RUBIFFHA AR IRFF AR M BB A IR
FHEBAHERRMAER  Ret RAITEIERF
VAREST 35 Lol - A MEEFE R FE S O ERT R
EERBME RERE - ANEKFERI B8 N R
w A BEER - BRI SR ER AR
#lZ £ R REEH IR AMFFME B EAFHR
BRat p0 LB = A R BE B IR R SE AR T B B B AR
ARERL B L e o

o THREERFTAMMABNIES UREFHEENE
R EEMYIFE ERERAHESHARIE
RER-

b



e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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AEEEMRAGHEROREERIELEHE
AR EN AR -

HESRAFACE ST ERNREEFELS
o RIBFTERNETRE BERGFHERASE
IR AR E KT 0EE M 48 AT A28 B
4 BEREMFELERNEEEARE - NR
BB RFEEATHEE L QB L EEZBED
BEPIRFEAEIRGEE P BHRERPOMAEHE
BE-BRERBENEETR MRS EHRRK
PR E R - P AR R E N BEN RS B LLFT
BUSEVERTRE - AT - RRBHEILER A EE

B ERETRESELE-

AESAVBHRROERIEHI A ABNA
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B EREAREAEBEBNUEERERT
BCHEBNERE URHREUMBRRER
ER-HMEE BEXEZNHA BBEMNH
T-BMAETBERAER2HELE

v

&
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We communicate with the audit committee regarding, among other ~ FREfb RIS H MM B ZE B G BB EINF
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant BT EREAERS  AEBRMESESTH
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal Bl R EBIZ I & (E (] EAERPE

control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Tak Wai, Daniel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2020

BHERAEZZBSRER SHARMETAERH
B MR ERERER YRMIBRAES
BMWRAREFERMB NG EERNEME
B AREERNBERT R B

HEEZZESBBNEET RAEEWLERY
AHGAPBHRRNBFTRAER  AMEKERE
FHERIE RAERBE RGP R E LR BRIEE
RER I ARKEELEE  REHRRFE RIS
N RGBT R IR E T BB FRENA
BEEREBEEN ARG  RIFVRETEERS
BB ER

HEARB Y ZHBMHRENETRE ABRAZREE -

BORKESTASERAT
HEBE AT
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Consolidated Income Statement

22 I a2
i W
For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ —_ZT—NE+_A=+—HIFE

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-hEF ZE—)N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt 5 FERT FAET
Revenue WA 5,6 5,575,981 4,661,954
Cost of sales $HE A 7 (4,254,553) (3,404,203)
Gross profit EX 1,321,428 1,257,751
Other income Habug A 5 116,842 43,894
Other gains/(losses), net Hezs, (18 ) F5HE 5 22,040 (16,922)
Selling expenses HERX 7 (82,266) (96,829)
Administrative expenses THER 7 (720,768) (687,992)
Employees’ incentive programmes M w2 e 8 R &
of subsidiaries 30 (30,303) (201,447)
Credit impairment loss EEREERE 7 (48,800) (39,954)
Operating profit RSPl 578,173 258,501
Finance costs RN 10 (10,245) (89)
Share of results of investments accounted ~— B{H AT EARR 2
for using the equity method REZFE 23 208,695 171,753
Profit before income tax B FT 18 % A1 5% F 776,623 430,165
Income tax expense Frisfim 1 (93,656) (92,875)
Profit for the year FRER 682,967 337,290
Profit attributable to: FEAEER
— Owners of the Company . YNCIEZ ZS DN 569,111 278,175
— Non-controlling interests — IR 113,856 59,115
682,967 337,290
HK$ per HK$ per
share share
BERER BB T
Earnings per share for profit attributable 72 R H A FE (k5 F
to the owners of the Company: ZEBRER:
Basic AR 13 0.205 0.100
Diluted e 13 0.190 0.095

The notes on pages 108 to 235 are an integral part of these — £8108%2358 Z MisE & S4rE M5 HRE 2 HpIf

consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #HZ—-F

—NFET-A=TRALFE

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-HA=1+—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET TET
Profit for the year F AR 682,967 337,290
Other comprehensive (loss)/income, net of tax ~ Hth 2 (F518) W
(BRTEIE)
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to A& BEH 7R F B ZIREH
profit or loss
Exchange differences arising on translation of BREBIMNEE R RS RE
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries ELECIER=Z%5 (41,393) (78,517)
Share of other comprehensive loss of JRIE AR EARZRE
investments accounted for ZH MR EER
using the equity method (15,961) (38,567)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss T & EH 7 Bz 2 HH
Change in value of a financial asset at fair value &2 FEFF A KM R EIER
through other comprehensive income ZeRMEEBEE (892) (14,384)
Share of other comprehensive (loss)/income of FE(R AR E ARy —IRIRE
an investment accounted for ZEM2E (BE), W
using the equity method (862) 461
Total comprehensive income for the year, FAZTHWRLE (HBRHE)
net of tax 623,859 206,283
Attributable to: PEAL :
— Owners of the Company R VNEIEZE PN 516,172 156,406
— Non-controlling interests — IR ER 107,687 49,877
623,859 206,283
The notes on pages 108 to 235 are an integral part of these 28510822358 2 Mzt Jhik B e MIIEHRE 2 A A

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

0 B Rk

As at 31 December 2019 R-_ZE—NF+-_A=+—H

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8H
2019 2018
—E-hF AN S
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FHT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment properties REME 14 1,378 1,575
Property, plant and equipment L ER G 15 384,456 715,193
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 88,501 -
Leasehold land HELH 17 - 30,490
Intangible assets BIVEE 18 2,065 1,884
Deferred income tax assets EERTSTEE 34 119 -
Investments accounted for using NEREARZRE
the equity method 23 2,106,737 1,931,188
Financial asset at fair value through BATEF AR M2 ERE
other comprehensive income ZERMEE 19 - 895
Other financial assets at amortised cost WE K AT E 2
Hi o @EE 26 2,914 12,807
Loan receivables fE g B 2 21 - 479
Financial assets at fair value through BAOTHESABZZ
profit or loss TRLEE 20 288,206 271,741
Total non-current assets FREBEEHLE 2,874,376 2,966,252
Current assets RBEE
Inventories w8 24 95,651 162,275
Other current assets HEnsBE 27 67,006 68,988
Other financial assets at amortised cost WESHK AT E 2
Hth & Rh & 2 26 98,795 49,830
Amounts due from investments accounted I LARE 5 55 A BE
for using the equity method ®E 2 HIA 39 19,970 15,116
Loan receivables W E R 21 385,128 535,816
Trade and bills receivables JFE AT B T R e LA 2R 4 25 212,174 149,178
Financial asset at fair value through BAFEFABRZ
profit or loss TREE 20 1,712 2,004
Current income tax recoverable —f”ﬁl B BN HAFT 1S %4 10,007 -
Short-term bank deposits D HIIRITE K 28 147 1,583
Cash and bank balances iﬁ@ RiRTTHE R 29 4,384,102 2,681,475
Total current assets REBEERE 5,274,692 3,666,265
Total assets EERE 8,149,068 6,632,517
EQUITY s
Capital and reserves attributable to ARBREAANEBLEEERR
owners of the Company A
Share capital P s 30 6,942 6,942
Reserves ] 31 4,680,106 4,371,271
4,687,048 4,378,213
Non-controlling interests FEIE R 2 591,464 193,062
Total equity EHEH 5,278,512 4,571,275
The notes on pages 108 to 235 are an integral part of these — F108E2358 ZMETIZEFHA P IEHE 2 Hh &

consolidated financial statements.
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0 B B R (A1)

As at 31 December 2019 R=_Z—NAF+-_A=+—H

As at 31 December

BR+=—HA=+—8
2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-N\F
Note HK$000 HK$’000
MRE FHET TFET
LIABILITIES 88
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Written put option liability BEHREHERE 35 683,908 -
Lease liabilities HEAE 16 31,494 -
Deferred income tax liabilities RIEFTEHAR 34 522 109
Other payables E fth fE T FRIE 32 - 983
Total non-current liabilities ERBEERE 715,924 1,092
Current liabilities /mif)ﬁﬁ
Trade and bills payables JET BRI B JE 5 SR 4 32 439,287 251,043
Payables for payment processing §1<JLX%J€’IE%¢/}EE7R¥%
solutions business Z TR 32 599,389 266,710
Other payables and accruals H b e F IE&FE HES 32 1,029,432 1,375,891
Amounts due to investments accounted Féﬁlz/\ﬁé m /ij\ﬁ'EZTxﬁ
for using the equity method 2 HIE 39 21,226 114,190
Current income tax liabilities B Hﬁﬁﬁ SHaE 31,905 42,069
Borrowing B 33 5,577 10,247
Lease liabilities HEAE 16 27,816 -
Total current liabilities REBEEEHE 2,154,632 2,060,150
Total liabilities EEHAE 2,870,556 2,061,242
Total equity and liabilities EakEEHEE 8,149,068 6,632,517

The financial statements on pages 101 to 235 were approved by  H1012235B 2 S HEAEEEN T -_TF = A
the Board of Directors on 30 March 2020 and were signed on its =+ Hi#LERAEREKESE
behalf.

XU WENSHENG LI WENJIN
B E ENE
Director Director
o EF

The notes on pages 108 to 235 are an integral part of these  £8108%235H 2 Mift iz iR a M # k2 K A
consolidated financial statements. 7o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

o A A B 3R

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ —_ZT—NE+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

ESAGEEPN: 3
Non-
Share Share  Contributed Other  Exchange Retained  controlling
capital premium surplus reserves reserve earnings interests Total
Rx  ROGEE B4BH®  AfRE  NERE  RERN FERES &it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iR TER TER TER TiEn TER TER AR
Balance at 1 January 2019 R=ZB-nE-B-B2z&# 6942 106315 168434 647,029 6312 2486343 193062 4571275
Comprehensive income EEYEH
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - 569,111 113,856 682,967
Other comprehensive loss Hit2ERR
Exchange differences arising on translation of the R EH /B A AFHzEL
financial statements of foreign subsidiaries ERER - - - - (35,224) - (6,169) (41,393)
Share of other comprehensive loss of ElENEREARZRE
investments accounted for using ZEMPEBE
the equity method - - - (862) (15,961) - - (16,823)
Change in value of a financial asset at fair value ~ HATEFAEMEERE
through other comprehensive income CREEEER - - - (892) - - - (892)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 20 (B8) /Rz88 - - - (1,754) (51,185) 569,111 107,687 623,859
Share of other reserves of an investment FiEBREEARZRE Ao
accounted for using the equity method - - - 12,797 - - - 12,797
Deemed disposal of shares of subsidiaries (Note 35) A1 ENBLRARG (#:235) - - - (276,404) 3,830 - 255,328 (17,246)
Employees’ incentive programme of MBI EE£E:HE
a subsidiary (Note 30) (frit30) - - - 30,303 - - - 30,303
Exercise of employees’ incentive programme of ~ {TE—HIELRAZ
a subsidiary (Note 30) B #BEE (Wits0) - - - 22,137 - - 35,387 57,52
Balance at 31 December 2019 RZB-AFTZA=1-H
P 6942 1063153 168434 434108 (1,043 3055454 591464 5278512

The notes on pages 108 to 235 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

f 0 HE i 52 B % ()

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HZE_ZT—NF+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to the owners of the Company

RN PN 3]
Non-
Share Share  Contributed Other Exchange Retained  controlling
capital premium surplus reserves reserve eamings interests Total

Bx o BhEE  BEER  E6RE  NERE  RERN FRRES aat
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HK§000  HKS00D  HKS'00D  HK$'000
TR TR TR TET TR TR TR T

Balance at 1 January 2018 W-B-N\§-A-Az&H 6,942 1,063,153 168,434 500,891 111,754 2,208,168 104,203 4,163,545
Comprehensive income EEYEH
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - 278,175 59,115 337,290
Other comprehensive loss Hit2ERR
Exchange differences arising on translation of the R E G5B A AF HzEE

financial statements of foreign subsidiaries JEREE - - - - (69,279) - (9,238) (78,517)
Share of other comprehensive loss of an investment {5 AR E AR 2 — B R E

accounted for using the equity method ZEMREEE - - - (1,943) (36,163) - - (38,106)
Change in value of a financial asset at fair value ~ ZATEFAEMZERS

through other comprehensive income JEREEEEEY - - - (14,384) - - - (14,384)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 20 (FB) /hELE - - - (16327)  (105,442) 278,175 49,877 206,283
Employees’ incentive programmes of WEBRRZEEZR:HE

subsidiaries - - - 162,465 - - 38,982 201,447
Balance at 31 December 2018 RoB-NETZAS-B2EB 690 106315 16844 647,029 6312 2486343 193062 4571275

The notes on pages 108 to 235 are an integral part of these 81082358 2 Mzt i S ia Mk 2 Hrh Al
consolidated financial statements. 7
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

ol e

For the year ended 31 December 2019 EZ —_ZT—NE+_A=+—HIFE

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-A=1+—-HLEE

2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
Note HK$’000 HK$'000
k3 FTHET FHET

Cash flows from operating activities REXBHERE
Cash generated from operations REMSHRE 36(a) 1,370,295 793,819
Interest paid BRI 36(c) (2,831) (89)
Overseas income tax paid B SIS (113,002) (94,776)
Net cash generated from REEBS

operating activities R FH 1,254,462 698,954
Cash flows from investing activities REZBHZHERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment #EE ¥ % - li/E k&1 (219,798) (481,298)
Purchase of intangible assets BEELEE (304) (128)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME  BEM&RE

plant and equipment P15 3008 36(b) 157 1,014
Acquisition of an investment accounted WA EARZ

for using the equity method —IARE - (3,416)
Purchase of a financial asset at fair value ~ 8 —IHIZAFE

through profit or loss FAABRZEREE - (39,000)
Proceeds from distribution from a financial R B —IHE QA FEF ABR

asset at fair value through profit or loss ZERMEEZ A

FriS 3R 20 3,202 -

Increase in restricted bank balance IR HI SR 1T 45 8018 0 29 (671,535) -
Dividend income from an RE—MBEARZ

associated company B2 A 23 29,120 29,120
Interest received B U F &8 53,572 23,717
Net cash used in investing activities HEEBTARE F5 (805,586) (469,991)
Cash flows from financing activities METH 2 RERE
Net cash inflow from deemed disposal of 18 & H & M E A A1 ik 1H 2

shares of subsidiaries HERAFE 35 659,248 -
Proceeds from the issuance of shares BRI —FRANB LA

in connection with exercise of BREFRERD

share options of a subsidiary PSR 30 12,270 -
Proceed from bank borrowing RITIERPTISFRIA 36(c) 5,577 10,247
Repayment of bank borrowing ERIRITIEN 36(c) (10,115) (9,065)
Principal elements of lease payments HERNRZ AT E S 36(c) (27,942) -
Decrease in short-term bank deposits R T OB 1,428 14,278
Net cash generated from financing activities gb& /& B)FTS IR & F 5 640,466 15,460
Net increase in cash and ReRASEEY

cash equivalents 0 HE 1,089,342 244,423
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FNMREMRCEEYD

of the year 2,681,475 2,541,482
Exchange loss on cash and RekBReEBY

cash equivalents bE 3 &5 18 (58,250) (104,430)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year F 42 & K& IH & S EY 29 3,712,567 2,681,475

The notes on pages 108 to 235 are an
consolidated financial statements.

integral part of these
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HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

GENERAL INFORMATION

Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”), are principally engaged
in the provision of payment processing solutions, sales of
information security chips and solutions, provision of platform
operation solutions, provision of financial solutions and sales of
electronic power meters and solutions.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless
otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for financial asset at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"), which are
measured at fair values.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f o S 985 A B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(@ New and amended standards adopted by the

Group

A number of new or amended standards became
applicable for the current reporting period, and
the Group had changed its accounting policies
as a result of adopting HKFRS 16 Leases (“HKFRS
16”).

The Group elected to adopt the new rules
retrospectively but recognised the cumulative
effect of initially applying the new standard on 1
January 2019.

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 is
disclosed below. The other standards did not
have material impact on the Group’s accounting
policies and did not require any adjustments.

A B B 985 A Bi
2 BAEHKEME (5

2.1 RBEE (&)
RNEEBEEVHRELER BB EREKE
AR ETEEZ g5tfhst BREETARE
ERASRE G ER 2 BEPIELHE 5
R E B AN SR R A T
BRABEAFENERR LA NEEIR
B S 4% R o

211 Bt R RKEZE

(@) AEBERMNZ A MEIERTE
El
ETH AT SRS TRASER R AR
EH AR R BB RS £
E165HE (F%-S/%ﬁﬂ% el
E165t] ) AEBCDETHEFHK
o

AEBRBEPRBIMRA - EFE
BR =T NF—A—BRVER
MEAMRETE -

RAEBHMEHRERAE 1657 2%
EWENT X - LR EEA
SENEIBEEREATEAH
BIEH R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f o S 985 A B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)
(@ New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (Continued)

(i)

Accounting policy applied from 1 January

2019

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised
as right-of-use assets (including leasehold
land) and corresponding liabilities at the
date at which the leased assets are available
for use by the Group. Each lease payment is
allocated between the liability and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to the
consolidated income statement over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period. The right-of-
use assets are depreciated over the shorter
of the assets’ useful lives and the lease terms
on a straight-line basis and stated at initially
recognised amount less depreciation and
impairment losses. If the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase option, the
right-of-use asset is depreciated over the
underlying asset’s useful life.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease
are initially measured on a present value
basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the fixed lease payments. The lease
payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can
be determined, or the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate.

2 BERETEHERME @)

2.1 RBEE (&)
211 BEFERRFEZE) ()

(a)

REBERPN 2 5] RAEERT £
al (&)

(i)

BT NE—A—H#EE

LR

BT NF-A—RAKL A
SRR RERREE (21EHE
Eih) WNHEEERH#
AEBERE BRERSIEER
BE-BHENFRABRRE
AR Z B BE - B E AN
HamalaERR UAtE
SEHR B EAHRNE TR
T R EETIREER
ERFHRAS (ABEER
B)VREGETE  WIRRT)
MR FRTE MR ERED
fR - AR SR B A IR REE A T2
BERER CREEERE
MEERERFRTE-

HEELMEERBEIIR
REEEFE-HERERR
BEHENTNFRE-HE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B 985 A Bi

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)
(@ New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (Continued)

(i)

Accounting policy applied from 1 January

(ii)

2019 (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost
comprising the amount of the initial
measurement of lease liability and any initial
direct costs.

Impact of adoption

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16
retrospectively from 1 January 2019, but
has not restated comparatives for the 2018
reporting period, as permitted under the
specific transition provisions in the standard.
The adjustments arising from the new leasing
rules are therefore recognised in the opening
of the consolidated balance sheet on 1
January 2019.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group
recognised lease liabilities in relation to
leases which had previously been classified
as ‘operating leases’ under the principles
of HKAS 17 Leases (“HKAS 17”). These
liabilities were measured at the present value
of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate as of 1 January 2019 (date of initial
application of HKFRS 16). The weighted
average lessee’s incremental borrowing rate
applied to the lease liabilities on 1 January
2019 was 4.68%.

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the
Group has applied a practical expedient
permitted by this standard to use a single
discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics.

2 EXSHEEREE#)

21 RBEXE(H)
211 B BHRRREFELE) (F)

(a)

REBERPN 2 5] BT £
al (&)

(i)

BT NE—A—B#EE

(i)

R E R (8)
EREEERRA (BIEEE
BENDL T ESRREMY
FEHERARN)TE-

i) AT E

AEEER-E-NEF—A—
BB ARME B RS
RIS 69 RAEERI
BEVHRAK DREII-F
— R SR RAR
Fit - FE AR5 B
W=F—NEF—A— BT
BAAEABRTRA.

RENE BT REENF16
SRS REEEFERRER
Bt EREREE ([
BastERE1758 ) e R A
DHERIEEEE WEERE
REEBE - ARIBHERIA
MREHEZFRE  WKRA
ERABE-_T-NF—A
—RB (VP EBEENHRE
R 165% B ) MR AR
MK -N_F—NF—H

AMEFHEEBRIANER
4.68% °

RERERBETERELER
F165%8 - AEBEEAZER
RHNEREEEHAEEIE
BUSROEEESERE—
LR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f o S 985 A B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)
(@ New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (Continued)

(ii)

Impact of adoption (Continued)

The reconciliation between the operating
lease commitments as disclosed by applying
HKAS 17 as at 31 December 2018 and the
lease liabilities recognised in the opening
of the consolidated balance sheet as at 1
January 2019 (date of initial application of
HKFRS 16) is as follows:

2 EXSHEEREE#)

2.1 RBEE (&)
211 BEFERRFEZE) ()

(a)

REBERPN 2 5] RAEERT £
al (&)
) RANTE (&)

R-ZE—\Ft+-_A=t—H
BRERTEGERE
SRPTIREE 2 B E AR R
—E-hEF-A—H (FE
RAEHHREENE165E 2
BH)ERGAEERER
R ME R E AR RN

T~
HK$'000
FET
Operating lease commitments disclosed RZZE-N\F+A=+—H
as at 31 December 2018 BREAKEHEARE 69,614
Discounted using the lessee’s incremental £ R H
borrowing rate at the date of AEGH AR BB KALIR
initial application 62,933
Less: short-term leases not recognised B AERREENEHEE
as a liability (5,256)
Lease liabilities recognised R-ZZE-NF—A—BHER
as at 1 January 2019 MAEEAaE 57,677
Of which are: He:
— Non-current lease liabilities —SJERBEEARE 32,395
— Current lease liabilities —-REHEEARE 25,282
57,677

The associated right-of-use assets were
measured at the amount equal to the lease
liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to that lease recognised as at 1 January
2019. There were no onerous lease contracts
that would have required an adjustment to
the right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application.

FRRAE A E IR E NE
BREMDREE WER—
T-NEF— A BREREZIE
THE AR EAIRN sERTE
ENFRERETRAR - R
ERAHE WEBRERES
HMRBHERAREEETH

o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(Continued)
(@ New and amended standards adopted by the
Group (Continued)

(ii)

Impact of adoption (Continued)

The change in accounting policy resulted
in the recognition of right-of-use assets of
HK$88,167,000, including reclassification
of leasehold land to right-of-use assets
of HK$30,490,000, and lease liabilities
of HK$57,677,000 in the opening of the
consolidated balance sheet on 1 January
2019.

The recognised right-of-use assets of
HK$88,167,000 are related to office
premises of HK$78,910,000 and factory of
HK$9,257,000.

The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held
as lessor under operating leases as a result of
the adoption of HKFRS 16.

(b) Impact of standards issued but not yet applied by
the Group
Certain new accounting standards and
interpretations have been published that are not
mandatory for this reporting period and have not

been early adopted by the Group. These standards

are not expected to have a material impact on the
Group in the current or future reporting periods
and on foreseeable future transactions.

A B B 985 A Bi

2 EXSHEEREE#)

2.1 RBEE (E)
211 BEERKEEE (&)

(@) AEERM FE] REIEFT %

A (%)

(i) FEHTE (B)
BRTREZEHEYFR T
—NWF—A—BEHSVEA
EEABRTHEREAEE
88,167,000/ 7T (B EH#
DEHELHEFREEE
30,490,000/ L) R E & &
57,677,000/ 7T ©

WERRFE FRE & E88,167,000/8
JC B YD %£78,910,00075
TC N T #9,257,00078 T A B8

RERNB BTG REERNFE 16
SRig - NEBHARRELEE
HEEAHEAREEENS
FHERIEE R TR -

(b) B RMIEAEE AR EAH%E
Az &
ATHETEER R RBE R
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the Group
is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power to direct the activities
of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from
the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control
ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated balance sheet
respectively.

2 BERETEHERME @)

22 ZAEANRREZEEREL
(a) KB Al

MEARAAEERAEIEZMER
B-EAKER2HERZEMES
YEREAEANEMR WiHERHE
EEEBXBZENIZE LR K
SERNHZEREEHE -MBRRA
EREBEEAREEE DE2HEAA
B YR ESIER IR BETBEAA

AEBERBEBEHEBEBEHA
B o

SERRMZ ARRR S IR AT
RRZW et TIALE - REREB TS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)
(b) Associated companies

(c)

Associated companies are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associated companies are accounted
for using the equity method of accounting (see (c)
below), after initially being recognised at cost.

Equity accounting

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in
the consolidated income statement, and the Group's
share of movements in other comprehensive income
of the investee in other comprehensive income.
Dividends received or receivable from associated
companies are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-
term receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associated companies are eliminated to
the extent of the Group's interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.11.

A B B 985 A Bi
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(Continued)

(d) Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised
in a separate reserve within equity attributable to
owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control or significant influence, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value
with the change in carrying amount recognised
in the consolidated income statement. This fair
value becomes the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associated company, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect
of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
This may mean that amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to
the consolidated income statement or transferred to
another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRS.

If the ownership interest in an associated company
is reduced but significant influence is retained, only
a proportionate share of the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to the consolidated income statement
where appropriate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEAS:HHBEHRE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.3 Business combinations 2.3 EBEH
The acquisition method of accounting is used to account AEBRAWESESMEEBEHA
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity R T am i s T R S AL B E - Wi

instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises
the:

e fair values of the assets transferred

e liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

e equity interests issued by the Group

e fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

e fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the
e consideration transferred,

e amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

e acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement as a bargain purchase.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

Business combinations (Continued)

Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to
fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses
arising from such remeasurement are recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investments. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The chief operating decision maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Executive Directors that make strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end
exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the consolidated income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement on a net basis within
‘administrative expenses’.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair values are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. For example, translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets and liabilities such as
equities held at FVPL are recognised in the profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets, such
as equities classified as financial asset at FVOCI are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Group companies (Continued)
(i) all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in foreign
entities, and of borrowings, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to the consolidated income
statement, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Disposal of foreign operation and partial disposal

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
or a disposal involving loss of joint control over a
joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associated company that includes a foreign operation),
all of the currency translation differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to
the owners of the Company are reclassified to the
consolidated income statement.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share
of accumulated currency translation differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are not
recognised in the consolidated income statement. For
all other partial disposals (that is, reductions in the
Group’s ownership interest in associated companies
or joint ventures that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control) the proportionate
share of the accumulated exchange difference is
reclassified to the consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEAS:HHBEHRE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment 2.7 ME- -BERBRE

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate cost
to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

Buildings 5-10%
Leasehold improvements 20% or over lease terms,
whichever is shorter
18%-33%

10%-33%

18%-25%

Office furniture and equipment
Plant and equipment
Motor vehicles

The assets” residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and
are recognised within ‘administrative expenses’ in the
consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8

2.9

Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the
Group, is classified as investment property. The cost of
an investment property comprises its purchase price and
any costs directly attributable to bringing the property
to its intended use. After initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate cost of the investment property over its estimated
useful lives, as follows:
Buildings 5%
Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All
other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the

consolidated income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner occupied, it is
reclassified as property, plant and equipment.

Leasehold land (included in right-of-use assets)
Leasehold land is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Cost represents
upfront prepayments made for the rights to use the land
for periods varying from 40 to 50 years. Amortisation of
leasehold land is expensed in the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease or when there is impairment, the impairment is
expensed in the consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

(c)

Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose.
The units or groups of units are identified at the lowest
level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating segments.

Brand name, customer list and contracts, patents

and capitalised software development costs and in-
progress technology

Separately acquired brand name, customer list
and contracts, patents and capitalised software
development costs and in-progress technology are
shown at historical cost. Brand name, customer
list and contracts, patent and capitalised software
development costs and in-progress technology
acquired in a business combination are recognised at
fair values at the date of acquisition. They have a finite
useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate the cost of them over
their estimated useful lives (1.5-5 years).

Software

Acquired software are capitalised on the basis of
the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the
specific software. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful lives (3 to 5 years). Costs associated
with developing or maintaining computer software
programmes are recognised as an expense as incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill is not subject to amortisation and is tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired. Assets that are subjected to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of
the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

2.12 Investments and other financial assets

(a) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

—  those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss), and

- those to be measured at amortised cost.
The classification depends on the entity’s business

model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)

(a)

b)

(c)

Classification (Continued)

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in the consolidated income
statement or other comprehensive income. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial asset carried at FVPL are
expensed in the consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
(c) Measurement (Continued)

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether
their cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group’s business model for managing the asset
and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There
are three measurement categories to classify the debt
instruments:

(i) _Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income, except for interest income generated from
loan receivables which is included in revenue,
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain
or loss arising on derecognition is recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated income statement.

(i) Fair value through other comprehensive income

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows and for selling the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCIL. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through other comprehensive income,
except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in the
consolidated income statement. When the
financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative
gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Impairment expenses are presented as separate
line item in the consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASBEREE (£)

POLICIES (Continued)

LM RERHMEMEE (B)
) #itE (&

2.12 Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
(c) Measurement (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)
(iii) _Fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised
cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A gain or
loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in the
consolidated income statement in the period in
which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
the consolidated income statement following the
derecognition of the investment. Dividends from
such investments continue to be recognised in the
consolidated income statement as ‘other gains/(losses),
net” when the Group's right to receive payments is
established.

Changes in the fair value of financial asset at FVPL
are recognised in the consolidated income statement
as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes
in fair value.

(d) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the
expected credit losses (“ECL") associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(“HKFRS 9”), which requires expected lifetime losses
to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments

No financial assets and financial liabilities were subject
to offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and
similar arrangements as at 31 December 2019 and 2018.

2.14 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour and related
production overhead (based on normal operating capacity).
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

2.15 Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade and bills receivables including retention money
receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method less
provision for impairment.

When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for trade receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written
off are credited against ‘credit impairment loss” in the
consolidated income statement.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less.

2.17 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.18 Written put option liability

The Group has a written put option over the equity of a
subsidiary which permit the holder to put their shares in
the subsidiary back to the Group at an agreed price on
specified dates over a three year period. The amount that
may become payable under the option on exercise is
initially recognised at the present value of the redemption
amount within ‘written put option liability" with a
corresponding charge directly to equity within ‘other
reserves’.

The liability is subsequently accreted through finance
charges up to the redemption amount that is payable at the
date at which the option first becomes exercisable. In the
event that the option expires unexercised, the liability is
derecognised with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

2.19 Trade and other payables
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair values, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated balance
sheet when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference
between the carrying amount of a financial liability that
has been extinguished or transferred to another party
and the consideration paid, including any non-cash
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in
consolidated income statement as other income or finance
costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.

2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company’s subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It
establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis
of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted at the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability
is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable amounts will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
foreign operations where the Group is able to control
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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f o S 985 A B

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the balance
sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“Pension Scheme”) set up pursuant to the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the consolidated income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the Pension Scheme. The assets of the Pension
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administrated fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed to the Pension Scheme, except for
the Group’s employer voluntary contributions, which
are refunded to the Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to vesting fully in the contributions,
in accordance with the rules of the Pension Scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EASBEREE (£)

POLICIES (Continued)

222 EEEA (&)
(b) RUKZET (&

2.22 Employee benefits (Continued)
(b) Pension obligations (Continued)

The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as an employee benefit expense
when they are due and are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme
prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the
extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

The Group companies in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC") participate in defined contribution
retirement benefit plans organised by relevant
government authorities for its employees in the
PRC and contribute to these plans based on certain
percentage of the salaries of the employees on a
monthly basis, up to a maximum fixed monetary
amount, as stipulated by the relevant government
authorities. The government authorities undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations payable
to all existing and future retired employees under
these plans. Contributions to these retirement benefits
schemes are charged to the consolidated income
statement as incurred.

(c) Profit sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Subsidiaries of the Group operate equity-settled share-
based compensation plans, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be
expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
options granted:

e including any market performance conditions;

e excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for example,
remaining an employee of the entity over a specified
time period); and

e including the impact of any non-vesting conditions.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period
which is the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises
the estimates of the number of options that are expected
to vest based on the non-marketing performance and
service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision
to original estimates, if any, in the consolidated income
statement, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the subsidiaries issue
new shares. The difference between the proceeds received
and the change in non-controlling interest is recognised in
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

When the options are cancelled during the vesting
period, the Group recognises immediately the amount
that otherwise would have been recognised for services
received over the remainder of the vesting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEAS:HHBEHRE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.23 Share-based payments (Continued) 223 URGBAHEBRNGR(E)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

When the options are modified, the Group will include the
incremental fair value granted in the measurement of the
amount recognised for services received as consideration
for the equity instruments granted. The incremental fair
value granted is the difference between the fair value of
the modified equity instrument and that of the original
equity instrument, both estimated as at the date of the
modification. If the modification occurs during the vesting
period, the incremental fair value granted is included in
the measurement of the amount recognised for services
received over the period from the modification date until
the date when the modified equity instruments vest, in
addition to the amount based on the grant date fair value
of the original equity instruments, which is recognised
over the remainder of the original vesting period. If the
modification occurs after vesting date, the incremental fair
value granted is recognised immediately.

2.24 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
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assessments of the time value of money and the risks
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to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

2.25 Revenue recognition
(a) Sales of goods

The Group engaged in sales of information
security chips and electronic power meters. Sales
are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered
to the customers, the customer has accepted the
products, the collection of the related consideration
is probable and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the
products.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is due.

(b) Provision of services

The Group engaged in provision of platform operation
solutions services and financial solutions services.
Revenue from providing services is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered.
For fixed-price contracts, revenue is recognised based
on the actual service provided using the percentage
of completion method, because the customer receives
and uses the benefits simultaneously.

If circumstances arise that may change the original
estimates of revenues or costs, estimates are revised.
These revisions may result in increases or decreases
in estimated revenues or costs and are reflected in the
consolidated income statement in the period in which
the circumstances that give rise to the revision become
known by management.

Some contracts include multiple deliverables, such
as the provision of financial solutions and related
maintenance services. The related maintenance
services are accounted for as a separate performance
obligation. Where the contracts include multiple
performance obligations, the transaction price will be
allocated to each performance obligation based on
the stand-alone selling prices. If contracts include the
maintenance services, revenue for the maintenance
services is recognised based on the actual service
provided, using the straight-line basis over the terms of
contracts, because the customer receives and uses the
benefit simultaneously.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(b) Provision of services (Continued)

(c)

If the contract includes a monthly fee, revenue is
recognised in the amount to which the Group has a
right to invoice. Customers are invoiced on a monthly
basis and consideration is payable when invoiced.

The Group recognises revenue from its payment
processing solutions business when services are
rendered which coincide with the verification of the
underlying transactions of the merchants (customers
of the Group) by the relevant banks and financial
institutions. Revenue from early settlement services
is recognised when the services are rendered, which
generally coincide when the settlement has been
completed.

Contract liabilities — receipt in advances

A contract liability is recognised when a customer
pays consideration, or is contractually required to pay
consideration and the amount is already due, before
the Group recognises the related revenue. The Group
recognised its contract liabilities under other payables
and accruals as receipt in advance from customers in
the consolidated balance sheet.

(d) Interest revenue

The Group is also engaged in a micro-lending
business. Interest income is recognised and accrued
using the effective interest method. When a loan
receivable is credit impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at the original
effective interest rate of the instrument, and continues
unwinding the discount as interest income. Interest
income on credit impaired loan receivables are
recognised using the original effective interest rate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.26 Other income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost,
except loan receivables from micro-lending business,
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised
in the consolidated income statement as part of other
income.

2.27 Dividend income

Dividends are received from financial asset at FVPL and
financial asset at FVOCI. Dividends are recognised as
‘other gains/(losses), net’ in the consolidated income
statement when the right to receive payment is established.
This applies even if they are paid out of pre-acquisition
profits, unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery
of part of the cost of an investment. In this case, the
dividend is recognised in other comprehensive income if
it relates to an investment measured at FVOCI. However,
the investment may need to be tested for impairment as a
consequence.

2.28 Leases

As explained in Note 2.1.1(a), the Group has changed its
accounting policy for leases where the Group is the lessee.
The new policy is described below and the impact of the
change in Note 2.1.1(a).

Until 31 December 2018, leases in which a significant
portion of the risks and rewards of ownership were not
transferred to the Group as lessee were classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) were
charged to the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which
the leased asset is available for use by the Group.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2 EXSHEEREE#)

2.28 Leases (Continued) 228 LK (8)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the fixed lease payments.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group,
where possible, uses recent third-party financing received
by the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to
reflect changes in financing conditions since third party
financing was received.

Lease payments are allocated between principal
and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the
consolidated income statement over the lease period so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
amount of the initial measurement of lease liability and any
initial direct costs.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.28 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of premises
are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in
the consolidated income statement. Short-term leases are
leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is
a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term (Note 74). Initial direct costs incurred
in obtaining an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the underlying asset and recognised as expense
over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The
respective leased assets are included in the consolidated
balance sheet based on their nature. The Group did not
need to make any adjustments to the accounting for assets
held as lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing
standard.

2.29 Government grants

Grants from the government for high-tech companies are
recognised in ‘other income’ in the consolidated income
statements at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and the Group
will comply with all the attached conditions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 EBEAS:HHBEHRE (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

2.30 fff 2%

2.30 Research and development

Research expenditure is expensed as incurred. Costs
incurred on development projects (relating to the design
and testing of new or improved products) are recognised
as intangible assets when it is probable that the project will
be a success considering its commercial and technological
feasibility, costs can be measured reliably, there is an
intention to complete and use it, there is an ability to use
it, there will be a probable future economic benefits inflow
and there are adequate resources to complete and use it.
Other development expenditures are expensed as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense
are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

2.31 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
where appropriate.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest
rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Board of Directors.
The directors identified and evaluated financial risks in
close co-operation with the operating units of the Group.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk

0]

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s foreign currency transactions are
mainly denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”), HK$,
Japanese Yen (“JPY”) and US dollars (“US$”). The
majority of assets and liabilities are denominated
in RMB, HK$, JPY and US$, and there are no
significant assets and liabilities denominated in
other currencies. The Group is subject to foreign
exchange rate risk arising from future commercial
transactions and recognised assets and liabilities
which are denominated in a currency other than
HK$ or RMB, which are the functional currencies
of the major operating companies within the
Group. The Group currently does not hedge its
foreign currency exposure.

As HKS$ is pegged to US$, management believes
that the exchange rate risk for translations
between HK$ and US$ do not have material
impact to the Group. The exchange rate of RMB
to HK$ is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the
PRC government. The Group manages its foreign
currency risk by closely monitoring the movement
of the foreign currency rates.

For companies with HK$ as their functional
currency

At 31 December 2019, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the HK$ with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$623,000
higher/lower (2018: HK$2,175,000 lower/
higher), mainly as a result of the foreign exchange

difference on translation of RMB denominated
current accounts with group companies.

As at 31 December 2019, if JPY had weakened/
strengthened by 1% against the HK$ with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$1,162,000
(2018: HK$1,932,000) lower/higher, mainly as
a result of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of JPY denominated cash and cash
equivalents.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Market risk (Continued)

0]

(i)

(iii)

Foreign exchange risk (Continued)

For companies with RMB as their functional
currency

At 31 December 2019, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been approximately
HK$4,983,000 (2018: HK$4,546,000) higher/
lower, mainly as a result of the foreign exchange

difference on translation of HK$ denominated
current accounts with group companies.

At 31 December 2019, if US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the RMB with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year would have been approximately
HK$203,000 (2018: HK$213,000) lower/higher,
mainly as a result of the foreign exchange
difference on translation of US$ denominated
cash and cash equivalents as well as the current
accounts with group companies.

Price risk
The Group is not exposed to commodity price
risk.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rates. Financial instruments at variable rates
expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
Financial instruments at fixed rates expose the
Group to fair value interest rate risk. The Group's
interest rate risk arises mainly from short-term
bank deposits and cash and bank balances. Other
financial assets and financial liabilities are non-
interest-bearing and are measured at amortised
cost.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HKERBEZE &

3.1 MBEEEE (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

At 31 December 2019, if interest rates on interest-
bearing short-term bank deposits and cash and
bank balances had been 100 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant, post-
tax profit for the year of the Group would have
been approximately HK$37,126,000 (2018:
HK$26,828,000) higher/lower due to interest
income earned on market interest rate.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from other financial assets at
amortised cost, loan receivables, financial assets at
FVPL, amounts due from investments accounted for
using the equity method, trade and bills receivables,
short-term bank deposits and cash and bank balances.

The carrying amounts of other financial assets at
amortised cost, loan receivables, financial assets at
FVPL, amounts due from investments accounted for
using the equity method, trade and bills receivables,
short-term bank deposits and cash and bank balances
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to financial assets.

(i) Risk management

To manage this risk, deposits of the Group
are mainly placed with state-owned financial
institutions and reputable banks. The Group has
policies in place to ensure that sales are made
to reputable and creditworthy customers with
an appropriate financial strength, credit history
and appropriate percentage of down payments.
It also has other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

0]

Risk management (Continued)

In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
authorisation of credit limits to individual
customers and recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivables to ensure the
adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

For its micro-lending business, the Group
leverages on its proprietary credit risk
management and fraud prevention system while
it also has established a comprehensive credit
risk management process which include credit
origination, credit review, credit approval,
disbursement, post-disbursement monitoring, and
collection.

Management considers the credit risk for amounts
due from investments accounted for using the
equity method to be minimal after considering the
financial condition of the entities. Management
has performed assessment over the recoverability
of the balances and management does not
expect any losses from non-performance by these
entities.

The Group has concentration of credit risk. Sales
of goods and services to the largest customer
accounted for 4% (2018: 5%) for the total
revenue, and top five customers constituted 9%
(2018: 10%) of the Group’s turnover for the year
ended 31 December 2019. They accounted for
approximately 29% (2018: 27%) of the gross
trade receivable balances as at 31 December
2019. Collections of outstanding receivable
balances are closely monitored on an ongoing
basis to minimise such credit risk.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets

Trade receivables for sales of goods of the Group
and from the provision of services and loan
receivables are subject to the ECL model. While
cash and bank balances, short-term bank deposits
and other financial assets at amortised cost are
also subject to the impairment requirements of
HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

Trade receivables and amounts due from

investments accounted for using the equity
method

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring ECL which uses a lifetime

expected loss allowance for all trade receivables
and amounts due from investments accounted
for using the equity method. The Group measures
the ECL on a combination of both individual and
collective basis.

Receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on
collection of receivables are assessed individually
for provision for impairment allowance. The
Group also estimates the provision for ECL on a
collective basis by grouping the trade receivables
and amounts due from investments accounted for
using the equity method based on shared credit
loss risk characteristics and collectively assessed
for likelihood of recovery, taking into account the
nature of the customer and its ageing category,
and applying ECL rates to respective gross
carrying amounts of the receivables. The ECL rates
are based on historical credit losses experienced
up to 3 years and are adjusted to reflect current
and forward looking information on factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables. As at 31 December 2019, the ECL of
these collectively assessed receivable balances
was HK$14,851,000 (2018: HK$10,463,000)
based on expected loss rates up to 53.4% (2018:
36.9%) applied on different groupings.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBEBEZEE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BKEKBRERE (&)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERER (&)
(ii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued) (i) *REERME(B)
Trade receivables and amounts due from FE YR SR FE A RE 2 05 AR
investments accounted for using the equity &2 FIE (B)
method (Continued)
Impairment losses on trade receivables and FEYRIR S FEU AR 2 E A BRZ 3%
amounts due from investments accounted for & 2 IR REEBER R E &
using the equity method are presented as ‘credit 235 [EERERE] - ZEIK
impairment loss’ in the consolidated income TEAAU DR - 8 PO IR 2
statement. When a receivable is uncollectible, it EEARFR AR EH o BE1R UL Bl ST BT A
is written off against the allowance account for SEM SRS AMRRIERE -

receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against the
same line item.

Loan receivables JEW E X

The Group estimates the ECL under HKFRS 9 REBIRIBEEEM S RELERIZE9
ECL models. The Group assesses whether the FIEHMEE B BRI TEHEE
credit risk of loan receivables have increased B8 REERMERNERZEE
significantly since their initial recognition, and [R\f B V)R AL R A ARSI
apply a three-stage impairment model to calculate I e = BB E R A T B H
their ECL, the management assesses impairment EEER EREERAe MRt
loss using the risk parameter modelling approach E2B(BRENTAE ELIE
that incorporates key measurement parameters, KEFEQRAYE) AR 28
including probability of default, loss given default R TR E BRI BRI
and exposure at default, with the consideration of BEEE-

forward-looking information.

Loan receivables are categorised into the EWE R B AREEMDERATE
following stages by the Group: B

Stage 1 EF R

Loan receivables have not experienced a BB RO E R 1218 A B AR
significant increase in credit risk since origination BEEB(2MEREREEER)E
and impairment is recognised on the basis of 12 THER MR E R 2 EERRY
months ECL (12-month ECLs). BEREIE N

Stage 2 EF_ER

Loan receivables to customers have experienced a BRI R EEN 2 BEREE
significant increase in credit risk since origination EiE (EEERENSIERER
and impairment is recognised on the basis of IR EITHR MREPRRHfZ
lifetime ECL (Lifetime ECLs non credit-impaired). R ER 2 EERBEEIE M-
Stage 3 F=ER

Loan receivables that are in default and EHNBERRREERE(FER
considered credit impaired (Lifetime ECLs credit EN2BEREEEE) NEKE
impaired). e
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Loan receivables (Continued)

In assessing whether the credit risk of a loan
receivables has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of
default occurring on the loan receivables assessed
at the reporting date with that assessed at the date
of initial recognition. In making this reassessment,
the Group considers that a default event occurs
when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse
by the Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or (ii) the financial asset is past
due for more than 90 days. The Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in a loan receivable’s external or internal
credit rating (if available);

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group; and

- the financial asset is past due.

As at 31 December 2019, the provision
for impairment of loan receivables was
HK$43,240,000 (2018: HK$32,807,000) based
on expected loss rates up to 100% applied to
different stages. The impairment policy of loan
receivables was disclosed in Note 2.12.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BKERBEZE &

3.1 MEBEREE (E)
b) IZEREE (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Cash and bank balances, financial assets at FVPL,
bills receivables, short-term bank deposits and
other financial assets at amortised cost

Note 2.12 described the impairment policy of
cash and bank balances, financial assets at FVPL,
bills receivables, short-term bank deposits and
other financial assets at amortised cost. There is no
loss allowance for these assets at amortised cost as
at 31 December 2019 (2018: same).

(c) Liquidity risk

With prudent liquidity risk management, the Group
aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and ensure the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of available financing, including
short-term bank borrowing. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, the Group’s
finance department maintains flexibility in funding
by maintaining adequate amount of cash and cash
equivalents and flexibility in funding through having
available sources of financing.

Surplus cash held by the operating entities over
and above balance required for working capital
management are transferred to interest bearing bank
deposits with appropriate maturities to manage its
overall liquidity position. As at 31 December 2019,
the Group maintained cash and cash equivalents of
HK$3,712,567,000 (2018: HK$2,681,475,000) that
is expected to be readily available and sufficient to
meet the cash outflows of its financial liabilities, hence
management considers that the Group’s exposure to
liquidity risk is not significant.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's total available
banking facilities amounted to approximately
HK$17,847,000 (2018: HK$18,217,000) of which
HK$5,577,000 (2018: HK$10,247,000) has been
utilised.
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RITER A SR ERE RESES KN -
R-B-AF+-A=1+—8 K~&£E
2R & KIS EEY A3,712,567,0007%
TT (—Z— )\ :2,681,475,000/8 7T )
TEHE RS ENESREE ISR
o At BERE DA ANEEFTEE R
MEBE SRR TEK -

R-ZE-AE+-A=+—H &=
E ] B RITREE BEE X A17,847,000
B (ZZF— )\ :18,217,0008 7T)
HAF5,577,0008 L (ZF — )\F:
10,247,000/ 7C) E BN ©
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BHEREE®)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 30 MEEKBEZ (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) © mnBHEZERE (&)
The table below analyses the Group’s financial TRIEBEERABEAOIHBEZOM
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on BASREz 2B EN AEBIHRA
their contractual maturities for: Al :
(@) all non-derivative financial liabilities, and @ FBFTESHREE: X
(b) a derivative financial instrument for which b) EHEHRERRSTEMNRER
the contractual maturities are essential for an BRI DESTE SR T Ao
understanding of the timing of the cash flows.
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual ZERMBESBERENARMRESNR
undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 SRR ZFETK  #HR21E A
months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of WEEA 2 SRR N B BRI A5 8R
discounting is not significant.
Between Between
Less than 1 and 2 and
1 year 2 years 5 years Total
PR—F —ZFEZF ZZEHF war
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FExT FET FHET
At 31 December 2019 R=ZB-N%F
+t=ZA=t+—H
Trade and bills payables JE S BR TR I FE AN R A 439,287 - - 439,287
Payables for payment XX FEBRRARAT R
processing solutions E Pl SNE S
business 599,389 - - 599,389
Other payables and accruals — E At &< 5/ I8 [z
FERTFRIE 903,508 - - 903,508
Amounts due to investments  JE{T AEZIEARRZ
accounted for using the REZ A
equity method 21,226 - - 21,226
Borrowing RN 5,832 - - 5,832
Lease liabilities HEBE 29,046 21,640 11,254 61,940
Written put option liability FHRAHEAR
(Note 35) (B1t35) - - 852,188 852,188
Total &t 1,998,288 21,640 863,442 2,883,370
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

A B B 985 A Bi

Bt REEE (&)

3.1 MBEBEE (&)

€ nBEZER (&)

Less than
1 year
DPR—F
HK$'000
T
At 31 December 2018 R-ZZB-NE+=-A=+—H
Trade and bills payables JERBR R R BN R 1B 251,043
Payables for payment processing solutions business SR PBRIEBRTRERZ
FEA FRIR 266,710
Other payables and accruals E b fE A F0A N FEETFRIE 1,182,518
Amounts due to investments accounted for using ERUEREARZRE
the equity method IR 114,190
Borrowing fE 10,784
Total Gl 1,825,245

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total capital.
Total debt includes borrowing, lease liabilities and written
put option liability of the Group. Total capital is calculated
as ‘equity” as shown in the consolidated balance sheet plus
total debt.

3.2 EXEKREE

AEEEREARY BN AREREERHEL
B ARBERR L E R A R A E 25487
FERHRNE W REENEBARKE

REFRRHBERNGERE  NEE A HERAR
RXMNZBB SR MBRELORA %17
R EEENR A EIR

AEENERNBBLRIEREEERNZE
o R B BERERAEERTE A
BERBEEAKE 2 EX HEABERED
REHRERE -REAREAEERBRMN
MR B ERRETE -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3

BRBEE (&)

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the gearing ratio was

as follows:

32 EXEKBERE (&)
RIB-NFR-ZB-N\F+_A=+—
H-EARARGELENT:

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—A8
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FET
Borrowing (Note 33) &k (Hat33) 5,577 10,247
Lease liabilities (Note 16) HE&E (Hatie) 59,310 -
Written put option liability (Note 35) B R GBI B & (H#1i735) 683,908 -
Total debt &R 748,795 10,247
Total equity W 458 5,278,512 4,571,275
Total capital 4E A 6,027,307 4,581,522
Gearing ratio BRABHE 12.4% 0.2%

3.3 Fair value estimation

(a) Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
instruments carried at fair values as at 31 December
2019 and 2018 by level of the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair values. Such inputs

3.3 AR EMEF
(a) -FlEER
THRIZTEQAFEZGERMATAEA
BB B HMAEER-_Z—NF
M—E-\F+_A=T—REATE
IRz ST A - BREABEET

are categorised into three levels within a fair value MFTm A B AR T EEERNZ =F

hierarchy as follows: Bk

e Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for o tHMAZ FY B2 RRTISWRE
identical assets or liabilities (level 1). (REEAE) (B—4) -

e Inputs other than quoted prices included within o BRBEERE—R2BEIN EENL
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, BEZIEREE (AER)LH
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that & (AREERE ) BARE (£
is, derived from prices) (level 2). &) e

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based o WIFRIBEFRTBEMGEIEMEE 2

on observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs) (level 3).

BESABZHABE (BITAE
RZBABUE) (F=4) -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BBEBEEE
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AFEMEF (8)
(a) Fair value hierarchy (Continued) @ 2NFEER(E)
The following table presents the Group’s assets that TREJFREERLZN _Z—NEFT A
were measured at fair values at 31 December 2019. =t+—HAFEFEZEE-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

E-&/ IR E=#® mat
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TE#xT TFER FTERT TER

Assets EE
Financial assets at FVPL BEAVEFABRZ
TREE
— Unlisted investment fund —EEMRERES - - 122,093 122,093
— Unlisted convertible —JE A AR E L IR
preference shares - - 166,113 166,113
— Listed trading securities —FTmEEZES 1,712 - - 1,712
Total A 1,712 - 288,206 289,918
The following table presents the Group’s assets that TREJAEERN —Z—N\F+_H
were measured at fair values at 31 December 2018. =t+—HAFEFEZEE-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—H B F=H BEr
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHET FHET
Assets BE
Financial asset at FVOCI TR EFAEMEE
Wz eBEE
— Unlisted equity security —JEETMRAES - - 895 895
Financial assets at FVPL BEAVFEFAEBRZ
— Unlisted investment fund ~ —JF EMIRERESE - - 129,869 129,869
— Unlisted convertible —JE LT A BARE AR
preference shares - - 141,872 141,872
— Listed trading securities —FTEE#ES 2,004 - - 2,004
Total CE 2,004 - 272,636 274,640
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(@) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
There were no significant transfers of financial assets
between the fair value hierarchy classifications during
the year (2018: same).

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in
active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives,
and trading and equity securities) is based on
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
The quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques which maximise
the use of observable market data and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

Financial instruments in level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument
is included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted
equity security, unlisted investment fund and
unlisted convertible preference shares.

3 BEEBEZE®)

3.3 AREMEF (8)

(@)

AFEER (E)

FA AFEBEIEFRLESREE
BEREE(ZZ—)\F:ER) -

(ii)

(iii)

F—RzeHmIA
EREMSEE 2SI A (fmn
AREETETAREERBEAE
FIZATE BELEEHZTS
WMEFNE -AKEFFERMEEL
MEHELREREANEBE -EHLA
SFAE A

F_RzeMTH
WIFRERMENEE 22 M T A
(EHMTE T A ) A ERITEE
NHE ERERAABRHSE
& WERERAKEERZFER
e RTAZAHEMBEMAEE
RBABBORIBREE AH
TAFAE &

F_RzeMTH
EIRSR SRS N A BB I
ABRZMSEBEAEE BT
BERFt ASE = LUEARIEL
MRS  JELEMREES NI
LRI AR SR
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(b) Valuation techniques used to determine fair values

(c)

The Group's finance department includes a team that
performs the valuations of financial assets required
for financial reporting purposes, including level 3
fair values. As part of the valuation process, this team
reports directly to the chief financial officer (“CFO”)
and external valuers will be engaged, if necessary.

In applying the discounted cash flow technique,
management has taken into account the estimated
amount that the Group would receive to sell the
instrument at the balance sheet date, taking into
account current interest rates and the current credit
worthiness of the counterparties. Where discounted
cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash
flows are based on management’s best estimates and
the discount rate is a market related rate for a similar
instrument at the balance sheet date.

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3)

Specific valuation techniques used to value level
3 financial instruments include techniques such as
discounted cash flow analysis and net asset value
model. There are no changes in valuation techniques
during the year (2018: same).

3

A B B 985 A Bi

Bt REEE (&)

3.3 AFEMEF (8)
(b) BT N-FEEHZGER

(©)

AEEEHRE—EARMBREMT
EREEME(BRE=RA2FE)Z
B M EBET ZEEERAY
TBHAEIER - WX B FERZIIMNEE
1B

ERMIRR S RERIME  BEECDA
RASEGREBUAREEREETAMN
hET 2R BN EARSFHREE
FR - e B R BAIRIR £ M BRI - 14
SRR RERE R ENREMHE
H R BRER RN T ARG E B 89186
MG E -

RHEX T A BRI B IR Z 2 F
EitE (=)

RUARE =R TAKEZREME
RiBRBRBAEREITLEEF
ERAFHM - FARBERMILEEZLS
(ZF—\F:48R) -
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 MBEBRER
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AREME (&)
() Fair value measurements using significant ) RBHEAXTAEEBAZIZRZ INF
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued) EitE (F=4R)(%&)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 TREIBE-ZT-NFT-A=1—
financial instruments for the year ended 31 December HIFEFE=fsRIAZ#%:
2019:

Financial asset

at fair value

Financial assets at through other

fair value through comprehensive

profit or loss income

BOYE

STARMEE

BROFEFARGEZ Wiz

THEE THEE

- unlisted

convertible - unlisted - unlisted

preference  investment equity
shares fund security Total

-~k LM —kEW -~k LW
TREELR REES K@ &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TiER TR TR

Balance at 1 January 2019 RZB-WE-R—BZ&H% 141,872 129,869 895 272,636

Fair value losses on revaluation REMZEREER 2

recognised in other EfATEER

comprehensive income - - (892) (892)
Fair value gains/(losses) on REaRERERLZ

revaluation recognised in the ERATERS (ER)

consolidated income statement 24,241 (2,026) - 22,215
Distribution e - (3,202) - (3,202)
Exchange realignment (R - (2,548) 3 (2,551)

Balance at 31 December 2019 RZB-h&E+=A=1+-H
k3 166,113 122,093 - 288,206

Unrealised gains/(losses) recognised E@?&%ﬁﬁ R BERENZ

in the consolidated income BlEER ZEER

statement attributable to balances &% SR/ (BB)

held at the end of the reporting

period 24,241 (2,026) - 22,215
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 HMBEERER (@)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.3 AFEMGE (8)
(c) Fair value measurements using significant © EHEXTABEBAZIZRZ NF
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued) EitE (F=4R)(%&)
The following table presents the changes in level 3 TRENBE-Z-N\F+-A=1+—
financial instruments for the year ended 31 December HIFEFE=fsmIAz#%:
2018:

Financial asset

at fair value

Financial assets at through other

fair value through comprehensive

profit or loss income

BAYE

SAARMEE

BAFEFABRLE Wiz

TREE TREE

— unlisted

convertible — unlisted — unlisted

preference investment equity
shares fund security Total

—JLm —3LEm —JLm
JRRELR REES A5 &t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TAL TEL TEL

Balance at 1 January 2018 RZB-\F-A—-B2&H 93,485 162,849 15,536 271,870
Addition FE 39,000 - - 39,000
Fair value losses on revaluation REMZERRERZ

recognised in other BN TEER

comprehensive income - - (14,384) (14,384)
Fair value gains/(losses) on ;/:\Llﬁl SRR

revaluation recognised in the SHATENRS/ (B8)

consolidated income statement 9,387 (25,660) - (16,273)
Exchange realignment R - (7,320) (257) (7,577)

Balance at 31 December 2018 R-E-NE+ZA=+—H
pd -3 141,872 129,869 895 272,636

Unrealised gains/(losses) recognised B@i&%,ﬁﬁ R BERENZ

in the consolidated income AlEERZ EER

statement attributable to balances K% fﬁ”ﬁlﬁu/ BE)

held at the end of the reporting

period 9,387 (25,660) - (16,273)
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(c) Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3) (Continued)

0]

(ii)

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss —
unlisted investment fund

The key unobservable assumptions used in the
valuation of the unlisted investment fund as at 31
December 2019 and 2018 are:

As at 31 December

Valuation

techniques Unobservable inputs 2019 2018

Net asset value N/A N/A N/A
(Note i)

Note:

()  The Group has determined that the audited net
asset value approximates fair value of the unlisted
investment fund after applying a portfolio discount
10% (2018: 10%).

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss —
unlisted convertible preference shares

The key unobservable assumptions used in the
valuation of the unlisted convertible preference
shares as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 are:

As at 31 December

Valuation
techniques Unobservable inputs 2019 2018
Discounted Pre-tax discount rate 16.0% 23.0%
cash flow Compound annual 33.9% 36.2%
analysis growth rate
Terminal growth rate 0.0% 0.0%

As at 31 December 2019, the pre-tax discount
rate used to compute the fair value is 16.0%
(2018: 23.0%). If the discount rate shifted upward
by 1%, the impact on the consolidated income
statement would be HK$6,744,000 (2018:
HK$960,000) lower. The higher the pre-tax
discount rate, the lower the fair value.

3 BEEBEZE®)

3.3 AREMEF (8)
(c) EHEAXT BRI AEIEZ NF
EiAE (F=4R)(#E)

0]

(ii)

BAVEFAEENESHEE —
FELETIREES
RZE-NFRZZE-NF+A
=t+—H FELTREES ZHEAE
KRAZEETBEERELT

Rt=A=t-A
FUBR
ERE  BAHE ZE-AE ZE-NE
BERE  TER TER TER
(W)
Bret -

() AEEET EEBKREMEEGITE
10% (ZF—/\F 1 10%) % LF;Z
BEFEHEFLIMEEES AT
BEE -

BAFERABGZEREE -
IE £ AT AR B SR B
RZF-NFRZF-N\F+A
=+—B - FLmARRELRL
BERAZEZTAIBERSEN
T

Wt=A=1-A
FABR
fRERE  BAHE “E-nFE ZEF
$BEE  HAMBRE 16.0% 23.0%
REAMT  BAFRRE 33.9% 36.2%
iR % 0.0% 00%

RZE—-NF+=ZA=+—8"
AEsTERFEZRAIMRE A
16.0% (ZZ — \F :23.0%) ° fid
BRI E@1% R E RaE RS
6,744,000 7T (ZF — N\
960,000/ 7T.) * it A B3R i = Al
DB -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BKERBEZE &

34 RERESsZEHMI A

3.4 Financial instruments by category

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Financial assets at FVPL BATVEAABGZ REE 289,918 273,745
Financial asset at FVOCI EAFEFAEMEZEKE 2
TREE - 895
Financial assets at amortised cost REHER AT ECERMEE
Other financial assets at REBEX AT EZ
amortised cost HEfemEE 101,709 62,637
Amounts due from investments FEW A= EAIRZ
accounted for using the equity wEZ A
method 19,970 15,116
Loan receivables FEUE TR 385,128 536,295
Trade and bills receivables JFE UK BR 3R K e U 2 4% 212,174 149,178
Short-term bank deposits 7 EIRITIE X 147 1,583
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTER 4,384,102 2,681,475
Total &5t 5,393,148 3,720,924
Financial liabilities at amortised cost ZE KX A2 SMEE
Written put option liability BERRLEEE 683,908 -
Lease liabilities HEBE 59,310 -
Trade and bills payables FET BRI BN R4 439,287 251,043
Payables for payment processing XN R PEBREIRTT RER
solutions business 2 e FE 599,389 266,710
Other payables and accruals H b B K ERTFRIB 903,508 1,182,518
Amounts due to investments FERAEREARZIEE
accounted for using the equity ZHIA
method 21,226 114,190
Borrowing BN 5,577 10,247
Total &t 2,712,205 1,824,708

159



160

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the consolidated
financial statements are evaluated and based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of
future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Impairment of loan receivables
Impairment loss on loan receivables represent
management’s best estimate of losses incurred in the
loan portfolio at the reporting date under ECL models.
Management assesses whether the credit risk of loan
receivables have increased significantly since their initial
recognition and apply a three-stage impairment model
to calculate their ECL. The Group is required to exercise
judgement in making assumptions and estimates when
calculating loan impairment loss, including any observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from loans portfolio and
historical loss experience on the basis of the relevant
observable data that reflects current economic conditions.

The measurement of the ECL involves significant
management judgments and assumptions, primarily
including the selection of appropriate models and
determination of relevant key measurement parameters,
criteria for determining whether or not there was a
significant increase in credit risk or a default was incurred,
economic indicators for forward-looking measurement,
and the application of economic scenarios and weightings,
management consideration due to significant uncertain
factors not covered in the models and the estimated future
cash flows in stage 3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4 BAEGEHEE R HE

RRRELHRE M IS IME 2 At RAE - TOER B
ERBRIAMRR SEBEHRREREBERT
BEAREHIR 2 EHMIEL -

AEBFHARAR 2 A REBR -BEEE
FrfEgst At RV RAEMZ BERERER -FE
REBAEEH T —EAMREFEHEERBE L
BREEFHEAFE Z T RBREFIAT o

@ EWENRE
WERREBREEEEREBREE
BRI SIRE BN ERESEENER
ZRESR - BEEAERERZEER
BEEVSERLEETERERN WER=
BB ERAG EEBHMEEER - HAE
ERRERR (BREMNBRTEFAE MG
AIRERERERBRAAERD 2 TBRH
TRIA K2 S R A AR L RO AR B AT R R B
RERNEL EIBER)E  NREBERET
HE - (R BRER R At

BHEEER A ESRERNER EHEX
B T2 RHEESEEE L ETF AN
RITE2H EXEERBREDARIEMZ
BRAE REELEL AR LT ENLEE
1% LRGBS N INEE  ARE SR
BMEZEATEEMAREHZEREESE
RERFE=FERZEFRRRERE
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(b) Fair values of the unlisted financial instruments at

(o)

fair value through profit or loss

The fair values of the unlisted financial instruments at FVPL
that are not traded in an active market are determined by
using valuation techniques. The Group uses its judgement
to select a variety of methods and make assumptions that
are mainly based on market conditions existing at each of
the balance sheet date. The Group has used discounted
cash flow analysis and net asset value model for the
unlisted financial instruments at FVPL that are not traded in
active market (Note 3.3).

Income taxes and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income tax. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such difference will impact the income
tax and deferred tax provision in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers
to be probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses can
be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.

A B B 985 A Bi

4 BAEGTHEETRAE (50

(b) BAFEFABSEZFLHTEHMTAR

(c)

FE

WIER BTSSP 2 R AFERABRZ
FEMERTAZ A HETRAMERNE
EeAEBEERAEEESRETE WIEH
FEERFZAERERTRNRE AEE
B E LR RTISR 5 2 AT ER
ABGZZIFEMERTARBRSREMSE
EREEFERIETAN (Ha3.3) -

Fr {8 %t & IR SE B T8

AEBETRBIEESERIDABMAEH -
EE SR AR AN EAHE - RER
5 Rt B2 RSB BRI TEMA M 2 8o
Wz EENRARBERERECEER
=82 AIREFERBPEFELETHR A
S IR E R A

BRE TREZEMNABRNEEHRE
ERNEEBRRAIBISRRERTEN A E
EiRERS = RS HABIENER THER &
ERBABANERAERER-
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5 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER 5 WA -Htlk AREAMUZE ~(FE)
GAINS/(LOSSES), NET R

RERERZ WA AR EAlzS (&
B)FBEET

Revenue, other income and other gains/(losses), net recognised
during the year are as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

162

2019 2018
=l AN
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Turnover = £
Provision of payment processing solutions 4t (32 R E AR R 5 2 4,672,640 3,744,922
Sales of information security chips HEERLENH MERT R
and solutions 290,010 291,567
Provision of platform operation solutions 2t & & & fF R 5 R 194,831 208,569
Provision of financial solutions RESBBAGTR 302,223 311,549
Sales of electronic power meters HEBRABEMMBRTR
and solutions 116,277 105,347
5,575,981 4,661,954
Other income Hiug A
Interest income B A 53,572 23,717
Subsidy income ARG A 58,843 16,423
Rental income HE WA 3,312 2,419
Others HAb 1,115 1,335
116,842 43,894
Other gains/(losses), net HttWas, (B18) 58
Fair values gains/(losses) Tﬁ’&iﬁ%‘l’]\% BIEMEEL
on financial assets at FVPL NEEWRE (EE)
— Unlisted convertible preference shares ~ —3E 70 A] #AR B %2 I% 24,241 9,387
— Unlisted investment fund —FLETREES (2,026) (25,660)
— Listed trading securities —FHEEES (292) (698)
Dividend income from KERATEFABRZERMEE
a financial asset at FVPL 2B A 117 49
22,040 (16,922)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the internal reports reviewed by the Board of Directors that are
used to make strategic decisions.

The Board of Directors considers the business of the Group
from a product perspective.

The Group is organised into five main operating segments in
these internal reports:

(@) Payment processing solutions — principally engaged in
provision of payment processing services, merchants
recruiting, micro-lending business, credit assessment
services and related products and solutions;

(b) Information security chips and solutions — principally
engaged in the provision of information system
consultancy services, the sales of mag-strip card security
decoder chips and related products and solutions;

(c) Platform operation solutions — principally engaged in the
provision of telecommunication and mobile payment
platform operation services and operation value-added
services;

(d) Financial solutions — principally engaged in the provision
of information system consultancy, integration and
operation services and sales of information technology
products to financial institutions and banks; and

(e) Electronic power meters and solutions — principally
engaged in the manufacturing and sales of electronic
power meters, data collection terminals and related
products and solutions.

The Board of Directors assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of adjusted earnings/
(losses) before interest expense, taxes, depreciation and
amortisation (“EBITDA”) excluding write off of property, plant
and equipment, fair values gains/(losses) on financial assets at
FVPL and employees’ incentive programmes of subsidiaries.

AN

pa)

BEEREEFERE

A B B 985 A Bi

3%

BIAVE L SRR TE 2 M ERR

ST S

EEeNERARTEREEER-

REBZ ARG

SRAEETEEEHE:

SNRZGEBRRT R - B RREN
RHEIEIRT  FPHRE  EESER
EHERBARAEER KR TTS

BEELRENH MRS R ERFREE
ﬂ%%ﬁ?ﬁﬂﬂﬁ%l«(&%%ﬁmlm‘fzm VRIS
FrA MBI E fn R R 2

FRELRRANTRE -T2 ERHENLE
BT A RS K ﬁMi‘fﬁﬂEi‘“

SRR R - T BUEA S RMEENIRT
REBMRGAN  RREEL R R HE
BARRE®R: &

m MR R - R REER
BEfh ~ BRI ER R B R E

FEEFHRNMBRFEIT L FIE - T E R# AL
FEERM, (E518) ([EBITDA ) (B4Rt

/N

wE BATEAABRZERMEE
FlEWKE (BR) KB RR 2 &8 %E

AHED BRI AR E N B2 RSB -
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 TEER(E
An analysis of the Group's revenue and results for the year by REBFANZ WA RERZEEDEDTWT

operating segment is as follows:

Information Electronic

Payment security Platform power
processing chips and operation Financial ~ meters and Total
solutions solutions solutions solutions solutions Others Group

xf = BEGHE

XERE REVRR  VREE £ Emk
BARRE BRER  BRAR  BRAR  BRER At KEA

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER TER TR TERT TERT TET TER

Year ended 31 December HZE-ZE—-H%E+=A

2019 =t-BLEE
Segment turnover NREEE 4,672,640 290,010 196,302 302,223 116,277 - 5577452
Inter-segment turnover DIEEEER - - (1,471) - - - (1,471)
Turnover from external RENBEP 2 EXE

customers 4,672,640 290,010 194,831 302223 116277 - 5,575,981

Segmental EBITDA (excluding 7 32EBITDA (T &1

write off of property; MEnE BERR
plant and equipment, B mATEFAE
fair values gains on B EREEZRT

financial assets at FVPL Bl Rk —EREA
and employees’ incentive 72 (8 8 )T &)

programme of a subsidiary) 1,160,533 29,639 (11,672) (6,081) (12,232) (11,461) 1,148,726
Depreciation hE (369,366) (2,434) (5,377) (3,525) (2,893) (1,239 (384,834)
Amortisation B - - (36) - (76) - (112)
Write off of property, WEmE BER

plant and equipment B (94,701) - - - - - (94,701)
Fair values gains on BRATE ARG S

financial assets at FVPL BEEZATEKE - - 22,215 - - - 22,215
Employees’ incentive —HfEARZESE

programme of a subsidiary Bt &l - (30,303) - - - - (30,303)
Segmental operating PREERF/

profit/(loss) (B#) 696,466 (3,098) 5,130 (9,606) (15,201) (12,700) 660,991
Unallocated other income K7 ELE A 8,624
Unallocated corporate AABEERX

expenses (91,442)
Finance costs RE R A (10,245)

Share of results of investments &5 AR % AR 2
accounted for using the RE#E

equity method 208,695
Profit before income tax PR ET{S T A& Al 776,623
Income tax expense Frig MY (93,656)
Profit for the year FRREM 682,967
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6 TEERE

Information Electronic
Payment security Platform power
processing  chips and operation Financial ~ meters and Total
solutions solutions solutions solutions solutions Others Group
xft =8 B8
XHRE TESRER W TeRER £ Emk
BRAAR  WARE  BARR  BRFR BRAR Hth  £EAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiER FET TET TER TR FTER FEL
Year ended 31 December ~ BZE-Z-NF+=fA
2018 =t-RLFE
Segment turnover SEEER 3,744,922 291,567 209,636 311,549 105,347 - 4,663,021
Inter-segment turnover ke - - (1,067) - - - (1,067)
Turnover from external REMPEP 2 EEE
customers 3,744,922 291,567 208,569 311,549 105,347 - 4,661,954
Segmental EBITDA (excluding 7 3EEBITDA (215
fair values losses on ATEFABRZ®
financial assets at FVPL REELATERE
and employees’ incentive LB AAZEE®
programmes of subsidiaries)  EjzTZ]) 884,448 26,475 (24,148) 12,054 (23,920) (12,262) 862,647
Depreciation e (292,147) (629) (2,131) (278) 2,214 97) (297,496)
Amortisation B - - (144) - (290) - (434)
Fair values losses on RATEHF ARG S
financial assets at FVPL MEE A THERE - - (16,273) - - - (16,273)
Employees’ incentive MEARZESRE
programmes of subsidiaries &t &l (195,300) (6,147) - - - - (201,447)
Segmental operating HRREER,/
profit/(loss) (B1) 397,001 19,699 (42,696) 11,776 (26,424) (12,359) 346,997
Unallocated other income KA B KA 5,145
Unallocated corporate AABEERX
expenses (93,641)
Finance costs BEKAK (89)
Share of result of an Pl AR AR Z
investment accounted for ~ —IEIRE 7 EHE
using the equity method 171,753
Profit before income tax BRI AT RF 430,165
Income tax expense FriEfiBx (92,875)
Profit for the year FRE 337,290
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Unallocated corporate expenses represent costs that are used
for all segments, including depreciation of property, plant
and equipment of HK$1,168,000 (2018: HK$1,981,000),
depreciation of investment properties of HK$197,000 (2018:
HK$198,000) and depreciation of right-of-use assets of
HK$5,506,000 (2018: amortisation of leasehold land of
HK$760,000), respectively.

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2019 and
additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December
2019 are as follows:

6 TEER(E

AOMEEATIERBRIEIBZHAE 55
BIEME  WE REEITE168,0008 T (=
— J\4F 11,981,000/ 7T ) ~ 1% & ¥ % 37 £197,000
BT (ZF— )\ :198,000/8 7T) M (F L E
HTEE5,506,000/8 7T (=& — \F T & 1t 8 8
760,000/ 7T ) °

RIB-NF+-A=+—RB2ZOREEHREE
REZE_Z-NEFT_A=1+—HILFEIFRH
BEZAENT:

Information Electronic
Payment security Platform power
processing  chipsand  operation Financial ~ meters and Total
luti luti luti solutions  solutions Others  Unallocated ~ Elimination Group
XA -3 ERHE
RERE RELRR TREE k31 EmK
BRAER BARE BRFRE  BRFR  BRFE 2t AAE B KBA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TERL TERT TERT FET TERL TERL TR FET
As at 31 December 2019 RZB-1&
+=A=t-8
Segment assets DEEE 4,233,447 334,768 620,759 325,571 213,800 98,513 3,333,286  (1,011,076) 8,149,068
Segment liabilities NEEE (2,600467) (201,880  (307,764)  (335,316)  (153417)  (159,190)  (123,598) 1,011,076  (2,870,556)
Year ended 31 December 2019 EZ=F-NF
TZBE=t+-BLEE
Additions to non-current assets ~ FREEEZRE (T8
(excluding deferred income tax ~ JEIEFTSTIEE
assets, investments accounted ~ AEREARZRE
for using the equity method, BATEFALMEE
financial asset at FVOCI, other Wiz 7 & BAE
financial assets at amortised REEKAHE 2 EM
cost, loan receivables and SREE BRERK
financial assets at FVPL) BATEGFABH®Z
SREE) 141,396 1,863 5,634 7,327 669 326 9,156 - 166,371
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 DEEHR(E
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and RCE-N\F+-_A=+—BZOREEHREE
additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December REZEZT— \F+A=1+—HILFEFRY
2018 are as follows: BEIJANBHT:
Information Electronic
Payment security Platform power
processing  chipsand ~ operation Financial ~ meters and Total
solutions solutions ~ solutions solutions solutions Others  Unallocated ~ Elimination Group
535 ) BiitE
RHRE RELRR FREE £ Emk
BRAR  BRFE  BAFR BRI BARR Hity OB B KEAH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THx FAR FET THT Thx FAR FET THT FAR
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-NF
+=ZA=t-8
Segment assets NEAE 2,848,317 248,240 637,276 339,802 249,455 102,338 3,169,150 (962,061) 6,632,517
Segment liabilities HeE (1,768,738) (193,738) (318,483) (321,434) (175,311) (158,290 (87,309) 962,061 (2,061,242)
Year ended 31 December 2018 HBE=-F—N\f£
+-A=t-ALEE
Additions to non-current assets ~ JEREIEE ZRE (TR
(excluding deferred income tax ~ EIEFTISHEE
assets, investments accounted  BAERAAEZHE
for using the equity method, BRATEFALMZE
financial asset at FVOCI, other Wz 2 SEIEE &
financial assets at amortised BERATE A M
cost, loan receivables and SHEE BRERR
financial assets at FVPL) BATEFABREZ
SREE) 537,266 2,612 1,647 161 296 6 131 - 543299

Unallocated assets mainly include an investment accounted
for using the equity method of HK$2,103,541,000 (2018:
HK$1,927,772,000) and cash and bank balances of
HK$514,267,000 (2018: HK$561,845,000).

During the year, additions to non-current assets mainly
comprise additions to property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets (2018: property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets).

Information provided to the Board of Directors is measured
in a manner consistent with that of the consolidated financial
statements. These assets and liabilities are allocated based on
the operations of the segment.

Sales between segments are carried out at normal commercial
terms. The revenue from external parties reported to the Board
of Directors is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated income statement.

AOMEETERRUARIZEIAEZRE
2,103,541,0007% 7t ( == — J\ 4 : 1,927,772,000
BIL) LA KRIR & R IRTT A5 82514,267,0008 7T (=
T — )\ 4F : 561,845,000/8 7T ) °

EW IERBEEZREIZREEME BE R
" EREEENEVEEZRE (ZT—N
FIME -BERRBMELEE) -

MEFSRH ERIRMES

FEMBHRER R
HEE - REEERABENE

A2 X OBC

PR R TR T AR E
RESNBEP Z WA RRRG AR TS
e L



168

HI SUN TECHNOLOGY (CHINA) LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group is principally domiciled in Mainland China and

Hong Kong (2018: same). The Group's turnover by geographical
locations, which is determined by the locations in which the

turnover are generated from, is as follows:

6

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f o S 985 A B

AEBEZMERPEANERES(ZF—N
FAER) - AR EZBR BN 1%
ERELZWRET) BT

D2 EEE (

A

For the year ended

31 December

BE+T-A=1+—-HLEE

'u\

2019 2018
—E-NF —N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Mainland China B K B 5,490,078 4,556,117
Hong Kong BB 85,903 105,837
5,575,981 4,661,954

The Group’s non-current assets (excluding other financial
assets at amortised cost, loan receivables, deferred income tax

assets, investments accounted for using the equity method,

financial asset at FVOCI and financial assets at FVPL) and

current assets by geographical locations, which is determined

by the geographical locations in which the asset is located, is as

follows:

AEEZE S D 2 ERBEE (T RIRREH

RAFTEZ b2 REE - [EYK

B EIEFRS

MEE NEREANRZIRE BAFEFAR
fhEERE  EREE IR HEFABREZE
BEE) MRBEE (RAMEEMEMLET)H

AT

As at 31 December

R+=HA=+-—H
2019 2018
—E-hE —\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Non-current assets EREBEE
Mainland China B K B 467,570 747 475
Hong Kong BB 8,830 1,667
476,400 749,142
Current assets RBEE
Mainland China AR B K B 3,846,630 2,880,301
Hong Kong i 1,425,453 783,310
Others Hih 2,609 2,654
5,274,692 3,666,265




7 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling expenses,

administrative expenses and credit
analysed as follows:

Auditor’s remuneration
— audit and audit related services
- non-audit services
Commission paid to merchant
recruitment agents
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment (Note 15)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(Note 16)
Depreciation of investment properties
(Note 14)
Amortisation of leasehold land (Note 1.7)

Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 18)

Employee benefit expense (excluding
employees’ incentive programmes
of subsidiaries, including directors’
emoluments) (Note 9)

Costs of inventories sold (including
provision for inventories) (Note 24)

Operating lease rentals in respect of
land and buildings

Research and development costs
(including staff cost)

Credit impairment loss

— trade and bills receivables (Note 25)

— loan receivables (Note 21)
Gain on disposals of property,

plant and equipment (Note 36(b))
Write off of property,

plant and equipment (Note 15)
Provision for inventories (Note 24)
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7 HUMEES ZHX

impairment loss are

ZEEN £

— BN AZ B B AR

— IR BUR S
mBEEFPREINNAS

WE BEERETE (AiE15)
EREEENE (Ait16)
REMEINE (Hit14)

MEL#H (AE17)

BIVEERE (HiE18)

BERN L (T BIEME
Nz EEEEETE
BREEME) (Ai29)

EHEFEERN (BREFEEEE)
(Hiit24)
T AT EERERS

MERFABRAN (BHEETHRA)

ZEREEIE
— R L B R e B U ZE %
(K7at25)
—EUWE R (HfaF21)
HEWE - BER&EZ R
(K1a£36(b))
MEE D E - R KR AE
(Kiat15)
TFERBE (fft24)

A B B 985 A Bi

PG RS - BB T PR R 5 BB
BEAZBIZ AT

For the year ended
31 December

2019
—E-hE
HK$’000
FEx

4,292
2,023
3,022,429
362,116
29,392
197

112

759,877

298,288

15,494

283,822

4,676

44,124

(50)

94,701
5,539

BEt+t-HA=+—HLEE

2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
FH&T

3,832

248

2,232,045

299,477

198
986
208

697,934

298,082

37,144

322,752

5,125

34,829

(45)

1,253
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8 NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE LOSS

The net foreign exchange loss recognised in administrative
expenses for the year ended 31 December 2019 amounted to

HK$2,681,000 (2018: HK$13,788,000).

9 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 9

DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTS)

8 INEFIEFHE

— J\%F :13,788,000/8 7T ) °

HE-_Z-NF+-_A=+—HLEFE WTK
B AR 2 INE E5 18 558 52,681,000/8 7T ( =&

REEAFAX (BFESHE)

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2019 2018
—ZE-hE —EN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Wages and salaries TERFS 632,933 597,007
Pension costs and social security costs RIRE AR R IRER AR 126,944 100,927
759,877 697,934

Employees’ incentive programmes of MB L 2 E 8RR &
subsidiaries (Note 30) (H17£30) 30,303 201,447

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 included four
(2018: two) directors whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis shown in Note 41. The emoluments payable to the

EEREHFAL

remaining one (2018: three) individuals during the year are as T

follows:

AEEHE-_FT-NAFt_A=+t—"RHLEE
IEESHFALEENR (ZE-N\F MH)&E
F-WEZMEEEMTNDITH R - AFE
ENBT—% (ZT—N\F: =8) AL Z#2n

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEFE

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FHET
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & * 2B R B W 1,815 9,320
Pension cost — defined contribution plan 3R K& KA — EREHEREHE 136 443
1,951 9,763

Employees’ incentive programmes of Bt A Rl 2 1 B Ry =t 2l
subsidiaries 13,642 195,300
15,593 205,063
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING 9 EEFRFMAX (BFESEME) (@
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (Continued)
Five highest paid individuals (Continued) hEBREHFAL (B)
The emoluments fall within the following bands: e T5IER
Number of individuals
A"
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-A=+—-HLEE
2019 2018
—EB-hF —E-N\F
HK$15,500,001 — HK$16,000,000 15,500,001 7T — 16,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$51,500,001 — HK$52,000,000 51,500,001/ 7T — 52,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$52,000,001 — HK$52,500,000 52,000,001/ 7T - 52,500,000/ 7T - 1
HK$101,000,001 — HK$101,500,000 101,000,001 7T — 101,500,000/ 7T - 1
FINANCE COSTS 10 BB

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-HA=1+—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-NF ZZT—)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Finance costs A& AR
— Borrowing — & 127 89
— Lease liabilities —HEAE 2,704 -
— Written put option liability —BEHREHERE 7,414 -
10,245 89
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11 FREBiFExX

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-A=1+—-HLEE

2019 2018
—E-NF —ZT-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET

Current tax R
— Hong Kong profits tax —EHBNEH - -
— Overseas taxation —BINELIE 93,354 92,925
Deferred tax EEFRIIA 302 (50)
Income tax expense FRAS B X 93,656 92,875

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2018: same) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.
Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the
estimated assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to corporate income tax
(“CIT”) in accordance with the PRC CIT Law. According to
the PRC CIT Law and the relevant regulations, the CIT tax rate
applicable is 25% unless preferential rates are applicable in the
cities where the subsidiaries are located.

If a subsidiary is subject to CIT and qualified as High and New
Technology Enterprise (“HNTE”), the applicable CIT tax rate is
15%. If a subsidiary is subject to CIT and qualified as Software
and Integrated Circuit Enterprise (“SICE”), the applicable CIT tax
rate is 0% for the first two years of being qualified and 12.5%
for the next three years. If a subsidiary is subject to CIT and
qualified as Key Software Enterprise (“KSE”), the applicable CIT
tax rate is 10%.

FAENBRAAF A ERTOENIZH X
16.5% (—F—/\F : {HRE) &1 & - BINE M BIR
RILASE AT ERBOS R AR E 2 B E R
RERIBEAR-

BB RAE TR B EMEREABMEE
PR ([REEH]) - RIFPBEIEEMEIOE
NAERER  RIFBEHRETERNHBARME
W BRIBEMSTERR R R25%

i — M B A T B EMERREEERKA
AT ([SFEiez]) - BIEASER
SMBLE B15% o n— M B R B BSM R
BHEABRK A R EREEZE ([81HF
MEKEEPZE]) AT EmEEARERS
B EB0% BB =F T B12.5% o 4 — R
B A RIEFMMTSEFTSH R & B IR A E S
F ([EHEHFRZE]) - AERSEMEREE
E10% ©
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11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11

Applicable corporate income tax rates of principal
subsidiaries

A B B 985 A Bi

Frig®iBa Y (40)

TENBARZERLEREBBE

Applicable corporate income

tax rate
BRCEMSBHE

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-A=1+—-HLEE

Subsidiaries M AR 2019 2018
ZE-NF —E-)N\F
Beijing Hi Sun Advanced Business EREE2EESRMNERAR
Solutions Information Technology (=B EER]D) (KiZi)
Limited (“ABS”) (Note i) 15% 15%
Hangzhou PAX Electronic Technology ~ TN E EE FRMEAR A F
Limited (“Hangzhou Electronic (MUNEFRAMTL) (AaZii)
Technology”) (Note ii) 15% 15%
BTN XA RAF (“VBillOPCO”)  BEITHXANARAR ([BEITH])
(Note iii) (Htetiii) 15% 15%
IR RIS KT E AR AR ERRERMERMHAEBR AR
(“Beijing Bank and Enterprise”) (Mdbm R ]) (BaFiv)
(Note iv) 10% 15%
BE1Tt (b)) @ REEMRBABR AR BT (IbR) 8= RS
(“VBIll Finance”) (Note v) BEAR ([BEITNERE)
(Ktizv) 15% 15%
IEREEEEREBMR AT (“Beijing  JtREEZERMEERAR
Cloud Chain”) (Note vi) (MemEg]) (Hatvi) 15% 25%
Mega Hunt Microelectronics (Beijing) JKEEZEME FHM (b R)
Company Limited (“Megahunt BRAA (MKABEMEF])
Microelectronics”) (Note vii) (Htztvii) 12.5% 12.5%
Hunan Hisun Mobile Pay IT Limited s G B E ERMERA R
(“HN Mobile Pay”) (Note viii) (D@l ) (Aatvii) 15% 15%
Notes: Mat

(i)  ABS was renewed as HNTE in 2018.
(i)  Hangzhou Electronic Technology was renewed as HNTE in 2018.
(iii)  VBill OPCO was renewed as HNTE in 2017.

(iv) Beijing Bank and Enterprise was qualified as HNTE in 2016 and
qualified as KSE in 2019.

(v)  VBill Finance was qualified as HNTE in 2018.
(vi) Beijing Cloud Chain was qualified as HNTE in 2019.

(vii) Megahunt Microelectronics was qualified as SICE in 2015.

(viii) HN Mobile Pay was renewed as HNTE in 2017.

i) BEREESR-E-N\FEN/SHRIMEE-
(i)  MMEFREMR =B \FEN R IRM RS-
(i) BETTNR T —LFEN BRI L

(iv) ERRER =T RFEERRBRIMEMEERN =
T NFRERKAERUMEE-

v BETNERR-E-\FAERASIRMEE-
V) EREFER-_T-NFRER/SMAMEE-

i) JKAEEREFR T -AFSEBR AU REK
BREME-

wii) B EEEBN T FEN RS E -
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11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11 FRSHmM= (&)
The taxation on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the REERPHSTATR N 2 TR B % RDARE R SR
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average BANGE BB 2 TR H IR
tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities in the MEaz ZFW T

respective jurisdictions as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-A=1+—-HLEE

2019 2018
—B-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Profit before income tax BR FIT 1S Bt Al 7 776,623 430,165
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates BN E B R E RN 2 38
applicable to profit in the BB EGHE 2 HIA
respective countries 87,975 40,529
Tax effects of: MBTE
Income not subject to taxation /,\%TRLBU\ (50,087) (48,382)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes  BLaRFL M 5 AT 2 2 32,998 72,956
Utilisation of previously unrecognised PRBERERZHIEBRE
tax losses 1,177) (4,758)
Tax losses for which no deferred income I #& 3% & AT 13 75 JE 72 328
tax was recognised Z IR E 23,947 32,530
Income tax expense FriSFif 93,656 92,875
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 11.3% for the BHEZT-NF+-A=1T—HILFE ME¥
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: 9.4%). The change is HEATRER/NS% (ZE—N\F:94%) - &
caused by a change in the profitability mix of the Group's RATDAREE 7 B A RRIEREREIR 2 276
subsidiaries in the respective countries. HAELBREHME
12 DIVIDENDS 12 RE
No dividend has been paid or declared by the Company for the BE-_Z-NF+-A=1T—RILFE ~QF
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil). WEXNRE RS (ZF—N\F &) -
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13 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B 985 A Bi

13 SREF

Basic (@ B

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to the owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

GRREARZRNTHRA R RIEA AESENR
NFEABBTE BB FHBEE -

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-A=1+T—-HLEE

2019 2018
—E-NF —ZT-N\F
Profit attributable to the owners of ZAN/NEIE? WX Eh b
the Company (HK$'000) (F%&7T) 569,111 278,175
Weighted average number of ordinary B 17 & @R N F 19 £
shares in issue (thousands shares) (F8&) 2,776,834 2,776,834
Basic earnings per share attributable to 72 A% A A B T
the owners of the Company ERBH (FRET)
(HKS$ per share) 0.205 0.100
Diluted (b) #58

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
net profit and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding to assume conversion of all potentially
dilutive shares.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has
five categories (2018: same) of potentially dilutive shares:
share options issued by an associated company — PAX
Global Technology Limited (“PAX Global”), share options
and convertible preference shares issued by an associated
company — Cloopen Group Holding Limited (“Cloopen”)
and share options issued by subsidiaries — VBill OPCO and
Megahunt Microelectronics (2018: same).

SRS AT R A AR5
R TR R B THES B AT 45
B

BHE-_Z-NF+-A=+—RHLEFE K
SEERR(ZZ—)\F:5R) LEEEE
Wz By —REE AR - B BREEH
BRAR([AERM) BT ZEEE —
k& 2 7] —Cloopen Group Holding Limited
([Cloopen 1) 8577 2 B R&HE Ko AT HARR B 52 A%
KMt & A B —BETT T RIKEIE B F 34T
ZBRE (—E—N\F BR) -
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13 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued)

(b) Diluted (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the
calculation of diluted earnings per share does not assume
the exercise of the share options of PAX Global as they
would have an anti-dilutive impact to the basic earnings
per share.

For share options and convertible preference shares issued
by Cloopen, as at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount
of the interest in Cloopen was zero (2018: same). As at
31 December 2019, the Group’s share of loss exceeded
its interest in the ordinary shares of Cloopen, the exercise
of the abovementioned share options and convertible
preference shares would not have any impact on the
diluted earnings per share (2018: same).

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the exercise
of the outstanding share options in VBill OPCO (2018:
VBill OPCO and Megahunt Microelectronics) would
have a dilutive effect. The exercise of the share options
in VBill OPCO (2018: VBill OPCO and Megahunt
Microelectronics) would be dilutive if the net profit
attributable to the owners of the Company will decrease. A
calculation is done to determine the number of shares that
could have been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average annual fair value of the subsidiaries’ shares) based
on the monetary value of the subscription rights attached
to outstanding share options of VBill OPCO (2018: VBill
OPCO and Megahunt Microelectronics). The number of
shares calculated as above is compared with the number of
shares that would have been issued assuming the exercise
of the share options of VBill OPCO (2018: VBill OPCO and
Megahunt Microelectronics).

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the calculation of
diluted earnings per share does not assume the exercise
of the share options of Megahunt Microelectronics as they
would have an anti-dilutive impact to the basic earnings
per share.

13 BREF (%)

(b) #8 (%)

HE-Z-NFER_Z—N\F+A=+—
HIEFE SREEaMNDREREE SR
o BlRERETEmMAE  RAAEES
HERERABNEERBEELE -

BLCloopend 17 2 5 I i I A #2 IR (& 5 AR
ME RZB-—AF+ZA=+—B"R¥
Cloopen2 #HEHEEAS (ZZ— N\F 4
) - R=Z—NF+=A=+—H 4~&H
FEAG BB AR B E FA Cloopen& i A% & #E %5 -
B TR i RS AR S PTR B SE R S e
BREERTEREATE (22— N\F:
EICD

BHE-_Z—-hF+-A=+—BILFE"
TR (ZE—N\F BT RIKRAE
EWET) 2 RITEERER L A EEE Y
WA NTIEE AEMERERFEER D A
TEREIT (ZF—)\F  BET T R IJKRNE
EWMET) BESE e - EE]
RAFEWE RSB (LB ARG,
2 FHFERAFEEE) HRERETN (=
T \F BETA RIKFIBEMEF) 2K
TR PTM s REEE R EERNE - L
XETEtE 2 IR NEE Ty ERERREETN (=
—NF BTN REMEEMET) 2B
HEREITIE 2 B BT BN E BB o

RE-TNET-A=+—ALEE &
REE RN RE BB ENET 28
BIEAR BT - RE BRI EH SR
BARHELREETE-
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13 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 13 SRER (&)
(b) Diluted (Continued) b) BB(E)

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-NF —FT-NF
Profit attributable to the owners of KRR BHER ARG T
the Company (HK$'000) (F%&7T) 569,111 278,175
Assuming exercise of all outstanding BRETHN (ZE—\F:
dilutive share options issued by BE1TT IR BEMET)
VBill OPCO (2018: VBill OPCO and BITZFARAKRITE
Megahunt Microelectronics) (HK$'000) — ##5&5RE R iE &1 T(E
(F#&xT)
— Decrease in profit attributable to the . WNGIEZS DN
owners of the Company JE Ay ARk (41,810) (13,728)
Adjusted profit attributable to the owners A LAEE & G RESE B F) 2
of the Company used to determine EN/NEIE? e DN AR L
diluted earnings per share (HK$'000) wA (FET) 527,301 264,447
Weighted average number of ordinary BREERMN TR
shares for diluted earnings per share g e (FR)
(thousands shares) 2,776,834 2,776,834
Diluted earnings per share attributable to 2N A1#E B A JEL T %
the owners of the Company wEEMN (FRET)
(HKS$ per share) 0.190 0.095
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

14 REWE

Buildings
BF
HK$'000
FET
At 1 January 2018 R=Z—-N\§—HA—H
Cost BN 4,256
Accumulated depreciation REtiE (2,350)
Net book amount R FE 1,906
Fair value (Note) NEE (KT 11,989
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-_Z-N\E+-A=+—HLEE
Opening net book value FHEREFE 1,906
Transfer to property, plant and equipment (Note 15) =413 - BB L& (M1iF15) (133)
Depreciation & (198)
Closing net book value FREEFE 1,575
At 31 December 2018 R=FB-NE+=H=+—H
Cost PR 3,960
Accumulated depreciation RETE (2,385)
Net book amount BRTEF(E 1,575
Fair value (Note) NEAE (K1) 10,343
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z—hF+-A=+—HLEE
Opening net book value FREFE 1,575
Depreciation e (197)
Closing net book value FREREFE 1,378
At 31 December 2019 R=FB-hF+=H=+—H
Cost AR 3,960
Accumulated depreciation Eik = (2,582)
Net book amount ERTEF(E 1,378
Fair value (Note) NFE (K E) 10,878
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Note:
Fair value measurements using significant other observable inputs (level 2)

The investment properties located at Level 15 to 17, Yindu Building, No. 67
Fu Cheng Road, Haidian District, Beijing City, PRC (1t R /& % & Bk 567
SRR EBAE15-1742) . The fair value as at 31 December 2019 was assessed
by the independent and professionally qualified valuer, Asset Appraisal
Limited.

The valuation was determined using the direct comparison approach.
Sales prices of comparable properties in close proximity are adjusted for
differences in key attributes such as property size. The most significant input
into this valuation approach is price per square foot.

At 31 December 2019, the Group had no unprovided contractual
obligations for future repairs and maintenance (2018: same).

All depreciation expense during the year has been charged to administrative
expenses (2018: same).

The following amounts have been recognised in the consolidated income
statement:

Rental income HE2 WA
Direct operating expenses arising from investment

property that generated rental income

BRERHX

A B B 985 A Bi

14 REWE (&)
Kt -

NEMBEXTEEGABBFERQATVENE(E=
&)
BREYEMNFEILRTERRRKK7SRIREAE5-17
B-R-E-AF+-_A=+t—RBZAFERBUEES
Efath e HEEETEBRRARARNE

HETDRBERLEEETE - PR AT LR 2 8
EERGRIEBE (PINYERE) 2 ZRIEHFE - It
HETEZRERBAEREG T HRERE-

REZE-NFTZA=+—H AEEHEEHARKREE
RREMAEREZEOEE(ZF—N\F:HER) -

FAMEFERS O ATRER (ZF—/\F:ER)
AT EHEEREERERAER -

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-HA=+t—BHLEE

BEEEWAZREMEMEEZ

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
3,312 2,419

(619) 417)

There were no direct operating expenses arising from
investment property that did not generate rental income during
the year (2018: same).

The period of leases whereby the Group leases out its
investment properties under operating leases ranged from 1 to 2
years (2018: same).

FATAHEHSBMAZREMEL EEEEMA
HELERY (ZZ—N\F ERA) -

AEFRBELHERHHIETEYE 2 BN T
122F (ZZ— \F:MHRA) -
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The investment properties are leased to tenants under operating
leases with rentals payable monthly. There are no other variable
lease payments that depend on an index or rate.

Although the Group is exposed to changes in the residual value
at the end of the current leases, the Group typically enters into
new operating leases and therefore will not immediately realise
any reduction in residual value at the end of these leases.
Expectations about the future residual values are reflected in the
fair value of the properties.

At 31 December 2018 and 2019, the future aggregate
minimum rentals receivables under non-cancellable operating
leases are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f o S 985 A B

14 BEWE (8)

REVERKEHERTEP SAXNES-
I A EBUR S BN R R 2 E 5

BEAEBEZ AR REERESSORE

BASERESMEEHEE  RtNZEHE
HIRS T e LA ERRER D - HARARENH
ERBRYIEH R FER

RZF—)\FERZZE-—NF+_A=+—H"'1R
BAREHEEHE 2 ARSI ERES @ FE I
T~

As at 31 December

Rt=—A=+—H
2019 2018
—2-NF AL
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER TAET
Not later than 1 year TEBBE1F 4,672 433
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years #8:@14 {8 i85 20 -
4,692 433
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e R e
15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 ¥ BEREE
Office
Leasehold  furniture and Plant and Motor
Buildings  improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
HE WAE
B MELEE RAKRE BERRE ARE &t
HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000
TET THT THT THT THT THT
At 1 January 2018 R-B-NE-B—-A
Cost KA 40,587 26,860 139,520 797,705 32,274 1,036,946
Accumulated depreciation ZiIE (20,248) (24,145) (118,646) (333,390) (26,303) (522,732)
Accumulated impairment loss REPRAERE - - - (7,190) - (7,190)
Net book amount FEFE 20,339 2,715 20,874 457,125 5,971 507,024
Year ended 31 December 2018 HE-_Z-N\¥+=-A=+-AH
tEE
Opening net book amount FMREFE 20,339 2,715 20,874 457,125 5,971 507,024
Additions RE - 290 18,045 522,723 2,113 543,171
Transfer from investment properties BaRENE (Mi214)

(Note 14) 133 - - - - 133
Disposals (Note 36(b)) & (Hizts6b)) - - (792) (177) - (969)
Depreciation nE (1,079) (2,096) (11,480) (281,781) (3,041) (299,477)
Exchange realignment RIS (975) 71) (1,305) (32,138) (200) (34,689)
Closing net book amount FREEHE 18,418 838 25,342 665,752 4,843 715,193
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NE+=Zf=+-H
Cost AR 38,867 26,042 145,916 1,260,382 31,998 1,503,205
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (20,449) (25,204) (120,574) (587,806) (27,155) (781,188)
Accumulated impairment loss ZiREREE - - - (6,824) - (6,824)
Net book amount RHEEE 18,418 838 25,342 665,752 4,843 715,193
Year ended 31 December 2019 HE-_Z-hF+=-A=+-AH

tEE

Opening net book amount FMREFE 18,418 838 25,342 665,752 4,843 715,193
Additions nE - 497 44,170 88,114 2,493 135,274
Disposals (Note 36(b)) H& (H36)) - - (66) @1 - (107)
Written off HisH - - - (94,701) - (94,701)
Depreciation weE (1,684) (922) (21,224) (336,350) (1,936) (362,116)
Exchange realignment ERRE (338) (10) 911) (7,745) (83) (9,087)
Closing net book amount FREETEFE 16,396 403 47,311 315,029 5,317 384,456
At 31 December 2019 R=B-AFE+=A=+-H

Cost AR 38,102 26,108 185.496 542,184 32,645 824,535
Accumulated depreciation ZEtiE (21,706) (25,705) (138,185) (220,495) (27,328) (433,419
Accumulated impairment loss ZiHRERR - - - (6,660) - (6,660)
Net book amount REFE 16,396 403 47,311 315,029 5,317 384,456
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

15 W% -BERRE (&)

Depreciation expense included in cost of sales, selling
expenses and administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

HEKA HEBARTHEATRENTESR
RS

For the year ended
31 December

BEt+t-HA=+—HLEE

2019 2018
ZE-NF AN

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FAET

Cost of sales SHE AR 337,700 283,607
Selling expenses HEEH 280 240
Administrative expenses THEH 24,136 15,630
362,116 299,477

As at 31 December 2019, net book amount of electronic
funds transfer point-of-sale terminals in relation to the payment
processing solutions business represented plant and equipment
amounting to HK$312,627,000 (2018: HK$662,597,000).
The carrying amount of the electronic funds transfer point-of-
sale terminals is written down to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, management had
carried out an assessment over the recoverable amounts of
these electronic funds transfer point-of-sale terminals based
on their respective level of utilisation. As a result, certain
under-utilised electronic funds transfer point-of-sale terminals
amounting to HK$94,701,000 were written-off and recognised
in cost of sales.

As at 31 December 2019, banking facilities of approximately
HK$17,847,000 (2018: HK$18,217,000) were secured by
buildings with a net book value of HK$6,385,000 (2018:
HK$7,530,000).

MNZZ—NFE+ZA=+—0 BINLHEE
FRR T RER (BRE MERE) EENE T
SHE BHAIR I AR FE 5312,627,0008 T (=&
—\F 1 662,597,000/87T ) « WEERAERKE
AT E £ 58 - BB T AT S BRI AR
EEMEEHE AR E S5 -

HE-Z-NE+-_A=1t—HIEE EEE
EREZEE T HEBAmEE 8 FIAK
T HE AU B S R TREE - H it - B T RIA R
RRE T 25 85 5 Zh 4% 05 #£94,701,00078 TT 1
T g - A 6 A AN TERR ©

R-ZE—-hAhE+-_A=1+—8B FITRELD
17,847,000 70 (=& — J\F : 18,217,000/
7T ) BA BR [ 3% {86,385,00008 7 (= T — )\ 4 :
7,530,000 7T ) Z A& FEH I -
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16 LEASES 16 #HE

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance (@ RECEEEBREANEEH
sheet

The consolidated balance sheet shows the following RAEEBERBERATERAEMERT

amounts relating to leases in respect of office premises and FEERH R
factory:
As at As at
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
R-ZZE—NEFE RZZE—IF
+=—HB=+—H —H—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Right-of-use assets EREEE
— Office premises —WNEYE 79,646 78,910
— Factory — T 8,855 9,257
88,501 88,167
Lease liabilities HEAaE
— Non-current —JERE 31,494 32,395
— Current —nE 27,816 25,282
59,310 57,677

REZE-—E-NE+-_A=+—HIEEX
FAEEERNE 530,793,000 7T

Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year ended
31 December 2019 were HK$30,793,000.

RZE-NAFE+-_A=1+—8 HI0EY
17,847,000/ 7T LA 48 BR T V54 {82,726,0007%5 7T
B EEEE

As at 31 December 2019, banking facilities of
approximately HK$17,847,000 were secured by a
right-of-use asset with a total net carrying amount of
HK$2,726,000.
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16 LEASES (Continued)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income

(c)

statement

The consolidated income statement shows the following
amounts relating to leases in respect of office premises and
factory:

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets (Note )
Interest expense (included in finance costs)
Expenses relating to leases of short-term leases

16 HE (&)
b) REtBRERINSE

FaWERBTRATERAEY R TR
EAMHDR:

For the

year ended

31 December
2019

Bz
—E-NEF
+=ZA=+—H
LFE
HK$'000
FET

FREEENEERR (Mit7) 29,392
FMERZ (FGFAREXA) 2,704
B HIE v HEBBEME 15,494

Depreciation expense included in cost of sales and
administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

Cost of sales 85 & AR
Administrative expenses THER

FTAHERARITHRERANTEERSTA
T

For the year
ended

31 December
2019

Bz
—E-NF
+t=ZBR=+—H
LFE
HK$’000
FHET

3,307
26,085

29,392

The total cash outflow for leases in the year ended 31
December 2019 is HK$30,646,000.

The Group’s leasing activities

The Group leases various office premises. Rental contracts
are typically made for 1 to 8 years. The lease agreements
do not impose any covenants.

REZE-—T—NE+-A=+—HIEEY
FE 2 IR &R 4858 530,646,00078 7T ©

(0 AEENHEHEES
AEFEHERBRA=ME -HESHNER
1284 - M E kT e M E(T 24T -
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17 LEASEHOLD LAND 17 HE L
As disclosed in Note 2.1.1(a), the leasehold land was W21 1@F i B —ZE—NF— A — B
reclassified to the right-of-use assets under the adoption of Fﬁ%%ﬁﬁkﬁiﬁ IZE 165518  FHE T BT 5
HKFRS 16 from 1 January 2019: BRERAEEE:
For the year ended
31 December
BE+-HA=+—HLEE
2019 2018
—E-NF —FT-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THETT
Opening net book amount FHREFE 30,490 31,974
Transfer to right-of-use assets (Note 16) ERGRAEEE (Miti6) (30,490) -
Opening net book amount after RAEEN B MEERE165RIKH
adoption of HKFRS 16 FHREFE - 31,974
Amortisation i - (986)
Exchange realignment DE 5B - (498)
Closing net book amount FRE@HFE - 30,490
Amortisation expense included in cost of sales and SEAHER AR RITHEAEHEERONIT :
administrative expenses are analysed as follows:
For the
year ended
31 December
BE+-HA
=+—H
IFFE
2018
—E-)N\F
HK$'000
TAET
Cost of sales HE KA 56
Administrative expenses TIRE R 930
986
As at 31 December 2018, banking facilities of approximately RZZE—NF+ZA=+—0 BTRED
HK$18,217,000 were secured by leasehold land with a total 18,217,000/ 7T LA 48 AR T FE2,862,00078 7T 2 1

net carrying amount of HK$2,862,000. B+ {EHIR
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18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18 B EE

Patents and
capitalised
Customer software
listand ~ development In progress Computer
Goodwill  Brand name contracts costs  technology software Total
MR
EFEER DREEFZ
HE i BN BEMEAA  WRMRE KRS &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR TEL TR THL TR TAL

)

At 1 January 2018 RZE-NE-BA-H
Cost A 114,008 4,798 5,014 24,454 6,411 30,992 185,677
Accumulated amortisation ZitHH - (4,798) (4,906) (24,246) (6,411) (30,838) (71,199)
Accumulated impairment loss ZitHESE (112,493) - - - - - (112,493)
Net book amount A 1515 - 108 208 - 154 1985
Year ended 31 December 2018 HzZ-E-N\F

TZAZt-HLEE
Opening net book amount FRAFE 1,515 - 108 208 - 154 1,985
Additions NE - - - 128 - - 128
Amortisation charge B - - (106) (63) - (39) (208)
Exchange realignment EHRE - - 2 (13) - (6) (21)
Closing net book amount FREMEFE 1,515 - - 260 - 109 1,884
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NE+ZA=t+-H
Cost A 107,546 4,554 4,759 23,335 6,085 30,982 177,261
Accumulated amortisation 2itHH - (4554) (4,759) (23,075) (6,085) (30,873) (69,346)
Accumulated impairment loss ZitHESE (106,031) - - - - - (106,031)
Net book amount EEFE 1,515 - - 260 - 109 1,884
Year ended 31 December 2019 HZ-E-1nE

+ZA=+-BLEE
Opening net book amount FRAFE 1,515 - - 260 - 109 1,884
Additions AE - - - 304 - - 304
Amortisation charge B - - - (76) - (36) (112)
Exchange realignment EHBE - - - o) - 2 (11)
Closing net book amount FREMEFE 1,515 - - 479 - 71 2,065
At 31 December 2019 RZE-AF+t=A=1-H
Cost e 105,094 4,461 4663 23,160 5,962 30,978 174,318
Accumulated amortisation ESe ] - (4,461) (4,663) (22,681) (5,962) (30,907) (68,674)
Accumulated impairment loss ZERERE (103,579) - - - - - (103,579)
Net book amount REFE 1,515 - - 479 - 71 2,065

186



=fEEH (FED BRAR “E-NEFFH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B 985 A Bi

18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 18 |ILEE (%)
Amortisation expense included in cost of sales and FTABHERARITHRERNFTEFR S AN T

administrative expenses are analysed as follow:

For the year ended
31 December

BEt+t-HA=+—HLEE

2019 2018

ZE-NF —E-)N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FHET

Cost of sales THE B 36 144
Administrative expenses THEH 76 64
112 208

19 FINANCIAL ASSET AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 19 BAFETABEMEZEKFZZERME

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME =3
The Group’s financial asset at FVOCI represents unlisted equity REERDNFEFARMEZEARR CREES
security outside Hong Kong which is not held for trading, and EIEFHEFEE 2 BBRINE EMRARE S BX
which the Group has irrevocably elected at initial recognition SEE R RN TR IETEE (2
in this category (2018: same). This is a strategic investment and —\FH8R) - BRI E - EARER RS
the Group considers the classification as equity instruments at BRARATES AR M EENG  REATAE &
FVOCI to be more relevant. BhE]
For the year ended
31 December
BZE+=-BA=1+—-HLEE
2019 2018
—EF-NF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Balance at 1 January MR—RA— B2 &% 895 15,536
Fair value losses on revaluation T EL At 2 18D A2 2 i 8 ) B SO
recognised in other comprehensive RERBzERATERRE
income related to equity investment (892) (14,384)
Exchange realignment I 5 3 B 3) (257)
Balance at 31 December RTZA=+—RZ&HR - 895
The carrying amount of the financial asset at FVOCI is BATEFAEBEERS EREE L REE
denominated in RMB. On disposal of these equity investments, TIAANREHE - L EZERERER BAT
any related balance within the FVOCI reserve is reclassified to EFt ARMEER RSN IR &SRS E
retained earnings. MoBERERN-
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20 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 20 ZRAFETAEBRZEREE
PROFIT OR LOSS

The Group's financial assets at FVPL represent investment in AEBRAFEFABERZ SREERNIELT
unlisted investment fund, unlisted convertible preference shares REES FFLMAMBRERRE FTEEES
and listed trading securities (2018: same). These financial assets ZERE (ZZ—)\F HER) -ZEEMEETR
are mandatory measured at FVPL and with following details. iR A FEF AERENARFEWT -

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-A=1+—-HLEE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E—N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Balance at 1 January R—A—Hz&& 273,745 259,036
AddlUOn E/J\\E - 39,000
Net fair value gains/(losses) on revaluation R4RE WEm KR Z
recognised in the consolidated income HAFEWR (E8)FE
statement 21,923 (16,971)
Distribution ol (3,202) -
Exchange realignment P 54 3 B (2,548) (7,320
Balance at 31 December R+ A=+—B82&# 289,918 273,745
As at 31 December
BR+=ZHA=+—8
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Non-current assets FkREBEE
Unlisted investment fund outside BRBEIINZIELEMIRERES
Hong Kong (Note (a)) (Bfit@)) 122,093 129,869
Unlisted convertible preference shares BRI IF £ Al AR
outside Hong Kong (Note (b)) B (Hfatm)) 166,113 141,872
208206271741
Current assets REBEE
Listed trading securities in Hong Kong BEELMEEREISF (Witw)
(Note (c)) 1,712 2,004
289,918 273,745
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20 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

Notes:

(@ Unlisted investment fund outside Hong Kong
The carrying amount of the unlisted investment fund is denominated in
RMB.

(b)  Unlisted convertible preference shares outside Hong Kong

On 10 June 2016 and 28 February 2018, the Group subscribed
7,443,326 Convertible Series C Preferred Shares (the “Convertible
Series C Preferred Shares”) and 2,434,015 Convertible Series D
Preferred Shares (the “Convertible Series D Preferred Shares”) of
Cloopen, respectively. The considerations for the Convertible Series C
Preferred Shares and Convertible Series D Preferred Shares subscribed
by the Group were approximately HK$78,000,000 (equivalent to
US$10,000,000) and HK$39,000,000 (equivalent to US$5,000,000),
respectively.

The Group, as the holders of the Convertible Series C Preferred Shares
and Convertible Series D Preferred Shares have:

(i)  options to request Cloopen to redeem the Convertible Series
C Preferred Shares and Convertible Series D Preferred Shares
at the prices equal to the greater of the issue prices with an
8% compound interest per annum return plus any accrued but
unpaid dividends or the fair values at the dates of redemptions
after the earliest of 10 June 2020 for Convertible Series C
Preferred Shares and 28 February 2021 for Convertible Series
D Preferred Shares or the occurrences of other conditions as
provided for under the definitive subscription agreements; and

(i) options to convert the Convertible Series C Preferred Shares and
Convertible Series D Preferred Shares into ordinary shares of
Cloopen at the conversion prices based on certain conditions
on the dates of conversions as provided for under the definitive
subscription agreements.

The Convertible Series C Preferred Shares and Convertible Series D
Preferred Shares, together with the abovementioned options, were
classified as financial assets at FVPL and recognised at fair values. The
fair values of the Convertible Series C Preferred Shares and Convertible
Series D Preferred Shares were valued by an independent valuer at the
date of initial inception and on 31 December 2019.

The carrying amounts of the unlisted convertible preference shares are
denominated in US$.

(c) Listed trading securities in Hong Kong
The fair value of the listed trading securities is based on their
current bid prices in an active market and their carrying amount is
denominated in HK$.

Changes in fair value of financial assets at FVPL are recorded in ‘other gains/
(losses), net” in the consolidated income statement.

A B B 985 A Bi

20 ATV EFFABRZS@MEE (8

HrE

it -

(@)

b)

ERRNZFELTREES
FEMREES ZRMETIAARKEE

EREME LT TRRELR
REZE—ARFRNATEERZZE-\FZA=+N\A"
AEE S FIFREE7,443,326% Cloopen 2 CRFI| AT (E
ek ([CHRFIATHPRAB 5T AR 1) 122,434,015% Cloopen
2 DEFITTHRARE LR ([DRF AR E L)) o A
EEMRECRIIIRREB LR KDRS AT RRE L
%z RAB 5 BI149 578,000,000 7T (85 7210,000,000
2 71,) 139,000,000/ 7T (48 #25,000,000% 7T ) °

AEE (ERCRIIRARELR R DR AR ES
BFRBAN) A :

(i)  EFZEXCloopent —ZE=F4 XA +H (FLCE
FARRELERm S ) R=E=—F A =+N\
H (DR TR E LR T 5 ) B ERKKR
BT 2 At g (AREE BE) 18I
HRER TR EE 2 ERERCRY AR E T
fi& R DZR P AT IR A AE S % - B8%iE & FFI R A
RAMEAIEEHMR AR AR B 2 B ATE N EE B
W RAFE: R

(i) RN RE R EETA 2 SR B HREE
TR B RCRYI TR E LR RDRT
A HARRAE SE AR EE 1R A Cloopen 2 A% o

CRI AR RE SR R DA S A i E S BuE R it
BMDDERBEATEFARSZEMEE WA
FEMR - CRFI| AR RE LR RDR AT E L
Bz ATFEDBBLGEARERARBEHR-F
—NFEFZA=+—HETHE"

SE LT AR E S IR Z BREE YA TIIE -

ERLTEERS
EHEERSNATEDREENERTSZRITE
ANEFE AREENETIE-

BAHEFABRZ EREEZ A FEEEINEE WS
RATEM e (B5E)FHE] P58
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21 LOAN RECEIVABLES 21 EWER
Loan receivables are amounts due from customers in the JEWER AN/ NEERAEERBETRERE
ordinary course of the micro-lending business, unsecured and FPHRIE BREFAEREERR I ZUAARK
primarily denominated in RMB. Be
(a) Aging analysis of loan receivables (@ EBRERZKRERIN
The aging analysis of loan receivables based on the RIERHA R B 2 R E SRR AT a0 T

payment due date is as follows:

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2019 2018
—E-NF —TN\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current BV AR 369,971 553,676
1 to 3 months past due wmE—Z==1A A 24,659 9,365
Over 3 months past due BEA=ME A LA & 33,738 6,061
Loan receivables, gross JEUR EFh 4858 428,368 569,102
Less: Provision for impairment of loan  J& : FEURE SR E B 1
receivables (Note (i) (K1a6)) (43,240) (32,807)
385,128 536,295
Non-current JERNER - 479
Current Bl EA 385,128 535,816
385,128 536,295
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21 LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a) Aging analysis of loan receivables (Continued)
The analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount
and the corresponding provision for impairment of loan
receivables in relation to loan receivables are as follows:

Loan receivables, gross JEWE R4 s
Less: Provision for impairment of & : J& W B 58 (B 7
loan receivables

A B B 985 A Bi

21 BEWER (%)

@ EBWERZIREDT (&)
B R E R @ AR E M AR R S FURE
BEEH 2N

As at 31 December 2019
R-ZFE-NEF+=ZA=+—8H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F-HER F-BR F=ER e
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000
FER FEx FEx FER

368,409 22,698 26,393 417,500

(2,217) (6,695) (26,393) (35,305)

Loan receivables, net JEEFUHEE
Interest receivables, net UL F) B R
Loan receivables, gross JE W E R AR

Less: Provision for impairment of & : JEUCE FURE &
loan receivables

366,192 16,003 - 382,195
2,933

385,128

As at 31 December 2018
R-F-N\F+=-A=1+—H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F-FEER F_HER S=RR T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TETT THET THETT THET

468,532 84,419 5,558 558,509

(827) (26,422) (5,558)  (32,807)

Loan receivables, net B E TR F 58
Interest receivables, net FEUCR B F 58

467,705 57,997 - 525,702
10,593

536,295
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(a) Aging analysis of loan receivables (Continued)

Movements for gross carrying amount of loan receivables:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f o S 985 A B

21 EWER (&)

@ EBWERZIREDT (&)
ERE SR EREESMT

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F-HE E_RBER E=RR @zt
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
FET FExT FET FET
As at 1 January 2018 RZE—N\F—H—H 2,201 - - 2,201
Addition/transfer NE B 971,411 131,172 7,864 1,110,447
Repayment B (487,244)  (43,509) (1,331)  (532,084)
Written off H4H - - (761) (761)
Exchange realignment HE 5, 5 B (17,836) (3,244) 214)  (21,294)
As at 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F
+=-A=+—8H 468,532 84,419 5,558 558,509
As at 1 January 2019 RZE—-—NF—H—H 468,532 84,419 5,558 558,509
Addition/transfer NE B 1,462,524 (47,234) 72,907 1,488,197
Repayment B (1,554,658)  (13,801)  (18,764) (1,587,223)
Written off Ei§is - - (32,836) (32,836)
Exchange realignment ME 5, 58 B (7,989) (686) (472) (9,147)
As at 31 December 2019 R-ZZE—NF
+=—A=+—H 368,409 22,698 26,393 417,500
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21 LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 21 BRES ()
(a) Aging analysis of loan receivables (Continued) (@ EBWERZEREDN(E)
Movements for provision for impairment of loan EWE SR EREEBT :

receivables are as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F-HEE F-EER F=ER mEt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FER TR TR FTET

As at 1 January 2018 R-ZZE—N\F—HA—H - - - -
Addition/transfer B 859 27,437 5772 34,068
Exchange realignment bEE 3¢ 8 (32) (1,015) (214) (1,261)
As at 31 December 2018 RZZE—N\F
+=ZA=+—H 827 26,422 5,558 32,807
As at 1 January 2019 R_E—-hEF—H—H 827 26,422 5,558 32,807
Addition/transfer RE/ B 1,431 (19,519) 21,306 3,218
Exchange realignment DEE 34, 8 B (41) (208) 471) (720)
As at 31 December 2019 RZZT—NF
+=-A=+--8 2,217 6,695 26393 35,305
Note: Hat
(i)  Impairment and risk exposure () REREEREE
The Group applies HKFRS 9 to measure the ECL. The Group REB BB U RELAFEIRTBIELRE
assesses whether the credit risk of loan receivables have increased EER - AEEREREER 2 EERR B
significantly since their initial recognition, and apply a three- AL D AMELL AN - W FE A =R BORE R A 5
stage impairment model to calculate their ECL, the management HEHRMBEEER ERECReSHRTES
assesses impairment loss using the risk parameter modelling B (BEEOIAR BB RRENRRR
approach that incorporates key measurement parameters, 1) R 2 8RR AN E BATIE T AR - &1
including probability of default, loss given default and exposure R EEE -

at default with the consideration of forward-looking information.
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21 LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a) Aging analysis of loan receivables (Continued)
Note: (Continued)

(i)

Impairment and risk exposure (Continued)

Management applied a three-stage impairment model to assess
the credit quality of the loan receivables. The loan receivables are
categorised into the following stages by the Group:

Stage 1

Loan receivables have not experienced a significant increase in
credit risk since origination and impairment recognised on the
basis of 12 months ECL (12-month ECLs).

Stage 2

Loan receivables to customers have experienced a significant
increase in credit risk since origination and impairment is
recognised on the basis of lifetime ECL (Lifetime ECLs non credit-
impaired).

Stage 3
Loan receivables that are in default and considered credit
impaired (Lifetime ECLs credit impaired).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, based on
management’s assessment, the Group recorded credit
impairment loss of HK$11,288,000 (2018: HK$34,068,000)
in the consolidated income statement. Loan receivables of
HK$32,836,000 (2018: HK$761,000), which are still subject to
enforcement activity, were determined as uncollectible and were
written off against loan receivables during the year ended 31
December 2019.

The loan receivables are not collateralised.

(b) Effective interest rates on loan receivables
The effective interest rates on loan receivables are normally
as follows:

Loans to individual borrowers

21 EWER (&)

@ EWERZIRERD T (4E)
Mzt (48)

(i)

AR BB AR (4)
EREER —BBRERA TR ERZE
BEZ AEEHREKRERD FRATREE

E-lER

B RO EER 128 A B EEREE (120
ATRIEEEE)ETHER SRKERZEE
e\ 3 AR R A

E_ER

R IER RERR 2 RGEEER (BE
SRENZHEREEER) ETER AT
PRtz BRERZ FRERBEZEM-

E=ER
EHNARERERRE (FRRENZHES
EEBR) MERER-

REE-Z-NE+-A=+—HIEE &
BEBRBNTE AEERGE RERFHE
EERERE11,288,0008 7T (— T — \ 4
34,068,000/ 7T) © WZEHEI TR E B B E
X A32,836,0007% 7T (= F — )\ 4 : 761,00075
TL) T AEEKE YREBEE—T—NF
+Z A=+ BLEENRKERFHE-

U R SR R R

b) ERER > ERAIE
FEME S BRI R — BT

AEAE R T RREZER

For the year ended
31 December
BE+t-HA=+—HLEE
2019 2018
—EB-hEF —E-N\F

5% to 36% p.a.
FRNE5%E36%

5% to 36% p.a.
FHE5%E36%
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22 BT

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2018 and 2019:

Name

£

Beijing Hi Sun Advanced
Business Solutions Information
Technology Limited

EREBEEEERNARAR

Hunan Hisun Mobile Pay
IT Limited*
HEREEBESRTERAR

Hangzhou PAX Electronic Technology

Limited
MNEEEFRITERAR

Mega Hunt Microelectronics
(Beijing) Company Limited

KAEEHEF M (LR)ERRH

B ARAR

HERTNER N EERERAR:

Place of incorporation
and type of legal entity

AL H R
EERBER

The PRC, limited
liability company

TEARAF

The PRC, limited
liability company

hE BB

The PRC, limited

liability company

TEBRAF
The PRC, limited
liability company

FEBERRAF

The PRC, limited
liability company

HEARAF

The PRC, limited
liability company

TEARAE

Principal activities and
place of operation

TREFRERGE

Provision of financial solutions,
services and related products in PRC

ERERESRBATE
PR RARRE M
Provision of platform operation solutions

in PRC
ERERATREERANR

Manufacturing and sales of electronic
power meters and solutions in PRC

EFRLERHEBHIEERR
BRI

Sales of information security chips and
solutions in PRC

EREHEEERECR RBRAATER

Provision of payment processing
solutions in PRC

EREREXNRIRERATR

Provision of micro loan solutions in PRC

ERERENEEFRANR

RZF-NFR=F-NEF+ZA=+t—H =

EMBAR ZBEWNT

Particulars Proportion

of issued of ordinary

share capital/ shares directly

registered held by

capital the Group

(%)

K&

BRITRE/ EEREZ

AMERFE EER LA

(%)

HK$100,000,000 100%
100,000,000/ 7T

RMB42,435,000 100%
AR #42,435,0007C

RMB53,400,000 100%
AR #53,400,0007T

HK$15,000,000 76.92%

(2018: 100%)

(Note 30)

15,000,000/ 7T (ZZ-NE:

100%)

(Hi7#30)

RMB199,900,000 66.83%

(2018: 80.04%)

(Note 35)

AE#199,900,0007T (ZB-N\F:

80.04% )

(Hiz#35)

RMB500,000,000 66.83%

(2018: 80.04%)

(Note 35)

AR 500,000,000 (ZZ-N\%F:

80.04%)

(Hii£35)

Proportion
of ordinary
shares held
by non-
controlling
interests
(%)
FFERER
"EZ
BERLH
(%)

23.08%
(2018 nil)

(22— NF:8)

31.17%
(2018:19.96%)

(ZZ—N\F:
19.96% )
31.17%

(2018:19.96%)

(2%
19.96% )
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22 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

HN Mobile Pay is the subsidiary of #EZE&E KM AR QA
(“Hunan Yunrong”). The Company does not have legal ownership in
equity of Hunan Yunrong. Nevertheless, under certain contractual
agreements enacted among the registered owners of Hunan Yunrong,
the Company and the Company’s other subsidiary, the Company
controls Hunan Yunrong by way of controlling more than one half of
the voting rights of it, governing its financial and operating policies and
appointing or removing the majority of the members of its controlling
authorities, and casting the majority of votes at meetings of such
authorities. In addition, such contractual agreements also transfer the
risks and rewards of Hunan Yunrong to the Company. As a result, they
are presented as the consolidating subsidiaries of the Company.

VBill OPCO and MERETTNBEH NEERBR AT are the
subsidiaries of B=EEITEENEBER AT (“Chongging JIM”). The
Company does not have legal ownership in equity of Chongging JIM.
Nevertheless, under certain contractual agreements enacted among the
registered owners of Chongging JIM, the Company and the Company’s
other subsidiary, the Company controls Chongging JIM by way of
controlling more than one half of the voting rights of it, governing
its financial and operating policies and appointing or removing the
majority of the members of its controlling authorities, and casting
the majority of votes at meetings of such authorities. In addition,
such contractual agreements also transfer the risks and rewards of
Chongging JIM to the Company. As a result, they are presented as the
consolidating subsidiaries of the Company.

Material non-controlling interest

The total non-controlling interest as at 31 December 2019
is HK$591,464,000 (2018: HK$193,062,000), of which
HK$514,569,000 (2018: HK$215,455,000) is attributed to
VBill OPCO and its subsidiaries (“VBill Group”), which is
considered to be material to the Group.

Significant restrictions of subsidiaries with material non-
controlling interests

Cash and short-term deposits of HK$2,662,856,000 (2018:
HK$1,535,894,000) of VBill Group are held in the PRC
and are subject to local exchange control regulations.
These local exchange control regulations provide for
restrictions on exporting capital from the country, other
than through normal dividends.

22 BT (&)

*

(@)

WS R A PR EREERMERATE (DHE
TR 2B AR - ARAR RS T AR
SETEEARE A RBHEERMEMEE A ARF
EARAREMMIB AR LZETEKNGHE  AA
BB B AE BRI R R R E T RS
REMEREE GBI RN RE  URRZER
AEEE LRASHUER  EMEGHREEE - 1o
BRAKNBATE BT/ AR K EREE TAR
Al Et - BEBINER A B 2 FAMB AT

BEITIN R EREITNRR N EERERATNAEE
EOTRDRBERAR ([BELTT]) ZHBAR A
RENEGEABEETED EEREAE- R R
BEEATEMEAA ARREARREMMER
BRI B T A0 AR REBIEGEELSTT
B REE RS EMS R EERR FREERME
B2 RO E  ARRZE ABBEE LRAZH
B WMt EELSTT - U BREA MR ER
KETT 2 R K B R T AR E] e E L R ERDIE
ARRZEEEHBAF -

BAFERER
R-_E—NF+_A=+—RzEEkiE
% 42 B8 5591,464,000%8 7T (=T — )\ F
193,062,000/ 7T.) * E F1514,569,000/%8 7T
(=Z— )\ : 215,455,000/ 7T ) ELRET T+ K2
HB AR ([T SE]) B - =
HAEBEBEK-

HEEANHER Em BN G EE
R

BETTI 5B 2 IR & M A2 BTF 382,662,856,000
BT (ZZ—)\%F 1 1,535,894,0007%5 7T ) JH#E
RS A SR & HINE B HIIAIR o 5
& M INE B I E A AR E R B A A (I
BB IBRE) 2R
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22 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a) Material non-controlling interest (Continued)

Summarised financial information of subsidiaries with

material non-controlling interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for

the VBill Group.

Summarised balance sheet:

22 MIEBAT (&)

@ EXRFERER(HE)

HEEA R Em 2 WE L 72 5

EHHE

ATEIIBETN RE 2 B E R

BEEABRMR:

As at 31 December

R+=ZA=+-—H

2019 2018

—E-NF —T)N\F

HK$'000 HK$' 000

FET FHT

Non-current assets JERMENEE 401,607 699,531
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (23,711) (983)
Non-current net assets IRBEETFE 377,896 698,548
Current assets mBEE 3,161,750 2,148,640
Current liabilities nBBE (1,888,799) (1,767,755)
Current net assets REBEEFE 1,272,951 380,885
Net assets EEFE 1,650,847 1,079,433
Accumulated non-controlling interests Rzt IR ER 514,569 215,455
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22 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a) Material non-controlling interest (Continued)
Summarised financial information of subsidiaries with
material non-controlling interests (Continued)
Summarised income statement:

22 BT (&)

@ EXRFERER(E)
HEEAHZERERZHE L 72
BEHHE (&)

Wk -

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-A=1+—-HLEE

2019 2018

—B-hEF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Revenue WA 4,672,640 3,744,922

Profit before income tax R PTAS BRI & 695,226 397,001

Profit for the year F W@ A 603,492 309,404

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax HEf2HEEE (NRTIE) (32,079) (50,401)
Total comprehensive income for the year, F A2 F Wz 4858 (N FRIE)

net of tax 571,413 259,003
Total comprehensive income attributable FF1% I #E 25 FE (G 2 E W = A8 88

to non-controlling interests 111,310 51,697

Summarised cash flows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-A=1+—-HLEE

2019 2018

—E-NEF —ET—N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

Cash generated from operating activities #£%& ¥ F153H ¢ 1,316,469 637,220

Cash used in investing activities HEEHMARS (810,016) (455,271)
Net increase in cash and BeRBEEEEYZ

cash equivalents B®inEEE 506,453 181,949

The information above is before inter-company
eliminations.

A EER REBARRMEHER AR -



=fEEH (FED BRAR

—B-hEFR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B 985 A Bi

23 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 23 UREFRHZEZABREZRE
EQUITY METHOD

The balance recognised in the consolidated balance sheet is as REFEBEERABRBER ZEHRNT

follows:

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2019 2018
—B-hEF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FET
Associated company: NSk
— PAX Global (Note (a)) —BERK (K@) 2,103,541 1,927,772
— Good Chain (Chongging) Technology — i (EE)BRIBRERAF
Co., Ltd. (“Good Chain”) (Note (c)) ([a7sg]) (i) 3,196 3,416
2,106,737 1,931,188
The amount of share of results recognised in the consolidated RIFEWERERANEE L BIERENT

income statement is as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-NE —E-)\F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
Associated company: I WNCIE
— PAX Global (Note (a)) —BERK (Mit@) 208,848 171,753
— Good Chain (Note (c) — 58 (Bt ©) (153) -
208,695 171,753
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23 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 23 DUERZARZERE (&)

EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(a) Investment in PAX Global (@ REERRZKE

Set out below is an associated company of the Group as
at 31 December 2018 and 2019, which, in the opinion
of the directors, is material to the Group — PAX Global.
PAX Global has share capital consisting solely of ordinary
shares, which are held directly by the Group; its principal
places of business are in the PRC, Hong Kong, the United
States of America and Italy.

Place of
incorporation and Particular of issued
Name kind of legal entity share capital
AL B R
&8 AEEBER BERITRAHE
PAX Global (Note i) Bermuda, limited 1,100,194,000 ordinary shares
liability company of HK$0.1 each
BERR (W) BRE BRAA 1,100,194,0008

EREEIAETZEER

On 20 December 2010, as a result of the Group’s spinoff
of PAX Global to be separately listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange, PAX Global became an associated
company of the Group. On the date when control
ceased, the Group's retained interest in PAX Global
was fair valued, and this give rise to the recognition of
goodwill being the difference between the fair value of
the investment in PAX Global and its share of net assets
value of PAX Global. As at 31 December 2019, difference
between the carrying value of the investment in PAX
Global and its share of net assets value of PAX Global
mainly included goodwill of HK$530,420,000 (2018:
HK$530,420,000) and adjustments to eliminate unrealised
profits and losses on transactions between the Group and

IXEIR —_F-NFR_F-NF+_H
=t REERRYAEEMEBERZAN
SEBZ2 QR -AEREK - ABRIHEEH
REBERFEEATBRBRZBA &
TEZEMHBATE TR XHNRERE
RBAF

Nature of Effective Measurement

relationship interest held method
FsEZ

BEHEE ERER SHRAE

Associate 33.09% Equity

Bz s

RIZ—FF+_A-+H aRAEES
FHEREBHRIEL EM 2 EERK 8
BRI BN EE 2B & AT o FME L2
EER AEEREERRE ZERZUAR
FEF 2 SEEREE (R EERKE
BNV EREEEAERNEEFBE L E
) A _E-NFt+-_A=+—H RAE=E
BRIk ERAEREAENAERIKEETF
B2 =+ 2 8ER2E530,420,0008 7T (=
= — \4F : 530,420,000/ 7T ) * WHEFTFHELA
HHAEEHET BRI HNREIREF
a0

PAX Global.
For the year ended
31 December
BE+=-B=1+—BLEE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At 1 January n—A—H8 1,927,772 1,823,245
Share of profit JEAL 4 A 208,848 171,753
Share of other comprehensive loss FE(G E b2 E1E (16,756) (38,106)
Share of other reserves FE(RE M 12,797 -
Dividend received BB (29,120) (29,120)
At 31 December ®nt+=—A=+—8” 2,103,541 1,927,772
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23 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 23 DUERZARZERE (&)

EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(a) Investment in PAX Global (Continued) @ REEBRRZEE (E)

Impairment test for interest in PAX Global

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of the investment
calculated based on the current bid price of PAX Global
at the balance sheet date is less than its carrying value. An
impairment test is performed to determine the recoverable
amount of the investment. The recoverable amount, which
was assessed by an independent valuer on a value-in-use
basis calculated by a discounted cash flow model, exceeds
the carrying value as at 31 December 2019 (2018: same).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s interest in PAX
Global was 33.09% (2018: same).

There are no contingent liabilities and commitments to
provide funding relating to the Group’s interest in PAX
Global.

Note i:  PAX Global is principally engaged in the development and
sales of electronic funds transfer point-of-sales (“E-payment
Terminals”) products, provision of payment solutions
services and maintenance services (collectively, the
“E-payment Terminals solution business”).

REERIKZ a2 618 H 5
RZE—NF+ZA=+—RH REZAT
EREERERAHAERNZEMEANE
FHE OREEREE- ETRENSE EE
EREZANEEE - R -_T-NEF+ A
=t+—R \ELAEMREREEEEN
AARARER RS REREE 2RO
HEREREE(ZS—/\F 8R) -

RIZB-NF+-A=+—RH FrEER
BERMZER33.09% (ZZ—/\F 18
@) -

BERAEERNEERRZEREHES Y
SARBBERALE-

Beti:  BERRIBENEMAEREEEFXNH
BRI ([EFXMm]) B AR
BSUSERARTT RIRTS S M RS (478 [
FRNEIBBRTRER])
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23 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 23 LR EZEAERZRE (&)
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(a) Investment in PAX Global (Continued) @ REEBRRZEE (E)
Extracted financial information set out below are the TXF#E B ERRE AR EAR Y
summarised consolidated financial information of PAX BABRNGEVBERME -

Global which is accounted for using the equity method.

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2019 2018
—B-hEF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
Current B
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREEEY 3,230,005 2,160,192
Other current assets B Reh&EE 2,966,698 3,183,544
Total current assets RBEERE 6,196,703 5,343,736
Trade and bills payables P AR I B R4 (1,382,487) (1,190,447)
Other payables and accruals Hith JE T sRIB N JE R B A (299,057) (259,120)
Other current liabilities HiRgEhatE (194,110) (83,171)
Borrowings CEN - (8,244)
Total current liabilities mB B ERRE (1,875,654) (1,540,982)
Non-current FERE
Assets BE 522,520 431,818
Liabilities aE (104,217) (21,964)
Net assets BEFE 4,739,352 4,212,608
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22 /N 23
&3 A 5 1R B RE
23 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 23 LR ZEZABRZRE (&)
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)
(a) Investment in PAX Global (Continued) @ REERRZKRE (&)

For the year ended
31 December

BEt+t-A=+—HLEE

2019 2018

ZE-NF —E-)N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET

Revenue WA 4,925,733 4,415,409

Profit for the year F A% A 624,864 515,398

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax HE2mEE (NBRFIE) (48,790) (111,840)
Total comprehensive income for the year, F A2 F Wz &8 (FNKRFRIE)

net of tax 576,074 403,558

Dividends received from the EEA = WNCIN S ) oy
associated company 29,120 29,120
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23 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 23 DUERZARZERE (&)

EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(b) Investment in Cloopen (b) HCloopenz & &

Set out below is an associated company of the Group as at
31 December 2019 — Cloopen. As at 31 December 2019,
the carrying value of Cloopen is zero (2018: same) which
is not considered as material to the consolidated financial
statements of the Group. Cloopen has share capital
consisting of class A ordinary share, class B ordinary
share, series A convertible preferred shares, series B
convertible preferred shares, series C convertible preferred
shares, series D convertible preferred shares and series E
convertible preferred shares.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s effective interest in
the ordinary shares of Cloopen, calculated based on all
issued and outstanding ordinary shares of Cloopen which
are held by the Group, is 50.51% (2018: same).

There are no contingent liabilities and commitments to
provide funding relating to the Group’s interest in Cloopen.

The interest in Cloopen was initially measured at fair
value. The carrying amount was increased or decreased
to recognise the Group’s share of the profits or loss and
movements in other comprehensive income or loss of the
interest in Cloopen to the extent the carrying amount of the
interest in Cloopen reduced to nil due to losses, after the
initial recognition. As at 31 December 2019, the Group's
share of loss of Cloopen exceeded its interest in the
ordinary shares of Cloopen, there are no overall financial
impact on the consolidated income statement from the
investment for the current year. As at 31 December 2019,
the unrecognised share of loss of the interest in Cloopen is
HK$582,356,000 (2018: HK$413,475,000).

TXHIN -_ZE-NF+_A=+—BX
S B 2B % A F—Cloopen s R ZE — NLF
+=B=+—H CloopenZ (REEAZ (=
T N\F R HAREEZFEMB®R
FKTBENX - Cloopenfi B 2 ANBHAE L@
P BRI - AR B ATHR B SE AR - BR D
AHARRIR AR - CRIIFT AR B AR - DR
AJHARSAR ST AR SR ER B AT HR AR SE AR AK

R-ZE—hF+-A=+—B LALLM
FiCloopen® #0 B 317 R BATEINE RS
& KREE R Cloopenz B iRz A
50.51% (ZF— \F : 5@)

AR AR E B R CloopenZ #EmIEHE © 2
IR BERASE-

R CloopenZ #1242 A FERH 2 « FEFIR
W%  1#F CloopenZ 1z 2 AR EIE EE 18
WEZ - FREERS E RS EREG T Cloopen
Z W Z 18510 FE LA R EAth 2 T U Ak RS
BE MG MRS -  RZE—NF+=A
=+—8  KREEE(E Cloopen 2 EBHBAE
#CloopenEiBiR 2 s - ZIBIRE N ANFE
TSR A W REN BB BT E N
E-NF+ZA=+—A KEREER

CloopenZ # % 7 518 /3582,356,0007% 7T

=T — )\ 413,475,000 7T) °
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23 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(c) Investment in Good Chain

&30 W 5 i 3% Fi BE
23 DR EARZERE (&)

(0 REFERE

For the year ended
31 December

BEt+t-A=+—HLEE

2019 2018

ZE-hF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHER FHET

At 1 January R—A—H 3,416 -
Addition NE - 3,416
Share of loss FE1h B 1R (153) -
Share of other comprehensive loss MG E A 2 T & A (67) -
3,196 3,416

24 INVENTORIES

24 FE

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—8H
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET TET
Raw materials R 8,889 16,985
Work in progress R m 82,787 129,896
Finished goods K i 3,975 15,394
95,651 162,275

The cost of inventories
to HK$298,288,000

recognised in cost of sales amounted
(2018: HK$298,082,000), which

included provision for inventories of HK$5,539,000 (2018:

HK$1,253,000).

The gross amount of inventories carried at net realisable
value amounted to approximately HK$40,933,000 (2018:
HK$36,982,000) as at 31 December 2019. Full provision has
been made with regard to these balances.

A 88 B A AN FE SR 2 17 & X AN $#£298,288,000/% 7T
(ZZ—)\4F :298,082,000/67T) * BIEFERE
5,539,000/ 7T ( == — \4F : 1,253,000/ 7T ) °

N-Z—NE+—A=+—08 KA 2EFE
BR 7 175 {5841 540,933,00008 7T ( —ZT— \4F:
36,982,000 7T) + I B FL it S 45 sR 1B 2 B
e
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25 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 25 FEUWRRTN N B R IR
As at 31 December
R+t=A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FET
Current portion BHAER o
Trade receivables (Note (a)) FEMBRSK (AT et (a)) 210,103 148,173
Bills receivables (Note (b)) FEW R (Hitb)) 16,922 11,468
Less: provision for impairment of receivables & : & W R IE R (B 2
(Note (c)) (Hit(c) (14,851) (10,463)
212,174 149,178
The carrying amounts approximate their fair values. The RAEEE QT ERS  RBERR L EKRRE 2
carrying amounts of the trade and bills receivables are SREETIA T EESIE:

denominated in the following currencies:

As at 31 December

R+t=ZA=+-—8
2019 2018
=Z2-h&E —FN\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
HK$ BT 16,217 7,086
RMB AR 193,866 139,941
us$ E 363 546
Macanese pataca (“MOP”) SRPIEE ([BP% ) 1,728 1,605
212,174 149,178
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25 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a) Trade receivables

The Group’s credit terms to trade debtors normally range
from 0 to 180 days. The ageing analysis of the trade
receivables primarily based on invoice date was as follows:

A B B 985 A Bi

25 FEWBRF R EEWEE (&)

@ EYWERRX

AEBGETESEBAZEER—RHE0E
180 15 - T IR TR A ME L 2 R
FERERDATIAT

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Current to 90 days BIEAZ=90H 166,857 109,685
91 to 180 days 912180H 11,831 2,919
181 to 365 days 1812365H 4,910 8,335
Over 365 days 3658 A 26,505 27,234
210,103 148,173

As at 31 December 2019, trade receivables included
retention money receivables of HK$11,079,000 (2018:
HK$18,767,000), which represents approximately 10%
to 20% (2018: same) of the relevant contract sum granted
to certain customers in the PRC that have a retention
period of normally one year. As at 31 December 2019, the
retention money receivables aged over 365 days primarily
based on invoice date amounted to HK$7,723,000 (2018:
HK$14,786,000).

R-ZE—NF+_A=+—8 EBREXR
B R AR E 411,079,000/ 7T (—Z— )\
118,767,000 7C) R TATHEERP
AR A L FIBL10%E20% ( —ZZF — \F
R  ZERTFZIREMBR—KAE—F-
R-ZE-hE+-A=1+—8 TELBRE
BHIAHE R A365B A 2 BUINIRES &
7,723,000 7T ( =& — J\F : 14,786,000/
JL) ©
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25 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 25 BYRAREWRRE (5)
(b) Bills receivables (b) EWRERE
The balance represents bank acceptance notes with ZAEARIERIHI R B RNE A 2 RITARE R
maturity dates within six months. The maturity profile of 15 o RN E WIS < BIEAE R T -

the bills receivables of the Group is as follows:

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TET
Falling within 90 days 90H N 3,425 4,636
Falling within 91 to 180 days 91£180H 13,497 6,832
16,922 11,468
(c) Impairment and risk exposure (c FEKRRR
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach REBRAEEVBRELERESRAEH
to measuring ECL which uses a lifetime expected loss EEFTEREMEERE  SATA RUERRE S
allowance for all trade receivables. To measure the ECL, 2HFE RS R BUE - ARt E2TEHEE RS
trade receivables have been grouped based on shared RUSERERBEHAEERBSESE %
credit risk characteristics. Future cash flows for each HREBFIAR AR RIR & 8 THRIBE £ 18
group receivables are estimated on the basis of historical AEERARET - IO VR A B DA AR E BT AR IA K2
loss experience, adjusted to reflect the effects of current RIEIEERZE -
conditions as well as forward looking information.
Movement on the provision for impairment of trade JEUERFUREREBEE ST -

receivables are as follows:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-_A=+—HLEE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
At 1 January n—H—H 10,463 5,823
Credit impairment loss EERERRE 4,676 5,125
Exchange realignment PE 58 3 B (288) (485)
At 31 December Rt+-—A=+—H 14,851 10,463
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date WS BEFEE 2 &R EERR Y Dl
is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned SRR RRIR 2 BRI (E « 78 SR (B30 M 5 5 1)
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security. IR R IERER-
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26 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED 26 R AtE2HMEREE
COST

As at 31 December

R+t=A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET
Current portion REBD
Deposits and other receivables e N EH A B RIR 53,541 49,830
Amounts due from shareholders JE Uy — TP 8 A B AR IR 2 SRR
of a subsidiary (Note 30) (K17t30) 45,254 -
98,795 49,830
Non-current portion FERBE D
Deposits e 2,914 12,807
101,709 62,637
Included in the amounts due from shareholders of a subsidiary U B2 5 50IA18,216,00078 7T K FE IR AR A
were HK$18,216,000 due from directors of the Company and Al—REBEIE A BFIA,917,000/8 TaT AFEUL
HK$1,917,000 due from a key management personnel of the — R A R FRIE
Company.
The carrying amounts approximate their fair values. The FREEEERAFERS ERBHBONMRTE
discounting impact of non-current portion is insignificant. The WAER B HER AT EZ B REEZ R
carrying amounts of other financial assets at amortised cost are EETA T EEIIE:

denominated in following currencies:

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
HK$ AT 6,723 9,878
RMB AR 94,596 52,759
us$ ETT 390 -
101,709 62,637
As at 31 December 2019, the impact of ECL is immaterial to R-ZE-—NF+_A=+—8 BHEEEEN
the Group. FEYHAREET NEKX-
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27

28

29

OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 27 EtREEE
As at 31 December
W+=—A=+—~H
2019 2018
—B-hEF —T—\%
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
Prepayments TR FRIE 21,155 17,540
Value added tax receivables JFE U IE (B F 45,851 51,448
67,006 68,988
SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS 28 EHIRITER

Short-term bank deposits of HK$147,000 (2018:
HK$1,583,000) represented bank deposits of the Group with
original maturities over three months which are placed as
guaranteed deposits for bills payables and are denominated in
RMB.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

As at 31 December 2019, total cash and bank balances of
the Group amounting to approximately HK$4,384,102,000
(2018: HK$2,681,475,000), of which cash at bank and on
hand amounting to approximately HK$2,958,284,000 (2018:
HK$1,718,417,000).

As at 31 December 2019, short-term bank deposits of
HK$751,065,000 (2018: HK$211,892,000) were fixed bank
deposits with effective interest rate of 2.1% (2018: 2.6%) and
with average maturity day of 70 days (2018: 51 days), the
remaining balance of HK$3,218,000 (2018: HK$2,618,000)
were bank deposits with original maturities within three months
which are placed as guaranteed deposits for tenders.

29

HHISRITE 147,000 T (—Z 82— \5F:
1,583,000/ 7T ) fE AN B 5 B (4 RIE M IF 1EIR 35
RehFEEDHAA=ZM@AN L ZEBTFER A
IAARHESIE -

RERBRITERR

N_EBE-NF+-_A=+—H AEENES
MARTT 4 B B EE XD 54,384,102,0008 7T (=&
— J\%F :2,681,475,000/% 7T) * EFRITRF
SHIR & #)52,958,284,000/8 7T (— & — )\ F:
1,718,417,000/8 7T ) °

R-ZE—AFE+-_A=+—8 EHRTEFEX
751,065,000/ 7T ( == — J\4F : 211,892,000/
TC) BIREERFIE21% (ZE—\F:2.6%) 518
METERTFREFEEEHA B70B (ZZ2—N
F:518)  #H T 483,218,000 T (ZZ— N\
12,618,000 7T) AR EMFIEREBFZ S K
REFHBA=EARNZRITIFR
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29 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

In accordance with the notice issued by the Payment and
Settlement Department of the People’s Bank of China (the
“PBOC"), effective from 14 January 2019, all customer reserve
accounts held by the third-party payment institutions were to be
cancelled and the customer reserves were to be deposited in a
dedicated deposit account maintained centrally by a designated
agency. The customer reserve account is non-interest bearing.
As of 31 December 2019, funds deposited in the customer
reserve account was amounting to HK$671,535,000 and
are denominated in RMB. Transfers of funds under this bank
account are governed under certain measures implemented by
the PBOC and hence these customer reserves are restricted in
nature.

As at 31 December 2018, short-term bank deposits placed
as deposits designated for settlement of certain payables
in relation to the payment processing solutions business
amounting to HK$748,548,000 and are denominated in RMB.

Funds of the Group amounting to approximately
HK$2,981,572,000 (2018: HK$1,923,022,000) are kept in
the bank accounts opened with banks in the PRC where the
remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange control.

Cash and bank balances are denominated in the following

currencies:

HK$ BETT
RMB ARH
us$ E
JPY H
MOP sk

A B B 985 A Bi

29 WL RBITEER (B)

BIEFBARRIT ([FRARRITIMNEE
RIEMRBRA BT NF—A+HAR &
SHASNERESEENMERF BN SERP W
B BRPHEBSESPERRETHENS
BEZREET -BEEMNESERPTHE -HZE
—E-NF+_A=1+—8B GREEFENE
BRFEE S A671,5350008 70 MARBEHE-
ZIRTTERP P E @ EIE S P B ARBITEE
ETHBES AHZERFENERNE EZR
o

R_E—\F+_A=+—H8 EEeARINE
BXNRGEREATREHRE TRAFIE
R A2 BRER1T17 20 5748,548,000/8 7T ' A AR BT
B

KEEE S 5H2,981,572,0008 7T (ZF— N\
F 11,923,022,00078 7T ) TFHUA R BERT TR 2 iR
IEF EHESAIINEEH-

Re MRITHRBIEATERIIE:

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FH&T
265,638 380,307
3,002,621 1,909,570
997,022 195,776
116,247 193,179
2,574 2,643

4,384,102 2,681,475
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30 SHARE CAPITAL

30 AR

Ordinary shares of HK$0.0025 each

EREE0.0025B T 2 EBER
No. of shares HK$'000
Ehe FAET
Authorised: ERE
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018, WZZE—-NF—HA—1"
1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 “T-)\F+ZA=t—H"
—E-NF-A-BR
ZZE-AFT+ZA=+—H 4,000,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHE:
At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018, WZZE-NEF—HA—1"
1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 “T-\F+ZA=t—H"
—E-NF-A-BXK
“E-NAF+ZA=+—H 2,776,833,835 6,942

Notes:

(@

(b)

Share options of the Company

The Company operates a share option scheme 2011 (the “Scheme”) for
the purpose of attracting, retaining and motivating talented employees
in order to strive for future developments and expansion of the Group.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Group’s full-time
employees, and Executive and non-Executive Directors. The Scheme
became effective on 29 April 2011 and unless otherwise cancelled or
amended, will remain valid and effective for a period of 10 years from
that date. No share option was granted under the Scheme.

Issuance of share option of a subsidiary

On 4 July 2018, the directors and the sole shareholder of Megahunt
Microelectronics have passed a resolution to conditionally grant
options (the “2018 Options”) to several management (the “2018
Grantees”) of Megahunt Microelectronics with a right to subscribe
up to approximately 16.67% of the enlarged registered and paid
up capital of Megahunt Microelectronics at an exercise price of
RMB13.33 for every HK$1.0 in the registered and paid up capital of
Megahunt Microelectronics. The 2018 options will be vested in 3 years
through tranches.

On 3 June 2019, the 2018 Grantees have given written request to the
Board of Megahunt Microelectronics to cancel their respective 2018
Options, and the directors and the sole shareholder of Megahunt
Microelectronics have passed a resolution to conditionally grant
options (the “2019 Options”) to the 2018 Grantees and several
management of the Group (the “2019 Grantees”) a right to subscribe
up to approximately 23.08% of the enlarged registered and paid
up capital of Megahunt Microelectronics at an exercise price of
RMB11.46 for every HK$1.0 in the registered and paid up capital of
Megahunt Microelectronics. The 2019 Options will be vested in 2
years through tranches.

Mat

@

(b)

AR ZBRE
AAREE BT ——FRBRE 8 ([ZE])
EERS BRENHBET #ZIES UBAEER
BRERRBEAER LA HZAERSREREAE
B2 2REBARPITRIFITES %t 8N =%
——HFNAZTNBER BRIFZAESTIUERE
71 & B i RZ B R AT+ BRI A R RO AR
SRR LA B D AR

BT RN 2 R 2 RS AR

RoF—\FLANR KEENEFHES R
—REEERAER UAMAAEBEREFNZEER
(=2 NFEEADBGERLERE (=
—\FERE]) B TREMNIRICREEME T
it R B A &1.08 TTIEB AR B13.337TMTT{E
B RB\IAEENEFRBEAEMRARRARZS
#916.67% - —F—N\FHBEEER =ZFNOHLHE -

RIB-AFRAZR 2B N\FERABRKM
EEMEFEFGRLERAR NEHEEE =%
—NEFBEEE MAMEEMETFEERE—RERE
BEARE AT \FARARESEEZEZER
B (=2 —AFARAD BRI LERE (=T
—NERBRE])  EE TRENRICAEEME T
it R BRA T E1.0B TTIEB AR B 467 MTT{E
B RB\IAEENETFRABEAEMRARRAZS
#923.08% - —F—NEFBEERRMENDHLERE
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30 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Issuance of share option of a subsidiary (Continued)

On 4 December 2019, the Company, Megahunt Microelectronics,
Mega Hunt Microelectronics Limited (a subsidiary of the Company,
“Megahunt HK”), the 2019 Grantees and certain investors (collectively
the “Megahunt Contractual Parties”) entered into a subscription
agreement (the “Megahunt Subscription Agreement”). The investors
include Wonder Pax Technology (Shenzhen) Co. Ltd (a subsidiary of
PAX Global), BB8BRECEREREXREREZSPL(F
ReE®), CET(TEGAERE)MEEEHIL(AERAR)
(collectively the “Megahunt Investors”). Pursuant to the Megahunt
Subscription Agreement, the Megahunt Investors have conditionally
agreed to subscribe for an aggregate of approximately 14.55% of
the enlarged registered capital of Megahunt Microelectronics at a
subscription price of RMB80,000,000.

Under the Megahunt Subscription Agreement, the 2019 Options
is required to be exercised by the 2019 Grantees in full and all
subscriptions thereunder have been fully paid by the 2019 Grantees
and the registration in respect of the new registered capital of
Megahunt Microelectronics is required to be increased upon the
aforesaid exercise of the 2019 Options at the relevant registration
authority having been completed.

On 30 December 2019, a special general meeting was held and
the shareholders of the Company approved that the 2019 Options
would be vested and became exercisable immediately. On 31
December 2019, the 2019 Grantees exercised 4,500,000 share
options at an exercise price of RMB11.46 per share which represented
23.08% of the enlarged registered and paid up capital of Megahunt
Microelectronics. The aggregate proceeds receivable approximated
RMB51,570,000 (equivalent to HK$57,524,000). The Group
recognised an increase in non-controlling interests of HK$35,387,000
and difference of HK$22,137,000 between the proceeds and the
change in non-controlling interest was recognised in equity attributable
to Company’s owners.

As at 31 December 2019, RMB40,570,000 (equivalent to
HK$45,254,000) of the exercised 2019 Options have not been fully
paid by certain 2019 Grantees and was recognised as amounts due
from shareholders of a subsidiary (Note 26). As at 31 December 2019,
the Megahunt Subscription Agreement have not been completed.

Employee share options expenses of HK$30,303,000 were recognised
in the consolidated income statement.

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year
determined using the Binomial valuation model was RMB5.13. The
significant inputs into the model were the exercise price as shown
above, volatility of 50.42%, zero dividend yield, exercise multiple of
2.8 times, post vesting exit rate of 0% and an annual risk-free interest
rate of 3.25%.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s equity interest in Megahunt
Microelectronics was 76.92% (2018: 100%).

A B B 985 A Bi

30 PBRA (&)

Bet - (58)

(b)

BIT-HENBARZBRE (&)
RZZE—hAF+-AMAB - AR7] KEEHE
FKAMEFERRR (KARMBERR [KAE
B ZE-NFABRARETRESE (FEA K
MEHH DT RERZE (KARERE]) -7E
EERESEAERE ORI ARAR (BE RN
BAR) LEBRBECENERELREREES
Pl (BRAR) MG CEBRAERE) B
Bhd (BRER) (FBA [JKIRESE]) < BEEXK
MR KR EEE B RGEREREIHIEE
MEFEHEL455%ERBAFMER  REBEEAA
R #80,000,0007T

REKARE G —T-NFERREAR TN
FARANBETERAATHRARBEAREH-F
—NFEFRATEN URA L =2 —NFRER
RETEMAL N KAEEMETFEMEAD
NAAB L ETRERC

R-ZE—NF+-A=THRTRREIAE AR
RIS AL R E =T — NERBIEL Al S AT TR S
ERE-RZE-NF+ZA=1+—0 T NFK
BANSRITEEEARE11.467T171F4,500,00019 8 A%
1 AERIKEEME T 2 &R A M RERRA
223.08% ° [EUWRFT1S ZIBABEE 4 B AR 51,570,000
7T (FAE 757,524,000/ 70 ) ° NEERER IR IE RS
3 1135,387,000 & 7T B AT RIB B SEIE AR i s E B 2.
R Z 522,137,000/ A A A Rl B AE(EREEA
R o

RZZ—NAF+ZA=+—8 BIE=F—NFE
& A R #540,570,0007T (8 & #45,254,00078 7T ) 3
BEET T NFARAREEN R AR
—EME R RRRIE (f1a26) - R =F—NF+=
A=+—R JkilEEREHE H AT

1 8 B RS HERT $230,303,00078 LA SR A U aE R TERR

TR HBRER IS A TE TR B EE
BRETEAARES 13T - ZEANEZHAZEA
EXFTRITEE R 850.42% W R T 1THEEH
2.8f%  BRBEIMARR0%A K ER B FFF3.25% -

REZB-NE+ZA=+—8B AEERIKIEEN
BF PR AR 576.92% ( ZF— \5FE:100%) °
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31 RESERVES 31 #E
Share  Contributed Other Exchange Retained
premium surplus reserves reserve earnings Total
(Note (i)) (Note (ii))
RVEE EHBH  HERE EXEE RERA CE
(hstm) (W)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TERT FERT TR TR FET
At 1 January 2019 RZZE-NE—R—H 1,063,153 168,434 647,029 6,312 2,486,343 4,371,271
Profit for the year ER 5T - - - - 569,111 569,111
Exchange differences arising on BEBINHBRARNS
translation of the financial BEREECERER
statements of foreign subsidiaries - - - (35,224) - (35,224)
Share of other comprehensive loss  FE(E AEZRE AR 2
of investments accounted for REZEM
using the equity method 2HEER - - (862) (15,961) - (16,823)
Change in value of a financial BATEFALMEE
asset at fair value through other WEzeRHEE
comprehensive income EBEZ - - 892) - - (892)
Share of other reserves of EREAERENRZREZ
an investment accounted for Hitf# G
using the equity method - - 12,797 - - 12,797
Deemed disposal of shares of BALENBARRS
subsidiaries - - (276,404) 3,830 - (272,574)
Employees’ incentive programme of a ~ — i B2 7] .2 (8 B 52
subsidiary (Note 30) =&l (f5#30) - - 30,303 - - 30,303
Exercise of employees’ incentive T —FMNBARZ
programme of a subsidiary &8 &3
(Note 30) (Hr:230) - - 22,137 - - 22,137
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-NF
+-A=+-H 1,063,153 168,434 434,108 (41,043) 3,055,454 4,680,106
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31 RESERVES (Continued)

A B B 985 A Bi

31 ®&E (@)

Share  Contributed Other Exchange Retained
premium surplus reserves reserve earnings Total
(Note (1)) (Note (ii))
BROVEE  ESBE% A4 EE EXfEE  RERF Ch
(Hetw)  (Hai)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TET TEL THET TR
At 1 January 2018 RZF—-N\E—R—H 1,063,153 168,434 500,891 111,754 2,208,168 4,052,400
Profit for the year ERET - - - - 278,175 278,175
Exchange differences arising on BEBIBAR
translation of the financial HBBREREECESER
statements of foreign subsidiaries - - - (69,279) - (69,279)
Share of other comprehensive loss ~ FEE AEZE AR 2
of an investment accounted for —EREZ AT AR
using the equity method - - (1,943) (36,163) - (38,1006)
Change in value of a financial BATEFALMEE
asset at fair value through other Wz eREERES
comprehensive income - - (14,384) - - (14,384)
Employees’ incentive programmes of ~ Fi& A 7 2 (& 8 2@t 2
subsidiaries - - 162,465 - - 162,465
At 31 December 2018 RZF-N\F
+-A=+-*H 1,063,153 168,434 647,029 6,312 2,486,343 4,371,271
Notes: Hst -

(@)

(i)

(iii)

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the difference between
the nominal value of the ordinary shares and share premium account
of Hi Sun Holdings Limited (“HSHL") acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) on 17 October 2001 as set out in
the circular to the shareholders of HSHL dated 9 August 2001, over the
nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange thereof.

Major items in other reserves are as follows:

- the difference between the net proceeds from issuance of
convertible preference shares of subsidiaries and the amount
transferred to non-controlling interests upon their conversion into
ordinary shares in prior years;

- the impacts from granting employees’ incentive programme of
subsidiaries;

- change in values of the financial asset at FVOCI; and

- the initial recognition of the written put option liability and
recognition of gain on the Deemed Disposal (Note 35).

PRC companies are required to allocate 10% of the companies’ net
profit to a reserve fund until such fund reaches 50% of the companies’
registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised upon
approval by the relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to
increase registered capital of the companies, provided that such fund is
maintained at a minimum of 25% of the companies’ registered capital.
As at 31 December 2019, retained earnings comprise of statutory
reserve fund amounting to HK$135,882,000 (2018: HK$121,605,000).

() AEBEZEHRBIENSHERBERAF ([SHE
BDERSEARA-_TZ—FN\ANBZBEMN
BOREN-_FT-F+ATLRAETZEEEA
(TE=A)) PR 2 m G 2 B R mE E MR
B BARFRU R OBITROEE L ZRE -

(i) HtvREHOTREAHIIMT:

RIBEF RS LBRRPTEITHE AR
AR E R 2 PSR T R B = SR R
HHOSHZER:

RHWE AR 2 BEEmMEINTE:

BATEN AR Ak SRAERER
AR

MEERBE NG ERERERERR AL
ERIFEN U (HFEE35) ©

(i) FEIFMBEFRRMERZ10% A RERFEE EE
ZREEEDRBREMEARZ50% 5 E RE DL
BRIE BILER A AR EHERBRIGEMAT 2

AMEAR EZHEEEREA

ERNAFEMER

Z25%KFE - R=ZE-—hEF+=—A=+—H REA
B AT REESIE35882,0008 7T (—ZT— \F:

121,605,000/ 7T ) °
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32 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR 32 EFREMRRENER XNXZEERE

PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BUSINESS RIT R 2 BAFIR - KA ENRUR
AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS K FERT RO
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—8H
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Current portion BNSAER 2
Trade payables (Note (a) JERHBRFR (Hat(@) 438,993 247,878
Bills payables (Note (b)) JENTERE (Hfatwb)) 294 3,165
439,287 251,043
Payables for payment processing solutions SNRDRIBEARTREEZ
business (Note (c)) e SRR (M et () 599,389 266,710
Other payables and accruals (Note (d) H A & 0B N T kIR
(Kfit)) 1,029,432 1,375,891
2,068,108 1,893,644
Non-current portion FEENHAER 2
Other payables (Note (c) H o T 5RIB (A et () - 983
2,068,108 1,894,627
Trade and bills payables, payables for payment processing ENRARENRIE XN PEBFRRTEE
solutions business and other payables and accruals are T2 AT FRIA ~ HoAth R 15 5RIE M e IR IR IA T
denominated in the following currencies: EH¥5IME:
As at 31 December
R+t=A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-NF —T-)\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
HK$ BTT 54,848 63,996
RMB ARE 2,013,260 1,830,631
2,068,108 1,894,627
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32 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR
PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BUSINESS
AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS
(Continued)

Notes:

(@ Trade payables
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the ageing analysis of the trade
payables primarily based on invoice date was as follows:

A B B 985 A Bi

32 BURIARENRE N5 EEH7
R REFH 2 BANRUR - HEARE
RPESTFRIE (&)

(@ ERERX
REZE-NERZT-\F+ZA=+—H0 £2%
BEAMEL 2 BARFRRAITAT -

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2019 2018
—EB-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Current to 90 days BNEFZ=90H 402,025 205,694
91 to 180 days 91Z180H 1,859 2,663
181 to 365 days 181&365H 24,544 17,774
Over 365 days 365H A £ 10,565 21,747
438,993 247,878
The credit period granted by the suppliers ranges from 0 to 180 days. BHEMKT 2 EEHMNF0£180H 2
(b) Bills payables b) EARE
The balance represents bank acceptance notes: MERIEIRITA LRI
As at 31 December
Rt+=ZA=+—8H
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET
Due within 90 days 90H R EIHf 294 1,099
Due within 91 to 180 days 91ZE180H W E|HA - 2,066
294 3,165

(c) Payables for payment processing solutions business

(0 XNRZEBBRIREL ZENKA
SNRBEIEFRTT RER 2 RN FBEBIERER

Payables for payment processing solutions business mainly represent
payment received from the relevant banks and financial institutions on
behalf of the merchants. The amounts are generally due for settlement
within 30 days and is denominated in RMB.

PUEERIRTT R EBEBNNR - BREE KRR
0ANEITHEERRARBIIE-
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32 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES, PAYABLES FOR
PAYMENT PROCESSING SOLUTIONS BUSINESS
AND OTHER PAYABLES AND

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(d) Other payables and accruals

ACCRUALS

Bt (88

(d)

32 BURARENRE N5 EEH#
RTTFRFE 2 RN FOR - At EAFIR
K ERTRIR (80

H b e FOR K 5T RKO0E

As at 31 December

R+=A=+-—H
2019 2018
—Z-hEF —ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Accrued staff costs and pension obligations FERTB TR MRIR S HK 287,402 273,934
Deposits Ee 62,250 84,556
Receipt in advance from customers (Note i) FERWERERFE 2 58 (Kati) 73,389 186,467
Advance from merchant recruitment agents RERERPRENRR 370,337 519,935
Others At 236,054 311,982
Total A&t 1,029,432 1,376,874
Less: Non-current portion receipt in advance B FEEWERE P 2 FURRIERE E 5
from customers (Note i) (Kiszi) - (983)
Total current portion BmEE 1,029,432 1,375,891

Note:

(i) A contract liability is recognised when a customer pays
consideration, or is contractually required to pay consideration
and the amount is already due, before the Group recognises the
related revenue. The Group recognised its contract liabilities
under other payables and accruals as receipt in advance from
customers in the consolidated balance sheet.

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December
2019 that was included in the contract liability balance at the
beginning of the year amounted to HK$173,354,000.

The decrease in receipt in advance from customers was mainly

due to decrease in advances from merchants under the payment

processing solutions segment.

Hat -

BHEBENAREEREBBAR REFX
NREIGORTENRERSECD IR

RAKERGAEEABRTERELAY
BEAHMEN R RERFE T B LR
EPHRE

REBEE-_T-hE+-_A=1t—BILFEHR
Wit AFE LB ELE S Z WA 173,354,000
BT

TERWEEF 2 RS T ERR KB IR
SERIBRRTT =N RIH TP BT EC
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33 BORROWING

Current B4R
Bank borrowing RITIER

A B B 985 A Bi

33 B

As at 31 December

Rt+ZA=+—8H
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
5,577 10,247

As at 31 December 2019, the bank borrowing would mature
on 22 December 2020 and bears average interest of annually
4.57% (2018: 5.24%). The interest-bearing borrowing is carried
at amortised cost.

At 31 December 2019, the Group’s borrowing was repayable
within 1 year (2018: same).

The carrying amount of the short-term borrowing approximates
its fair value. The carrying amount of the Group’s borrowing
as at 31 December 2019 is denominated in the RMB (2018:
same).

As at 31 December 2019, the bank borrowing is pledged by
buildings (Note 15) and right-of-use assets (Note 76) of the
Group (2018: buildings (Note 15) and leasehold land (Note
17)).

The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its
borrowing facilities during the year ended 31 December 2019
and 2018.

—NEFTZA=+—HB RITIEFR_-F
_7¢+ AZ+Z R V15N =457
[B(ZZ—\F:5242) 5 5 - 5t BEFIZE
PRAFIER -

REZF-NF+-A=1+—R FAEREZERE
R—FRER(ZZE—N\F:HR) -

RHERZREEEREAFERE - R_F—N
FH-A=1T—0 AEEBKRZEREETIAA
REHE (ZF—N\F HER) °

—NEFT-A=+—H RITERBEE
It%%(ﬁ/f&w)&@ﬁﬁ%é&(/f/fﬁfm) (==
—\F BT (fat15) RAE T (HaE17) )1E
o

BE_T-NER-ZF- )\t _A=t+—HLt
FE ARECETEERBENTERE
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34 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

34 EIEFTEH

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities

during the year is as follows:

FAOBREMEHEERBEZZEHINT

Deferred income tax liabilities EEfEHHAE
2019 2018
“E-NE ZE-N\#
Accelerated Revaluation Accelerated Revaluation
tax  of intangible  Right-of-use tax  of intangible
depreciation assets assets Total  depreciation assets Total
mEHE BVEE ER# MEHE EVEE
& Bff BE Bt ik Eff B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TR TR TERT TET THT AT
At 1 January, before adoption of ~ A—A—H ' REEME
HKFRS 16 BIBRE LRI F 16557 251 340 - 591 101 406 507
Adoption of HKFRS 16 REBEBHHREER
(Note 2.1.1(a)) 1655
(H522.2.1(2) - - 7,148 7,148 - - -
At 1 January, after adoption of ~ R—A—H  RIEAEE
HKFRS 16 BIBRELRF 165 251 340 7,148 7,739 101 406 507
(Credited)/charged to EUNVEIIEE
the consolidated W%k
income statement (78) (22) (741) (841) 150 (50 100
Exchange realignment 5 R - ) (132) (139) - (16) (16)
At 31 December W+=ZA=+-H 173 311 6,275 6,759 251 340 591
Set-off deferred income tax assets X34 ELAGHEE (173) (226) (5,838) (6,237) (251) (231) (482)
Deferred income tax liabilities, net #+=F=+—H#)
at 31 December BEMEHARTE - 85 437 522 - 109 109
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34 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 34 EIEFRISH (1)
Deferred income tax assets EEFESHEE
2019 2018
—E-hE “T-N\E
Revaluation Revaluation
Lease of intangible of intangible
liabilities assets Total assets
HEAE EBVEEER &t EWEAESR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER AL
At 1 January, before adoption of HKFRS 16 R—R—B REAEEHB
WEEBE165A - (482) (482) (344)
Adoption of HKFRS 16 (Note 2.1.1(a)) NGB BH B REER
F1650 (Wit2.2.1) (7,148) - (7,148) -
At 1 January, after adoption of HKFRS 16 R—RA—B REBEERE
MEERE 165 1R (7,148) (482) (7,630) (344)
Charged/(crediited) to the consolidated (3t A) /R BEEARER
income statement 1,065 78 1,143 (150)
Exchange realignment [E 5 B 126 5 131 12
At 31 December R+ZA=+—8H (5,957) (399) (6,356) (482)
Set-off deferred income tax liabilities BHEECHEHERE 5,838 399 6,237 482
Deferred income tax assets, net at 31 December P+ -A=+—HH#
EEFMENAETSE (119) - (119) -

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carry forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31
December 2019, the Group had unrecognised tax losses to
be carried forward against future taxable income amounted to
HK$418,791,000 (2018: HK$417,423,000). These tax losses
have no expiry date except that HK$164,623,000 will expire
from 2020 to 2024 (2018: HK$173,121,000 will expire from
2019 to 2023). The potential deferred income tax assets in
respect of these tax losses which have not been recognised
amounted to HK$75,789,000 (2018: HK$77,044,000).

As at 31 December 2019, deferred taxation has not been
provided for in the consolidated financial statements in respect
of the withholding tax that would be payable on unremitted
earnings of certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group amounting
to approximately HK$173,900,000 (2018: HK$108,054,000)
as the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

BIEFTSMEE DA RABERIEBENRE IS
BEBERT SN ER MR EE s HIEEE
ERER - RZE—NF+A=+—H £&EE
e A B LA B8 B 18 JE SR B A 2 R FER B TE /S
18 5418,791,0009% 7T ( —F — )\ 4F : 417,423,000
BIT) °BR164,623,0008 TR T2 FE2 =
T EREER (=2 — )\ : 173,121,00007%5
TR-ZE—NEZ-TS-=FHREm) I Z
EHERIBY EE R BB RSB E R
R BIERETIBEE A75,789,0008 7T (=
— \4E : 77,044,000/8 7T )

RZZE—hF+-A=1+—8B BRAEEE
TR 2 R B TR AN e A
BARNEE N ARAERETHREMNEAR
RIEZF] 2 FE TR 49173,900,0008 7T (==
— J\4F : 108,054,000/ 7T ) R ér & BT B R & fE
RIETL B -
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35 DEEMED DISPOSAL AND WRITTEN PUT

OPTION LIABILITY

In 2019, the Company, certain shareholders of VBill OPCO,
including Shen Zheng (also acts as the director of VBill
Limited), Li Huimin, Xue Guangyu and Ge Xiaoxia (collectively
the “Management Shareholders”), ELECTRUM B.V. (the “VBill
Investor”), VBill Limited (“VBill (Cayman)”) and VBill OPCO
(collectively the “VBill Contractual Parties”) entered into a
subscription agreement (the “Subscription”), pursuant to which,
the VBill Investor had agreed to acquire approximately 11.21%
effective shareholding in VBill OPCO through subscription of
the issued shares of VBill (Cayman) at a subscription price of
RMB588,000,000 (equivalent to HK$676,494,000).

As a part of the Subscription, VBill (Cayman) would grant a put
option, which the VBill Investor could request VBill (Cayman)
to repurchase, redeem and/or cancel all the VBill (Cayman)’s
shares of the VBill Investor at its discretion within 3 to 5 years
after the completion date of the Subscription under certain
conditions at an exercise price of RMB588,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$676,494,000) plus 8.0% interest per annum. The
Subscription was completed on 12 November 2019.

Upon the completion of the Subscription, VBill OPCO remains
as a subsidiary of the Group.

The Group was deemed to have disposed of approximately
11.21% of VBill OPCO from 80.04% to approximately 68.83%
(“Deemed Disposal”). A gain of HK$400,090,000 from the
Deemed Disposal was recognised within equity in ‘other
reserves’, net of directly attributable transaction costs charged
in the equity of HK$17,246,000.

A written put option liability of approximately
HK$676,494,000 was recognised at its fair value in the
consolidated balance sheet, with a corresponding entry of the
same amount recognised within equity ‘other reserves’. Its fair
value is based on the present value of the exercise price of
RMB588,000,000 (equivalent to HK$676,494,000) plus 8.0%
interest per annum, by applying a discount rate of 8%, and on
the assumption that the put option will be redeemable after
3 years from the completion date (Note 37). The written put
option liability was denominated in US$ and classified under
non-current liabilities.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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35 RALESEREHRLHEERE

RZZE—NF AR BITHETRE 24
B (IRHE(TVBIll LimitedEE S ) -~ Z2& 8- BEX T
LEEE (GEAIEEREIE]) - ELECTRUM

V. (TVBillIE & #& |) ~ VBill Limited ([VBill
(Cayman) | ) R E&EFTHT (4785 [VBIllG #9775 1) &T
UREWE ([REEE]) Kt VBIRESED
[/ 2 # B IE R E AR 588,000,0005T (HHE
$2676,494,00078 7T ) SRREVBIll (Cayman)2 B7TM%
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35 DEEMED DISPOSAL AND WRITTEN PUT 35 RAHESELREHALHESS

OPTION LIABILITY (Continued) (%)
Gain on Deemed Disposal is calculated as follows: BARAHEEENREIRIATAE
As at
12 November
2019
R=Z—-N%
t—A+t=AR
HK$'000
THET
Proceeds received from the Subscription RBRIEMFHIE 676,494
Less: recognition of non-controlling interests W HER IR R (255,328)
Less: proportionate share of accumulated currency & - IR LBl D E M Rt &R E =5
translation differences re-attributed to non- BB AT RS
controlling interests (3,830)
Less: directly attributable transaction costs B BB R H RN (17,246)
Gain on Deemed Disposal BRHEFENKE 400,090
Set out below is the summary of the impact on other reserves J«‘AT?JZ@JEEWE?%&%$IE&EHJA? il
in respect of the Deemed Disposal and the written put option BEHHEMBREEENTENHRE
liability:
Other reserves
Hitb &
HK$'000
FET
Gain on Deemed Disposal BEAHEFENKER 400,090
Initial recognition of the written put option liability ~ ¥ HERE LG iR & & (676,494)
(276,404)
In the consolidated cash flow statement, net cash inflow from RiFEREREXRF RANESTEMNRES R
Deemed Disposal of HK$659,248,000 represents proceeds A JF88659,248,00078 7T * 18 B R IE S H YR 2
received from the Subscription of HK$676,494,000 less the T 15 5K 38676,494,00078 7T 5 B £ FE1h 32 5 A 7R
directly attributable transaction costs of HK$17,246,000. 17,246,000 7T
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36 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 36 @ZE8HE&RERMEE

STATEMENT

(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net

BeF8EZ

cash generated from operations

@)gﬁ SHANRA ELE TS

For the year ended
31 December

BE+=-A=t+—BH1LEE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Profit before income tax B FT 1S 34 Al & A 776,623 430,165
Adjustments for: Eoki
Depreciation of property, ME - WERRETE
plant and equipment 362,116 299,477
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 29,392 _
Depreciation of investment REMENE
properties 197 198
Amortisation of leasehold land FAE + b 12 5 - 986
Amortisation of intangible assets By EEEH 112 208
Net fair values (gains)/losses on TE/L\\SF{E*'I_A?E S EMEE
financial assets at fair value RNEE (W), E1EFE
through profit or loss (21,923) 16,971
Gain on disposals of HEME  BE LRz ks
property, plant and equipment (50) (45)
Write off of property, plant and W - W MR e
equipment 94,701 -
Provision for inventories Tﬁﬁéﬁ 5,539 1,253
Employees’ incentive programmes BB~ 2 & 2Rt &l
of subsidiaries 30,303 201,447
Share of results of investments FEEAR R EARZINE 2 34
accounted for using the equity
method (208,695) (171,753)
Credit impairment loss FEEREESE 48,800 39,954
Interest income B U A (53,572) (23,717)
Finance costs B & A 10,245 89
Operating profit before working LEEREHAIZKERN
capital changes 1,073,788 795,233
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FE®RAL () 58,876 (75,721)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and bills  JEURBRZX R JEUR Z=48 (38 H0) R >
receivables (71,485) 114,697
Decrease/(increase) in loan receivables JEUL & ZOr 4>, (38Hn0) 98,559 (589,558)
Decrease/(increase) in other BEEKAGFEZHemEE
financial assets at amortised cost B () 4,376 (29,957)
Decrease/(increase) in other assets H&EER D, (1Em) 4,695 (24,935)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due  EU LA A AR 218 E 2 5
from investments accounted for (3gm),/md
using the equity method (5,249) 359
Decrease in amounts due FE AR E AR 218 E 2 3K
to investment accounted for L
using the equity method (7,675) (224)
Increase in trade and bills FENERRENEER TR
payables, payables for payment BaIR BRI R ETS 2 RS 5KIR
processing solutions business and VA Ko EAth JRE A~ TR I8 K% JE 5T R IR
other payables and accruals &N 214,410 603,925
Cash generated from operations KEMERE 1,370,295 793,819
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36 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (Continued)

(b) In the cash flow statement, proceeds from disposals

(c)

of property, plant and equipment comprise:

36 el e

RERME (8

b) RESHRERT HEWE BERRE
P8 sIERSE:

For the year ended
31 December

BE+-BA=+—BLEFE

2019 2018

—EB-hF —E-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHERT FHET

Net book amount (Note 15) BREDFE (Hat15) 107 969

Gain on disposals of property, HEYE BE REEB2 K=

plant and equipment 50 45
Proceeds from disposals of property, — HEYIZE - BE K& &S HIE

plant and equipment 157 1,014

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing

activities

This section sets out the movements in liabilities arising

(0 MEZDELZEEHK

ARG LI FERATRE L BED

from financing activities for each of the years presented. Bo
Borrowing  Lease liabilities Total
B HESE &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FHT BT
As at 1 January 2018 RZZE-N\$—-H—H 9,596 - 9,596
Cash flows RenE 1,093 - 1,093
Finance costs BMEKA 89 - 89
Exchange difference bE 5 =R (531) - (531)
As at 31 December 2018 RZZE-N\E+=A=+—H 10,247 - 10,247
Recognised on adoption of RERE BT RS ER
HKFRS 16 (Note 2.1.1(a)) SB165 TR (M722.1.1(0)) - 57,677 57,677
As at 1 January 2019 R-ZTF-NF—H—H 10,247 57,677 67,924
Cash flows BEM (4,665) (30,646) 35,311)
Addition RNE - 30,793 30,793
Finance costs BEKAE 127 2,704 2,831
Exchange difference bE M =R (132) (1,218) (1,350)
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-NEFE+=-HA=+—H 5,577 59,310 64,887
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37 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

In 2015, the Company entered into a performance guarantee
agreement with a customer (the “Performance Guarantee
Agreement”). Pursuant to the Performance Guarantee
Agreement, the Company agreed to provide the customer with
a guarantee in relation to the due and punctual performance
of a subsidiary of the Group in providing services for a
modernisation project with not more than HK$60,000,000
(2018: same) and claims of infringement of third party’s
intellectual property right. As at 31 December 2019, the
Company does not recognise any liability in relation to the
Performance Guarantee Agreement as the Directors of the
Company consider the possibility of reimbursement is not
probable.

In 2019, the Company entered into a guarantee agreement
with Megahunt Microelectronics, Mega Hunt HK and Tianjin
Mega Hunt Microelectronics Company Limited (“Tianjin
Mega Hunt”) (the “Guarantee Agreement”). Pursuant to
the Guarantee Agreement, the Company agreed to provide
Megahunt Microelectronics, Mega Hunt HK and Tianjin Mega
Hunt with a guarantee to repay the due and unsettled debts of
Megahunt Microelectronics, Mega Hunt HK and Tianjin Mega
Hunt payable to a supplier, should Megahunt Microelectronics,
Mega Hunt HK and Tianjin Mega Hunt or fail to honour their
obligations, with not more than HK$78,000,000 (equivalent
to US$10,000,000). As at 31 December 2019, the Company
does not recognise any liability in relation to the Guarantee
Agreement as the Directors of the Company consider the
possibility of reimbursement is not probable.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material contingent
liability as at 31 December 2018 and 2019.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f o S 985 A B

37 RAREE

RZT—RF ARAHE—BRPITBHER
s ([BHERRGZ]) - REBBOERRGZ
AREIRERAEE —EWEQRIGE RINE A%
FEEREREZRBRBILE = NHBERE
Z R [AZE R PR HT % 760,000,000% 7T

ZE-N\F R ZER-RZT-NF+=
A=+—A BARARBEERAREREZA
BEMEN R R A R ERER A BB IER
pASSEN=NE

RZZ—NF  RREHRKAEENRE T Jka
EBERFEIMETRIERAR ([REKAD)
IR ([RRIBHED - BREERRBE A
ARIRIZEMKAMEEMRE T KBS RFEK
SR 2 7478,000,00078 7T (#8E 710,000,000
E)ER UEEKAEERET KAE
B RREKEN T —BEERNE BAREE
BT HEWIKAIEEME T KAE B R
MRS FEEBITEET - R_Z—NF+=A
=+ 8B BHRARREERARHRENT
MRS - AR B EER A BER R Z M
Bf&e

7 E-NERZZ-NF
TR AEEYEEREREIAR

@ 11
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38 COMMITMENTS 38 i
As at 31 December 2018, the Group had future aggregate RZZB-N\F+RA=+—80 KxEERE
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating A ETEE 2 KRR RIEE G R @AW
leases as follows: N
Land and
buildings
T RETF
As at
31 December
2018
R-ZZFE—-)N\%F
+=A
=+—H
HK$'000
TET
Not later than one year TaE—5F 33,518
Later than one year and BB —FETBBERF
not later than five years 36,096
69,614
From 1 January 2019, the Group has recognised right-of-use BE-Z—NF—A—Hi rAEERZSEH
assets and lease liabilities for these leases, except for short-term §(TeEEHEE) BREREEENEE
leases (Note 16). B1& (Hat16) »
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39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 December 2019, Rich Global Limited (incorporated in
British Virgin Islands) owns 22.22% of the Company’s shares.
The remaining 77.78% of the shares are widely held.

(a) Transactions with related parties
Except for those disclosed below and other than those
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group has no other significant transaction
with related parties during the year ended 31 December

2019 (2018: same).

Transactions with PAX Global, an

associated company:
— Rental income (Note i)

— Purchase of electronic payment

products (Note ii)

— Sales of mag-stripe card security

decoder chips (Note iii)
Transactions with Cloopen, an

associated company:

— Technical and support
services fee (Note iv)

— Provision of platform operation
services (Note v)

39 BEARS

RoT—

NEFET-A=+—B REABRLHES

sTMAKAZZ Rich Global Limited#EB 7R A T122.22%
A% 1D o 88 R 77.78%MND B ARATEER -

@ HEELTZRS

BE

25

RBEARNEERRIRS:

—HEBWA (Fati)
—BEETFMNEMR (Hiti)

—HEBE T IMERIE S
(Bt atiii )
BB 2 X A]CloopenZ R 5

— Rk EREE R
(K itiv)
—REFeEBERBE (Hitv)

BT XA ERE M A TS IRR M Rf 0 R

SV RBEZFT-NFT-A=t—H

IEFE - AR R RS ETEMEXN

(ZZ2—N\F:48R) -

For the year ended
31 December

BE+T-A=1+—-HLEE

2019 2018
=l —FN\F
HK$'000 HK$’'000
TER FAT
1,431 1,491
47,498 194,221
52,138 67,587
39,283 50,116
2,385 3,318

Notes:

At

() Rental income from an associated company was charged at a (i)
fixed monthly fee mutually agreed between the two parties.

(i) Purchase of electronic payment products was transacted pursuant (ii)

to the terms and conditions set out in the framework agreement

entered into by the Group and an associated company dated 31

December 2015. The Group and an associated company had on
5 December 2018 entered into new framework agreements with
revised terms and conditions governing the purchase of electronic
payment products effective from 1 January 2019.

KE—FEE AR ZEEWAT AIRE T AR
7€ 2 Bl E B AU -

BEETXNEMDREARELE—FHER
AR EAR-—T—HF+ZA=+—Hz
RERIBDZEFB G NETR S - AN EER—
RBERRER T \F+-ARRTIA
BIERTIRR R G EZR et - AR ERRER
FXNER XB -F-NF—A—HRER-



=fEEH (FED BRAR

—B-hEFR

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(@)

(b)

(c)

Transactions with related parties (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(iii) Sales of mag-stripe card security decoder chips were transacted
pursuant to the terms and conditions set out in the framework
agreement entered into by the Group and an associated
company on 31 December 2013. The terms and conditions of
the framework agreement have been renewed on 30 December
2076.

(iv) Technical and support services fee were charged pursuant to the

terms and conditions set out in the framework agreement entered

into by the Group and an associated company on 9 May 2016.

These related party transactions have ceased to be the continuing

connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules on 19 March 2018.

Provision of platform operation services were transacted pursuant

A B B 985 A Bi

39 BEARS (&)

@ REEZzZXS ()
Mzt (48)

(i)

(iv)

SHE RN IR SR DR EASEE SR
BERRAN_F-=F+-A=+—HFILZ
RER I P B GR R RIEATETTR D - ZER
BIEFRIGER—E—RF+-A=1R
BaT -

i R R RE BRI A R B R A
AR T RFRAANBRI L ZERBHTE
BRRIGEHR - ZEFEAR IR TN
FZATAETBRLTRAE THARTREZ
FERER S

RUTBELRGTIRBEAEEME e AT

to the terms and conditions set out in the contracts entered into RZE-—N\FRAZFTNBRZF—N\F+—
by the Group and an associated company on 28 September 2018 RA—B9BIETL 2 & HIFTEIGRTR R IR #1732
and 1 November 2018, respectively. e
Balances with investments accounted for using the (b) AEHZZEARZBRE ZHEER
equity method
As at 31 December
Rt=—A=+—H
2019 2018
ZE-NF — )\
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Amounts due from associated JE Wi Bt & R A1 RIR
companies 19,970 15,116
Amounts due to associated companies F&{H & A & 5IH (21,226) (114,190)
As at 31 December 2018 and 2019, these balances E’\\Zg NERZZE-NFH+_A=+—
are denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest-free and B ZEESREUAREHE - AEER T
repayable on demand. TR NMEEREE-
Key management compensation (0 TEERE Zﬁf"*
During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, key HE-Z-NER-_Z2-\F+R=1+—
management compensation is equivalent to the directors’ HIFFE 2 E.EEZ%WE*H?QE’:\W%IM
emolument as disclosed in Note 41. Rt EZME -
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40 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 40 ATz EEEBEREEESH
THE COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company ARARZEEERER
As at 31 December
R+=RAR=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hF ZE-NF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHET
ASSETS &E
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment properties wEME 1,794 2,052
Right-of-use assets EREEE 20,474 -
Leasehold land HELi - 21,233
Investments in subsidiaries LEKB A A 713,189 713,127
Investment accounted for using the  { A & A A BRA) R &
equity method 259,770 259,770
Total non-current assets ERBEELE 995,227 996,182
Current assets REBEE
Other current assets EMrsEE 745 800
Other financial assets HHIEK AT 2/
at amortised cost HEthe B E 202 202
Financial asset at fair value through &2 AF{EFF ABZE 2
profit or loss SREE 1,712 2,004
Amounts due from subsidiaries VS C I ENGIE /¢ 502,857 467,298
Cash and bank balances Re MBI 419,338 465,816
Total current assets RBEEHAE 924,854 936,120
Total assets BEEHAE 1,920,081 1,932,302
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable to <A T #E ABEEERR
owners of the Company
Share capital & A 6,942 6,942
Reserves &t Note (a) M1t (a) 1,279,650 1,318,045
Total equity ERBE 1,286,592 1,324,987
LIABILITIES afE
Current liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals E b fE A 5RIB K AT R 27,762 27,424
Amounts due to subsidiaries N EINGIE S| 590,927 565,091
Current income tax liabilities BIERFTS R & 14,800 14,800
Total current liabilities REBAERE 633,489 607,315
Total liabilities BEBE 633,489 607,315
Total equity and liabilities EnREEAR 1,920,081 1,932,302
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40 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Balance sheet of the Company (Continued)

Note (a): Reserves movements of the Company

=fEEH (FED BRAR

—B-hEFR

40 ARRAZEERERRFARRE (50

FARCEERER (B)

Bitta) : K AR Z R

(Accumulated

Share Contributed Other loss)/retained
premium Surplus reserves earnings Total
(Note)
(RitER)/
RAEE EHRH Hib e REBF &t
=
(P ez )
HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$'000
TR THT THT TR TR
At 1 January 2019 R-Z-h&-HF-A 1,290,857 46,417 34,223 (53,452) 1,318,045
Loss for the year FAFRE - - (7,323) (31,072) (38,395)
At 31 December 2019 R-Z-h1&+=A=1+-8 1,290,857 46,417 26,900 (84,524) 1,279,650
At 1 January 2018 R-ZZ-NE-5-H 1,290,857 46,417 34,223 35,339 1,406,836
Loss for the year FRER - - - (88,791) (88,791)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-NE+=B=1+-H 1,290,857 46,417 34,223 (53,452) 1,318,045
Note: Kt -

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the excess of the
fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
reorganisation over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in
exchange thereof. Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, a company
may make distributions to its members out of the contributed surplus under
certain circumstances.

AT 2 B ESIER IR SAE UGS 2 M8 2 R,
AFEEBBARBDRU LR BHTROEEL S
H-RBEARE-NN\—FQFE RARAJEETE

TR E S &R BB AR AR DR
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41 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES)

(a) Directors’” and chief executive’s emoluments
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive
is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2019:

N EECEMNRERS (REEBQAMRK
Pl (56622F ) %383 2 7 (KE
EESFAHEEHR)RH (F622GE)
EEBLTHRAUAZRFHEE)

@ ESRTHASZHE
FBREFRITHEAH M EFIAT

BE-T-AF+-AS+—ALLEE:

Emoluments

paid or

receivable

in respect of

director’s other

services in

Remuneration ~ connection with

paid or  the management

Employer’s receivable ~ of the affairs of

Estimated ~ contribution in respect of  the Company

Discretionary Housing  money value of to a retirement ~ accepting office ~ or its subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses allowance  other benefits  benefit scheme as director undertaking Total
HESARER
ARARENE
REREE ARBHZAM
AftER  ET2RH  REZZEN  BEZEAR
BE #e BfEkA BE2E AHEMEE BUHEMR  JEGHE EUEE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ThR ThR TAR TER THR ThR TER TER ThR
Executive Directors H7ES
Cheung Yuk Fung RIE 1,050 - 1,300 - - - - - 2,350
Kui Man Chun EEE
(Chief Executive Officer) Gz - 2460 6,200 - - 18 - - 8,678
Xu Wensheng BxE - 2,741 6,000 - 4,364 18 - - 13,123
Li Wenjin FNE - 2,070 6,000 - - 18 - - 8,088
Xu Chang Jun #EE - 2,416 5,400 - 3,928 18 - - 11,762
Independent Non-Executive BUFHTES
Directors
Tam Chun Fai ERE 208 - 200 - - - - 408
Leung Wai Man, Roger 2ER 208 - 200 - - - - 408
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard R 208 - 200 - - - - 408
Total At 1,674 9,687 25,500 - 8,292 7 - - 45,205

232



=SSR (B BRAE]

—B-hEFH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

A B B 985 A Bi

41 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a) Directors” and chief executive’s emoluments
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018:

N EBCEMNRERS (REEQAMRK
Pl (%£622% ) %383k 27 (KE
ESFHZER) RP (F622GE) K
FERLTRABRFHEE) (50

@ ESERTHRAZSZHME (&)

RE-T—\FT-AZT—HILEE:

Emoluments
paid or
receivable

in respect of
director’s other
services in

Remuneration  connection with
paid or - the management
Employer's receivable  of the affairs of
Estimated ~ contribution ~in respectof  the Company
Discretionary Housing  money value of  toa retirement accepting office or its subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses allowance  other benefits ~ benefit scheme asdirector  undertaking Total
HEFAREE
ARRFENE
REXEME RAFHZEM
EbRN  BIZRA  AREFZEN  REBZEMK
k3 2 Bt EERE (RAE%EE  BRHEMT  JENEE RS R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TAL FHL FEL FEL THL FAL FEL FEL THL
Executive Directors HrEs
Cheung Yuk Fung RIi 960 - 1,300 - - - - - 2,260
Kui Man Chun REF
(Chief Executive Officer) (TR8H) - 2,280 6,200 - - 18 - - 6,498
Xu Wensheng BIE - 2,541 6,000 - 18 - 8,559
Li Wenjin FNE - 1,800 6,000 - - 18 - - 7,818
Xu Chang Jun #EE - 2,176 5,400 - 18 - 7,59
Independent Non-Executive BUFHES
Directors
Tam Chun Fai &R 180 - 200 - - - - 360
Leung Wai Man, Roger RER 180 - 200 - - - - - 380
Chang Kai-Tzung, Richard FE 180 - 200 - - - - 380
Total Ch 1,500 8,797 25,500 - - 72 - - 35,869
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41 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE
(CAP. 622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE
OF INFORMATION ABOUT BENEFITS OF
DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP. 622G) AND
HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

()

Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits during the year (2018: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year (2018: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2018: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there is no
loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in
favour of directors, or controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors (2018: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed, no significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Company’s business to
which the Company was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year (2018: Nil).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

42 EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

(@)

On 15 January 2020, the Company entered into a
guarantee agreement with Megahunt Microelectronics
(the “2020 Guarantee Agreement”). Pursuant to the 2020
Guarantee Agreement, the Company agreed to provide
Megahunt Microelectronics with a guarantee to repay the
due and unsettled debts of Megahunt Microelectronics
payable to a supplier, should Megahunt Microelectronics
cease or fail to honour its obligations, with not more than
HK$78,000,000 (equivalent to US$10,000,000).

Saved as disclosed in Note 30, the Megahunt Subscription
Agreement completed on 30 March 2020 and immediately
after which Megahunt Microelectronics is owned as to
approximately 65.73% by the Group.

As a result of the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease
2019 (“COVID-19 outbreak”), a series of precautionary
and control measures have been and continued to be
implemented across the PRC since early 2020. In the light
of the current situation, the local consumption market
and hence the payment processing industry, as well as the
Group's financial performance will inevitably be affected
by the epidemic in the first half of 2020. The extent of
the impact depends on the duration of the epidemic and
the implementation of regulatory policies and relevant
protective measures. The Group will pay close attention to
the development of the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate
its impact on the operation and financial position and
results of the Group. Up to the date of this report, the
assessment is still in progress.
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A summary of the published consolidated results and of the — #i#kE & B X BRE LILEABEREN 2 A%
consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five BEBRERAEMBRFEDAMGEEERGEEE
financial years, as extracted from the audited financial statements —E2EEH BT :

and restated as appropriate, is set as below:

Year ended 31 December
BET-A=t-ALER
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-hE ZT-N\F ZT—+F ZT—F ZT-HF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FHET FHT TET FHET

Results ¥E

Profit/(loss) attributable to RNABHEE AEMG

owners of the Company wAl (ER) 569,111 278,175 346,144 283,964 183,486
Assets and liabilities BEREE

Total assets BERE 8,149,068 6,632,517 5,657,451 5,499,041 4,576,515
Total liabilities BELE (2,870,556)  (2,061,242)  (1,493,906)  (1,913,374)  (1,238,571)

Capital and reserves attributable to &2 T H A&
the owners of the Company BEXE#E 4,687,048 4,378,213 4,059,342 3,531,216 3,308,828
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